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Corporate Information
RNAEREHR
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Mr. Michael Charles Lion
Ms. Zhang Jingdong
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Ms. Zhang Jingdong
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Mr. Fang Ankong (Chairman)

Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen

Dr. Loke Yu

Ms. Zhang Jingdong
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* Mr. Gu Liyong, the Executive Director of the Company, is also the main contact person
of the external Company Secretary engaged by the Company
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Chairman’s Statement
TERE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Chiho-Tiande
Group Limited (B&XRMEEARAF) (the "Company”), | present
the audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Group finished the 2013 financial year with a loss of HK$382.9
million attributable to owners of the Company. During the year, the
Group recorded a reduction in sales from HK$8.2 billion in 2012 to
HK$7.2 billion in 2013, representing a reduction of 12.2%. The Group
recorded a gross loss of HK$23.8 million during the year, which was
due to the adverse impact of the prolonged volatility and the overall
downward movement of the global metal prices throughout the year.
The prolonged volatility and the overall downward movement of
commodity prices had a negative impact on the gross margin of the
Group in 2013. As for the loss for the year, the Group recorded a loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$382.9 million, when
compared to the profit attributable to the owners of the Company
of HK$88.6 million recorded in 2012. Loss on fair value changes of
derivative financial instruments of HK$215.9 million was recognised in
2013, which was significantly reduced from HK$626.9 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2013 by HK$411.0 million.

Despite the significant volatile global metal market experienced
throughout the year, the Group continued to maintain and balance its
procurement volume to cater for its processing needs through its well
established overseas procurement network. The Group sold in aggregate
over 697,800 tonnes of its processed products within its three business
segments throughout the year. This represented a decrease of 3.6%
when compared to 723,600 tonnes in 2012.

During the year, the Group continued to follow its usual practices of
consistently buying mixed metal scrap and selling its recycled products
in accordance with its processing ability so as to mitigate the short-term
impact of price volatility on the overall performance of the Group.

Basic loss per share attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$0.37 in 2013 (2012: Earnings per share HK$0.08).
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHE (B

Following the establishment of our Hong Kong operations in 2012,
the Group’s Hong Kong operations together with the Hong Kong joint
venture company have established a strong presence in Hong Kong with
a rapid increase in local market share. The Group is now in a well-placed
position to establish a more diversified scrap metal and electronic waste
processing platform in Hong Kong. We are confident that the Hong
Kong facility will eventually become an important contributor to the
overall performance of the Group.

With regard to the investment in establishing new processing facilities
in the Development Zone in Yantai City, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"), we are now close to completing the first stage of the
development and the new processing facilities are expected to become
partially operational in the first half of 2014.

Going forward, we remain committed to further expanding our
processing capability, and at the same time improving our profitability
and return on equity. Our focus will continue to cover our existing
facilities including Taizhou, Ningbo and Hong Kong. We will continue to
be on the lookout for any potential opportunity, especially the activities
within the scrap metal resources supply chain in the PRC.

With the continued emphasis of support from the PRC Government to
develop the recycling industry, we are confident that the metal recycling
industry in the PRC will continue to grow and will become an important
source and an integral part of the metal resources supply chain of the
PRC in the future.

Given that the metal recycling industry contributes significantly to the
protection of environment and to the preservation of valuable natural
resources, we continue to place heavy emphasis on our procurement
volume to ensure that it is in line with our processing needs and to cater
for our expansion strategy for scrap materials in the PRC.

Fang Ankong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2014
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BEEER R DT

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

With the significant volatility in global metal market seen in 2013,
the management continued facing exceptional challenges resulting in
a disappointing result for the whole year in 2013. Despite the slight
improvement in global metal prices in the second half of 2013, the
overall result of the Group for the whole year remained in a loss position.
Despite various world economic data released in recent months showing
a modest stabilizing bias on world economy, new events have emerged,
including the political turmoil in Ukraine, the global metal market
continued to be volatile (especially in the first half of March 2014).
Thus, the management continues to be cautiously optimistic about the
Group's performance in the coming year.

In 2013, the Group continued to face challenges arising from difficult
business environment including highly volatile global metal market,
anticipated slower economic growth in the PRC and the economic
impact created from the rein in the stimulus program by the United
States. During the year, the Group's revenue decreased from HK$8.2
billion in 2012 to HK$7.2 billion, representing a decrease of 12.2%. The
gross loss of HK$23.8 million recorded during the year was due to the
adverse impact of the prolonged volatility and the overall downward
movement of the global metal prices throughout the year. The
prolonged volatility and the overall downward movement of commodity
prices had a negative impact on gross margin of the Group in 2013. As
for the loss for the year, the Group recorded a loss attributable to the
owners of the Company of HK$382.9 million, when compared to the
profit attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$88.6 million
recorded in 2012. Loss on fair value changes of derivative financial
instruments of HK$215.9 million was recognised in 2013, which was
significantly reduced from approximately HK$626.9 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2013 by HK$411.0 million.

With a number of unforeseen circumstances impacting global supply of
scrap materials, the Group experienced a reduction of scrap materials
purchased. During the year, the reduction in mixed metal scrap supply
was seen in the region of 10 — 15% when compared with last year. The
Group sold in aggregate over 697,800 tonnes of processed products
within its three business segments throughout the year. This represented
a decrease of 3.6% when compared to 723,600 tonnes in 2012.

During the year, the Group continued to follow its usual practices of
consistently buying mixed metal scrap and selling its recycled products
in accordance with its processing ability so as to mitigate the short-term
impact of price volatility on the overall performance of the Group.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRED T (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

With regard to the legal proceedings in the PRC involving Shanghai
Chiho-Tiande Resource Recycling Co., Limited (“the Shanghai JV"), the
Baoshan People’s Court has delivered the judgment (the “Judgment”)
in relation to the claim brought by Shanghai Science and Technology
Co., Ltd. (“the lessor”) against the Shanghai JV and the counterclaim by
the Shanghai JV against the lessor on 25 December 2013. The details
of the orders made by the Baoshan People’s Court are disclosed in
the announcement dated 15 January 2014. Both the Shanghai JV and
the lessor have applied to the Second Intermediate People’s Court of
Shanghai for an appeal against the Judgment.

The Board take the view that the legal proceedings will not have any
material adverse effect on the business, operations or financial results
of the Group. The Company will keep its shareholders and the investors
informed of the development of the legal proceedings as and when
appropriate.

Basic loss per share attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$0.37 in 2013 (2012: Earnings per share HK$0.08).

Our Procurement Network

The Group is the largest importer of mixed metal scrap used for
recycling, reuse and processing in terms of the total import volume as
approved by the Ministry of Environmental Protection in the PRC. The
Group imports nearly all of our mixed metal scrap and has, over the
years, developed a strong international procurement network which
covers Europe, North America, Oceania and Asia. Our network of
suppliers was mostly established and developed by the Group leveraging
on its experience in the industry. With our good business practices, we
have enjoyed good business relationship with the suppliers over the
years.

Corporate and Business Development

Following the establishment of our Hong Kong operations in 2012,
the Group’s Hong Kong operations together with the Hong Kong joint
venture company have established a strong presence in Hong Kong with
a rapid increase in local market share. The Group is now in a well-placed
position to establish a more diversified scrap metal and electronic waste
processing platform in Hong Kong. We are confident that the Hong
Kong facility will eventually become an important contributor to the
overall performance of the Group.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEEN®R D (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Corporate and Business Development (continued)

With regard to the investment in establishing new processing facilities
in the Development Zone in Yantai City, PRC, we are now close to
completing the first stage of the development and the new processing
facilities are expected to become partially operational in the first half of
2014.

Going forward, we remain committed to further expanding our
processing capability, and at the same time improving our profitability
and return on equity. Our focus will continue to cover our existing
facilities including Taizhou, Ningbo and Hong Kong. We will continue to
be on the lookout for any potential opportunity, especially the activities
within the scrap metal resources supply chain in the PRC.

Social Responsibilities

On the environmental protection front, we continued placing great
emphasis on ensuring that all of our processing facilities are in line with
local and national environmental protection standards.

With the changes in the evaluation process by the Environmental
Protection Department of Zhejiang Province (#I/T & IRE(RERE) in 2013,
our Taizhou facilities have once again passed the evaluation process
as designated processing units for imported metal scraps recycling
and utilization in Zhejiang Province. Our production processes did not
consume large volumes of electricity and water and therefore produced
very small volumes of waste materials. We consider that we have
adopted sufficient environmental protection measures and controls
against air, water, solids and noise pollutions produced during the
course of our production process.

Prospects

With the continued emphasis of support from the PRC Government to
develop the recycling industry, we are confident that the metal recycling
industry in the PRC will continue to grow and will become an important
source and an integral part of the metal resources supply chain of the
PRC in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRED T (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Prospects (continued)

Given that metal recycling industry contributes significantly to the
protection of environment and to the preservation of valuable natural
resources, we continue to place heavy emphasis on our procurement
volume to ensure that it is in line with our processing needs and to
cater for our expansion strategy for scrap materials in the PRC. With
this in mind and in accordance with our expansion strategy, the Group
is aiming to procure 52,000 to 62,000 tonnes of mixed metal scrap
materials per month to cater for its processing needs. This purchase
volume is expected to increase as the Group continues to expand. The
management will continue making efforts to capitalise on such direction
in achieving satisfactory returns to the shareholders of the Company.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue decreased by approximately HK$1.0 billion, or 12.2%, from
HK$8.2 billion in 2012 to HK$7.2 billion in the year. The decrease was
mainly contributed by a decrease in sales volume as well as average
selling prices for our recycled metal products and foundry products.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales decreased by approximately HK$0.8 billion, or 10.0%, from
HK$8.0 billion in 2012 to HK$7.2 billion in the year. The decrease is in
line with the decrease in revenue and primarily due to a decrease in sales
volume and reduction in the average purchase prices of raw materials.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross loss of approximately HK$23.8 million was recorded when
compared to a gross profit of HK$171.4 million in 2012. The gross loss
was due to the continuous decrease in commodity prices in 2013.

Distribution and selling expenses

Distribution and selling expenses increased by approximately HK$2.0
million, or 6.0%, from HK$33.5 million in 2012 to HK$35.5 million in
the year. This was mainly due to increase in selling activities in Hong
Kong during the year.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEEN®R D (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Administrative and other expenses

Administrative and other expenses decreased by approximately HK$54.2
million, or 28.9%, from HK$187.5 million in 2012 to HK$133.3 million
in the year. This was mainly due to the cessation of business activities in
the Shanghai facility and the decrease in share-option expenses during
the year.

Other income

Other income increased by approximately HK$22.2 million, or 103.3%,
from HK$21.5 million in 2012 to HK$43.7 million in the year. This was
mainly due to government grants received during the year.

Other gains and losses

Other gains and losses decreased by approximately HK$333.4 million
from HK$272.8 million in 2012 to a loss of HK$60.6 million in the year.
This was mainly due to loss on fair value changes of derivative financial
instruments of approximately HK$215.9 million when compared to
a gain on fair value changes of derivative financial instruments of
approximately HK$215.0 million in the previous year.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by approximately HK$0.4 million, or 0.2%,
from HK$172.7 million in 2012 to HK$172.3 million in the year. This
was mainly due to decrease in interest expenses from bank borrowings
during the year.

Loss/Profit for the year

As a result of the factors mentioned above, the Company incurred a loss
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year of HK$382.9
million, when compared to a profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of HK$88.6 million in 2012. The decrease was mainly due to
an adverse impact of the decrease in global metal prices and the loss on
fair value changes of derivatives financial instruments when the Group
is required to make under the “mark-to-market” accounting principle.

B EI 8 (48)
THREMEX
17 B X E A B9 2Rk 42 4954,200,0007% JT 3k
28.9% * A=Z— Z4F Y 187,500,000 7 LR
ZEAREER 133,300,000/ TERAR L
R ES TR R E R FNERERASTRD -

Hiug A
E bk A3 IN4) 22,200,000 708 103.3%
B =T — 421,500,000/ T £ A FE H)
43,700,000 7T + £ Z2EHNERWEIERTH
ALFTER -

Hihlh R R EE

H Y s K &5 1R R 4> 49 333,400,000 8 7T+ M
— =T — ~ 4 #)272,800,00078 JL I £ F N E
$60,600,00078 7T * T EEHNEEFITE
R T B AT EZB UL 215,000,000 %
THEEERTASRM T AEATFEEZHEIEL
215,900,000 8 JTFTEL ©

B R AR

B 75 Ak 258 4 49 400,00078 7586 0.2% - B —
L — —F#/)172,700,000F LB E A FER
172,300,000 7T * T EMNFARBIRITHE
BRSSP o

FEREEEF

EREiRE  ARBESFNEAQREE A
(5 E518 382,900,000 7T T — & — —F 8%
1S A RHEA AE(E R F188,600,000 7T B
HREEZARERESBER RO E
RASEERE MEE T RAVEL NI
FERT AR ESBEIBR -

BaXtEEERAT —T-ZFFRK




Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Key Financial Ratios

The following table sets forth certain of our financial ratios as of the date
for the periods indicated:

BrF5 IR (48)
BARERA B L

TREFURHR B MRRAR D E ToS
o

At 31
December
2012
R-T—_4F
Liquidity Ratios REESEE +=—F=+—8”
Current ratio mEN L 1.96
Quick ratio RELE = 0.66
Gearing ratio (%) BEAGBLE(%) 51.1
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLEFE
2012
—E——F
Inventory turnover days FEREBREH 141
Debtor’s turnover days FEM R B B # 11
Creditor’s turnover days FERTEREEE B & 10

Liquidity and Financial Resources and Capital Structure
Included in net current assets were cash and various bank deposits
totaling HK$588.3 million (2012: HK$598.4 million). Total borrowings
were HK$2.0 billion (2012: HK$1.9 billion), and these were mainly
used to finance the purchases of mixed metal scrap from overseas.
Such borrowings are mainly denominated in United States dollars and
Renminbi.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2013 was 55.3%
(2012: 51.1%).

Debtor’s turnover days increased from 11 days for the year ended 31
December 2012 to 12 days for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
the creditor’s turnover days decreased from 10 days for the year ended
31 December 2012 to 6 days for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Liquidity and Financial Resources and Capital Structure
(continued)

Inventory turnover days decreased from 141 days for the year ended 31
December 2012 to 140 days for the year ended 31 December 2013.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT

LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, we had pledged certain buildings, land use
rights, investment properties and bank deposits with an aggregate
carrying value of approximately HK$447.6 million (2012: approximately
HK$367.6 million) to secure bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2013, we had capital commitments in respect of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment but not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements amounted to HK$82.2 million (2012:
HK$12.0 million).

As at the date of this report, the Board is not aware of any material
contingent liabilities.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Our Group in its ordinary course of business is exposed to market risk
such as commodities price risk, foreign currencies risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Our risk management strategy aims to
minimize the adverse effects of these risks on its financial performance.

The Company has established a Pricing Committee and adopted a
hedging policy (the “Hedging Policy”) which aimed to enhance the
Group's risk management of commodity price fluctuations. The Hedging
Policy sets out, among other things, the target inventory turnover days
that the Group aims to achieve under normal circumstances and market
conditions, and provides that the Board must approve any change to
the inventory turnover day criteria. The Hedging Policy also requires the
Board to obtain professional advice on the current and future market
outlook of the commodities market if the target inventory turnover days
could not be met.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Following a recent review of the historical inventory turnover days of
the Group, the Board noted that the historical inventory turnover days
were, in practice, longer than the then target inventory turnover days of
90 days because of various practical reasons, including seasonal factors
and prevailing market conditions. The Board considered it unrealistic
to maintain the then target inventory turnover days of 90 days, and
that the Board should be given discretion to determine whether it is
necessary for the Board to engage and seek relevant professional advice.
The Board has therefore resolved to amend the Hedging Policy such
that:

(@)  the target inventory turnover days is now changed from 90 days
to 160 days;

(b) any change to the inventory turnover day criteria (i.e. if the
inventory turnover days are more than 160 days) will require
approval by the Board in accordance with the terms of the
Hedging Policy, save that no such approval is required if the target
inventory turnover days are not achieved in January and February
owing to the intervening Chinese New Year holiday; and

(©) in the event that the commodity market experiences a sustained
and sharp decline in prices that are likely to cause a lengthening
in the inventory turnover days, the Board may consider engaging
and seeking relevant professional firms to advise it on the current
and future market outlook of the commodities market.

With regard to foreign currency risk management, we continued
borrowing in United States dollars borrowings by securing Renminbi
deposits in order to take advantage of the favourable exchange rate. We
will continue using this hedging strategy so long as the exchange rate
justifies it.

With the current interest rates staying at relatively low levels, we have
not entered into any interest rate hedging contracts or any other interest
rate related derivative financial instrument. However, we continue
to monitor its related interest rate exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure when the need arises.

As for credit risk, we continue to follow the trade practices of cash on
collection from sales of all of its metal recycling products in order to
minimize the carrying amounts of the financial assets in our Group's
financial statements. In addition, we will continue to monitor closely the
trade debtors for the Foundry business to minimize potential impairment
losses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

With the liquidity risk, we will continue maintaining a balance between
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use of bank
borrowings.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2013, we had a workforce of 591 employees. In
addition, we engaged approximately 3,041 separation and selection
workers through local recognized contractors. We have not experienced
any strikes, work stoppages or significant labor disputes which have
affected its operations in the past. We have not experienced any
significant difficulties in recruiting and retaining qualified staff. We
continue to maintain good relationships with our employees.

THE REMUNERATION POLICY

We remunerate employees based on their performance, experience and
prevailing industry practices so as to retain competent employees. In
addition to benefits normally provided in line with industry practices,
the Company also has a share option scheme in place for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible persons including employees
of Group companies for their contributions to the long term success of
our Group.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, 19,150,000 share
options were granted under the Post-IPO share option scheme.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fang Ankong (75 & Z8), aged 48, is an Executive Director, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”). Mr. Fang Ankong was appointed as an
Executive Director on 15 May 2008. Mr. Fang serves as a Chairman
of the Executive Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Pricing Committee of the Company and he is also a
Director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Fang Ankong is also
one of the founders of the Group. Mr. Fang Ankong founded the
Group in 1999 and has over 19 years of experience in the business of
metallurgy and metal scrap recycling. Mr. Fang Ankong is primarily
responsible for setting corporate strategy and planning, and overall
management of the Group. Prior to founding the Group, Mr. Fang
Ankong has been engaged in the import and trading of metals scrap.
From 1995, Mr. Fang Ankong was a shareholder of Tianan Resources,
a company engaged in the importing of metal scrap into China and
recycling of metal scrap, and also participated in the operation and
management of Tianan Resources. Tianan Resources was deregistered in
2002.

Mr. Fang Ankong is the younger brother of Ms. Fang Aiping and elder
brother of Mr. Fang Anlin, who are both Vice President of the Group.
Mr. Fang Ankong is also the brother-in-law of Mr. Ding Guopei, the
Senior Vice President of the Group. Mr. Fang Ankong is also the younger
brother of the father-in-law of Mr. Zhu Zhonghui, the manager of the
sales and marketing department of the Group.

Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen, aged 51, is an Executive Director,
Vice President and one of the founders of the Group. He was appointed
as an Executive Director on 15 May 2008. He serves as a member of
the Executive Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. van QOoijen is primarily in charge of
corporate strategy and planning with focus on the Group’s import
functions and has over 16 years of experience. Mr. van Ooijen obtained
a diploma in 1985 from Hogere Agrarische Scholen van de Katholieke
Nederlandse Boeren-en Tuindersbond ‘S-Hertogenbosch (Higher
Agricultural Schools of the Catholic Dutch Farmers and Gardeners Union
of 'S-Hertogenbosch) in the Netherlands. Mr. van Qoijen is the sole
shareholder and has been appointed as the director of SVO Company
B.V. since 30 September 1993. He was also the director of Delco
Participation B.V. from 2 November 2000 until 23 April 2008.
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Mr. Gu Liyong (BZE), aged 51, is an Executive Director and Vice
President of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive Director on 28
August 2008. Mr. Gu serves as a member of the Executive Committee
of the Company and he is also a Director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. He is primarily responsible for operational and financial activities
and has over 28 years of experience in the industry. Mr. Gu graduated
from Shanghai University of Technology (/8T % X2 in 1984 with a
Bachelor’s degree in Engineering and majoring in steel making from the
Department of Metallurgy. He worked at China Resources Reclamation
Corp., East China Co. (FEIMEBAFABHEARERATF]), a company
for recycling and trading ferrous metal (such as steel and iron) and non-
ferrous metal (such as copper, aluminium, lead and tin) and plastic scrap
in the East China region, for at least 10 years and started his career in
the management and operation of domestic and international recycling
business. He was a manager for the import and export department and
an assistant to general manager in China Resources Reclamation Corp.,
East China Co., and was responsible for managing the procurement of
metal scrap from overseas and reselling to their customers. Mr. Gu has
extensive experience in the recycling of different resources, including
metals and other scrap materials. Since he joined the Group in 1999,
Mr. Gu has been responsible for the import and export businesses of the
Group by utilising his professional knowledge in the recycling resources
business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Michael Charles Lion, aged 64, is a Non-Executive Director. He
was appointed as a Non-Executive Director on 17 January 2012. He
serves as a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. He has a
career of over 41 years in the international non-ferrous metals industry,
including pioneering the development of China and other Asian
markets as consumers of international non-ferrous scrap in the early
1970s. He has been working with SMM Asia, being a wholly-owned
Hong Kong subsidiary of SMM, for 16 years and is the Chairman and a
Director of SMM Asia. SMM Asia is engaged in the global international
marketing and trading of SMM’s owned and brokered non-ferrous
scrap, nonferrous by-products and primary metals. From 1967 to 1986,
he was a partner in Philipp and Lion Partnership; from 1986 to 1991, he
was the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Philipp and Lion Group
Ltd., and from 1997, he has been the President of Lion Consulting
Inc.. As a founding member of the London Metals Exchange secondary
aluminium sub-committee, he currently serves as chairman of the
Bureau of International Recycling (“BIR”) Membership committee and a
member of its Advisory and Executive boards. He was the president of
the former British Secondary Metals Association and the president of the
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Nonferrous Division of BIR. He is a frequent speaker and contributor of
articles at global industry events such as Metal Bulletin, IWCC and CRU,
Cessco gatherings, on the topics of nonferrous metals and hedging.
He graduated from Haileybury and Imperial Service College in 1963,
and has a certificate of Former Ring Dealing Member of London Metals
Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Zhang Jingdong (E#X), aged 68, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director. She joined the Group on 23 June 2010. Ms. Zhang is
also a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. She was the vice-secretary-
general of Financial Trust Association of Zhejiang Province (#/ T4
S EEILEHE) before joining our Group and she served as chief,
general manager and independent director and held various positions
in various Chinese banking and corporate finance sectors including the
People’s Bank of China Heilongjiang Branch (FEARBITREETE S
77), Financial Intermediation Centre of Zhejiang Province (#1iT4 &< &t
i@y, and office of Hangzhou Financial Supervision of People’s Bank
of China Shanghai Branch (Bl A RIRTT LES TN S REE RN E).

Ms. Zhang holds a master’s degree in Economic Management (487 % 12)
from the Academy of Social Sciences of Hei Longjiang (28T &1 &k
2h5).

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam (B£3§#£), aged 64, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director. He was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director on 23 June 2010. Dr. Loke serves as the Chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr. Loke has over
38 years of experience in accounting and auditing for private and
public companies, financial consultancy and corporate management.
He holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Universiti
Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration degree from
University of South Australia. He is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales; Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants; The Hong Kong Institute of Directors; and The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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He is currently the company secretary of Minth Group Limited and serves
as an independent non-executive director of the following companies
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange: Vodone Limited, Matrix
Holdings Limited, Sino Distillery Group Limited, China Fire Safety
Enterprise Group Limited, Winfair Investment Company Limited, SCUD
Group Limited, Zhong An Real Estate Limited, Tianjin Development
Holdings Limited and China Household Holdings Limited.

Mr. Li Xikui (Z$%), aged 69, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director. He joined the Group on 23 June 2010. Mr. Li serves as
a member of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Li obtained a Bachelor’s
degree majoring in foreign trade (9MN& 5% %) from Dongbei University
of Finance and Economics (RILEF&EKE) (formerly known as Liaoning
Finance and Economics College (EZBI4¢5Fr)) in August 1970 and a
master diploma in finance from Research Institute for Fiscal Science of
Ministry of Finance (8 ExED8A IR Z2EHITAT) in July 1982.

Mr. Li became the Researcher (1% &) of China Construction Bank (4 &l
JEFRERTT) in 1993. He has been receiving a special allowance granted by
the State Council (E97Fz) since 1992.

Mr. Li was appointed as the vice president of the head office (4778117
) of China Construction Bank (FEI#E:&E77) in 1985 and 1988; the
vice president (&|42%k) of China Galaxy Securities Company (# B 1 7%
%2 7]). Since February 2006, he has been the chairman of the board
(2= FK) of Galaxy Asset Management Co., Ltd GRAEESEEAF]). Mr.
Li currently serves as an independent non-executive director of China
Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. which listed on the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chow Wan Hoi Paul (AZ§), aged 58, is the Qualified
Accountant and Chief Financial Officer of the Group. He joined the
Group in June 2009 as chief financial officer with responsibility for
overall financial matters of the Group. Mr. Chow has significant
experience in accounting and finance. He is an associate of both the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia. He is also a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chow
currently serves as an independent non-executive director of Associated
International Hotels Limited (Stock code: 0105) and Tian Teck Land
Limited (Stock code: 0266), companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Ding Guopei (T Bl#%), aged 51, is the Senior Vice President of the
Group, the General Manager, Director and Vice-Chairman of Taizhou
Chiho-Tiande Metals Company Limited and Taizhou Chiho-Tiande
Foundry Company Limited. Mr. Ding has over 15 years of experience in
the industry and joined the Group in December 1999. Prior to joining
the Group, he was a trader principally engaged in the metal recycling
industry. Mr. Ding obtained a diploma majoring in International
Economics and Trade from the Faculty of Business from Ningbo
University in 2002.

Mr. Ding successively worked as Vice-Chairman of China Nonferrous
Metals Industry Association Recycling Metal Branch in November 2004,
Chairman of Association of Resources Comprehensive Utilization of
Taizhou City in June 2005, and executive director of China Entry-
Exit Inspection and Quarantine Association in April 2006. He has
been chosen as a member of the third session Standing Committee
of Lu Qiao District People’s Congress in December 2006, the second
session outstanding builders of Taizhou City of the socialism with
Chinese characteristic in February 2007, and was awarded the Top 10
Contribution to the China Metal Recycling Industry Award in October
2007. He was also been the Vice-Chairman of the Zhejiang Association
of Solid Waste Recycle and Disposal in May 2008. He has been chosen
as NPC deputies of Taizhou in January 2011. Mr. Ding held the post
of Vice-Chairman of Zhejiang Provincial Environment Monitoring
Association in August 2011, he has been chosen as the representative
of Fourth People’s Congress of Lu Qiao District and a member of the
fourth session Standing Committee of Lu Qiao District People’s Congress
in March 2012 and held the post of Vice-Chairman of Taizhou City
Federation of Industry and Commerce in November 2012. Mr. Ding is
the brother-in-law of Mr. Fang Ankong and Mr. Fang Anlin, and the
husband of Ms. Fang Aiping.

Ms. Fang Aiping (75 E3¥), aged 50, is the Vice President of the Group,
and the Financial Vice-General Manager of Taizhou Chiho-Tiande
Metals Company Limited and Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Foundry Company
Limited. She is primarily responsible for the subsidiaries’ overall financial
planning, financial reporting and budgeting as well as implementing
our Group's business strategies. Ms. Fang Aiping joined our Group since
December 1999. Ms. Fang Aiping has more than 14 years of experience
in financial management. Ms. Fang Aiping is the elder sister of Mr. Fang
Ankong and Mr. Fang Anlin. She is the wife of Mr. Ding Guopei.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
BEENGSHREBAEERE (&)

Mr. Fang Anlin (J3 Z#k), aged 45, is the Vice President of the Group,
and the Vice-General Manager of Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Metals
Company Limited and Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Foundry Company Limited.
He is also a Director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He is primarily
responsible for the production of the subsidiaries. Mr. Fang Anlin joined
the Group in December 1999 and has over 19 years of experience in the
business of mixed metal scrap. Since Mr. Fang Anlin joined the Group,
Mr. Fang Anlin has been responsible for overseeing the production of
recycled metal products. Mr. Fang Anlin is the younger brother of Mr.
Fang Ankong and Ms. Fang Aiping. Mr. Fang Anlin is also the brother-
in-law of Mr. Ding Guopei.

Mr. Cai Haifeng (E53i£), aged 42, is the Vice President of the Group
and the General Manager of Chiho-Tiande (Ningbo) Metals Recycling
Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Cai graduated from
Zhejiang Polytechnic University (4T T2 K2) with a Bachelor's degree
in Fine Chemical Engineering in 1993. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Cai worked for Zhejiang Dong Da Ji Tuan Company (/TR A%
E A 7]), a company whose business involves the import and export
agency business, as an assistant manager in the business development
department responsible for metal scrap import business. He joined the
Group in May 2000.

Mr. Gan Jun (HE), aged 44, is the assistant to the Chief Executive
Officer and Finance Manager of the Group. Mr. Gan joined our Group in
September 2007 and he is also a Director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. He holds a diploma of Accountancy in Southwestern University
of Finance and Economics (FaFg 8148 KX 22). Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Gan worked as the financial manager and the assistant to the general
manager in Guangdong Gentle Technology Company Limited (E & IFi&
BHEAER2AA]), an information technology application provider ({585
fiir FE FABR 7% 75), for more than a year. Mr. Gan has extensive experience
in the accounting and finance field, and he is also a certified public
accountant and registered tax adviser in China.

Mr. Xu Jialiang (RFNR), aged 50, is the manager of the procurement
department of the Group and is primarily responsible for procuring raw
material supply of the Group. Mr. Xu joined the Group in December
1999 and was responsible for the procurement of mixed metal
scrap. Mr. Xu has over 13 years of experience in mixed metal scrap
procurement.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

ESNSREEABREE (&)

Mr. Zhu Zhonghui (5 818), aged 35, is the manager of the sales and
marketing department of the Group and is primarily responsible for the
sales management of the Group. Mr. Zhu joined the Group in December
1999 and was responsible for the selling of recycled metal products. Mr.
Zhu is the son-in-law of the elder brother of Mr. Fang Ankong.

Mr. Xu Jun (#%B&), aged 36, is the Head of Investor Relations of the
Group and he joined the Group in September 2010 as Vice Head
of Investor Relations, and promoted to Head of Investor Relations
in December 2010. Mr. Xu is graduated from Shanghai Jiaotong
University (_£/83238K2) with a Bachelor’s degree in Dynamic & Energy
Engineering in 2000. In 2003, he is graduated from New York Institute
of Technology with a Master degree in Business Administration. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Xu has worked for Alcatel Shanghai Bell Limited
(EEEmMMBREFABRAR) as the Sales & Bid Director of overseas
market; the Head of Investment Banking of Great China for Hongjing
REFRER (28 BRA
7)) and the Executive Director for Shanghai Jingshun Equity Investment
Limited (E/8 RIERER EGRLQF).

Bangxun Information (Shanghai) Limited (
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Directors’ Report
ESEHRE

The Directors present the audited consolidated financial statements for
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the Group on page 93.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors did not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

BORROWINGS
Details of the borrowings are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Company
repurchased 406,000 ordinary shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited at an aggregate consideration of HK$1,323,905.27.
The repurchase was effected by the Directors for the enhancement of
shareholders’ value. Details of the repurchase is as follows:

Total number

BE - HEIBEEARQ T KRG

HE T =—F+-_A=Z+—HUIHKREE
N ARARIEBBHAERZIMBRARFEE
406,000 I Eimps - B8 {EA1,323,905.27 %
JL o BEEBERMEERARREE - BEF
BT

Month of the of the ordinary Highest price Lowest price Aggregate
repurchase shares repurchased paid per share paid per share consideration
BE A% BEOEEREY RRERESE R ERRIEE BRE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B BT
June 2013 —2—=%7HA 406,000 3.28 3.20 1,323,905.27
Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its B FXXIRTEESN - ERNARA T RETEAHEQ

subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities
of the Company during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the law of Cayman Islands being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholder.

RESERVES
Details of the movement in reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at 31 December 2013, the distribution reserve of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$1,201,539,000.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DONATIONS

The donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$392,003 (2012: HK$474,845).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2013, the Group's largest supplier accounted for 12.6% (2012:
10.6%) of the total purchases. The five largest suppliers comprised
32.9% (2012: 36.5%) of the total purchases.

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were
less than 30% of total revenue in 2013 and 2012.

Apart from Sims Metal Management Asia Limited which indirectly
holds approximately 15.95% of the Company’s share capital and is
the Group’s largest supplier, none of the Directors of the Company or
any of their respective associates or any shareholder of the Company
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s other
four largest suppliers or five largest customers during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the Company’s business were entered into or subsisted during the year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements also constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Company and
are required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The following transactions are the connected transactions
between the connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the
Company, certain of which are ongoing. The Company has complied
with all the applicable requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in respect of the following transactions:

1. Continuing connected transactions in relation to

the master supply agreement for the purchase of
scrap metals from De Leeuw Metalen B.V.
On 21 March 2012, the Company entered into the master supply
agreement (the “Master Supply Agreement”) with De Leeuw
Metalen B.V. (the “Supplier”), pursuant to which the relevant
member(s) of the Group may purchase from the Supplier certain
products including scrap metals at prevailing market prices during
the term between 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2014. The
aggregate values of the transactions between the Group and
the Supplier under the Master Supply Agreement in the relevant
financial years of the Company during the term are capped at the
following annual caps:

Relevant financial years of
the Company during the term
RERAERRBAEBYREE

BEXSZRIFERERS

RiFE M MRN8 BN E THET R
HMERARBNREERF RS EMELS -
BIRIR EHRAIE 1AABERTE TLARKE - T
FIMBEA L (EZ R LMARA) BARBETL
MR ZTRERS  EPE T NEET -
ARBERATRHET EHRANE 14ATR
FrEERBE

1. B HDe Leeuw Metalen B.V. &
BeBzIHERB2BERERS

MW-_T——F=H_-+—0 AQFHE
De Leeuw Metalen B.V. ([ /&R |) 5137
FHERR ([ EHERBRE]) - Bt &
SEABNEARNIR_ZZE—=F—A
—HEZT—NF+ZA=+—HI1tZ
HRWEBITMEBRERRERERE
CBEANZETEM - ASBEMER
FERBR A AR AR B BRI =
HEBBRETRHZBRENUTIEE L
R A LB

Annual caps

FELR

1 January 2012 — 31 December 2012

T —F—A-HE-_ZT——F+-A=+—H

1 January 2013 — 31 December 2013

2 =F—-R—HEZE—=F+=ZRA=+—H

1 January 2014 - 31 December 2014
—mFE-A-BE=Z-NE+-A=+—H
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

1.

Continuing connected transactions in relation to
the master supply agreement for the purchase
of scrap metals from De Leeuw Metalen B.V.

(continued)

As the Supplier is majority-owned by one of the sons of Mr.
Herman Maurits de Leeuw (“Mr. de Leeuw"”), a controlling
shareholder of the Company, the Supplier is an associate of a
controlling shareholder of the Company under Rule 14A.11(4)
(b)(ii) of the Listing Rules and hence a connected person of the
Company. The transactions contemplated under the Master
Supply Agreement therefore constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
annual caps were more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the Master
Supply Agreement was subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements but was exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing
Rules.

Continuing connected transactions in relation to
the new master purchase agreement with Sims

Metal Management Asia Limited (“Sims Asia")

In order to renew the existing arrangements under the old
master purchase agreement dated 16 February 2012 between
the Company and Sims Asia, on 28 March 2012, the Company
entered into the new master purchase agreement (the “New
Master Purchase Agreement”) with Sims Asia pursuant to
which the relevant member(s) of Sims Asia, its subsidiaries and
associates (the “Sims Asia Group”) may purchase from the
relevant member(s) of the Group certain products including
copper scrap at prevailing market prices for the term of three
years from 1 June 2012 to 31 May 2015. The aggregate values
of the transactions between the Group and the Sims Asia Group
under the New Master Purchase Agreement in the relevant periods
during the term are capped at the following annual caps:

BEXSZRIFERERS (&)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

2.

Continuing connected transactions in relation to
the new master purchase agreement with Sims
Metal Management Asia Limited (“Sims Asia”)
(continued)

Relevant periods during the term

RER A AEEI AR

zpCd

BRXZRISEBERS ()

5 B ESims Metal Management
Asia Limited ([ Sims Asia]) BT £
BBz HERERS (F)

Annual caps

FEER

1 June 2012 — 31 December 2012
—ERA-RAEZZ——H+-A=+—H
1 January 2013 — 31 December 2013
—E-=F5-A-HE-Z-—=F+-A=1—H
1 January 2014 - 31 December 2014
—MFE-A—HEZZT-WNF+ZA=+—H
1 January 2015 -31 May 2015
—hFE-A—BE_ZT-—hFLA=1+—H

Sims Asia is the intermediate holding company of Sims Metal
Management Dragon Holdings Limited (“Sims”) which holds
approximately 15.95% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Therefore, Sims Asia is a substantial shareholder and
hence a connected person of the Company. The transactions
contemplated under the New Master Purchase Agreement
therefore constituted continuing connected transactions for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the
applicable percentage ratios in respect of the annual caps are
more than 5%, the transactions contemplated under the New
Master Purchase Agreement constituted non-exempt continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.35 of
the Listing Rules and the New Master Purchase Agreement was
therefore subject to the reporting, announcement, annual review
and the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

3.

Continuing connected transactions in relation to
the new master supply agreement for the purchase
of scrap metals from Sims Asia

In order to renew the then existing arrangements under the old
master supply agreement dated 16 January 2012 entered into
between the Company and Sims Asia, on 15 November 2012,
the Company entered into the new master supply agreement (the
“New Master Supply Agreement”) with Sims Asia pursuant to
which the relevant member(s) of the Group may purchase from
the relevant member(s) of the Sims Asia Group certain products
including scrap metals at prevailing market prices for the term
of three years from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015. The
aggregate values of the transactions between the Group and the
Sims Asia Group under the New Master Supply Agreement in
the relevant periods during the term are capped at the following
annual caps:

Relevant periods during the term

RER A AEES SR

BEXSZRIFERERS (&)

BEESIms AsialRBEESENFEH
EREzSERERS

BIEERA R Sims Asiat =T ——4F
— A+ RNBFINZREREBRBZETERE
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Annual caps

FELR

1 January 2013 — 31 December 2013
—E-=ZF—A—HBE-ZT—=-F+-A=+—H
1 January 2014 — 31 December 2014
—E-NMF—-A—HEZT-WNF+-_A=+—H
1 January 2015 — 31 December 2015
—E-RFE-A-HEZ-RAF+-A=+—H

For the reasons set out in paragraph (2) above, Sims Asia is
a connected person of the Company and the transactions
contemplated under the New Master Supply Agreement therefore
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the applicable
percentage ratios in respect of the annual caps were more than
5%, the transactions contemplated under the New Master
Supply Agreement constituted non-exempt continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.35 of the Listing
Rules. The New Master Supply Agreement was therefore
subject to the reporting, announcement, annual review and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

US$200 million (approximately HK$1,560 million)

200,000,000 %7t (#71,560,000,000 7% 7T )

US$350 million (approximately HK$2,730 million)

350,000,000 7T (#]2,730,000,000 % 7T )

US$500 million (approximately HK$3,900 million)

500,000,000 27T (%9 3,900,000,000 7 7T )
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Review by Independent Non-executive Directors and
the auditor of the Company

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above not falling
under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules have been reviewed by the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company who have
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

2. either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties; and

3. in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has
issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the abovementioned continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Review by Independent Non-executive Directors and
the auditor of the Company (continued)

In addition, pursuant to a consultancy agreement (the “Consultancy
Agreement”) dated 29 August 2008 entered into between the
Company and H.P.L. Metals B.V. (“HPL Metals"”), the Group has paid
an aggregate amount of HK$419,789.94 as business consultancy fees
to HPL Metals for the year ended 31 December 2013. Given that HPL
Metals is wholly-owned by Stichting Beheer Aandelen H.P.L. Metals, a
foundation for the sole benefit of Mr. de Leeuw and Mr. de Leeuw is
a controlling shareholder of the Company, HPL Metals is an associate
of Mr. de Leeuw and hence a connected person of the Company,
the transactions contemplated under the Consultancy Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Rule 14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules which are fully exempt from the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of the
Report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fang Ankong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen (Vice President)

Mr. Gu Liyong (Vice President)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Michael Charles Lion

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Loke Yu

Ms. Zhang Jingdong

Mr. Li Xikui

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Fang
Ankong, Mr. Gu Liyong and Ms. Zhang Jingdong shall retire from office,
and being eligible offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into service contracts with Mr. Fang Ankong,
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen, Mr. Gu Liyong, Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Zhang
Jingdong and Mr. Li Xikui on 24 June 2013 for a period of three years.
On 27 March 2012, the Company entered into another appointment
letter with Mr. Michael Charles Lion for a term of 3 years commencing
from 24 May 2012 to 23 May 2015. None of the Directors of the
Company proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has any service contract with the Company and or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its
holding companies was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS
As at the financial year ended 31 December 2013, none of the Directors
of the Company has interests in businesses which compete or are likely
to compete either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has two share option schemes namely, the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme which were
adopted on 23 June 2010.

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) on 23 June 2010 under
which the Company has conditionally granted options to certain
Directors, executives and employees of the Group to purchase
shares of the Company with an exercise price equal to the offer
price as defined in the Prospectus.

The total number of shares in respect of which share
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as
at 31 December 2013 was 12,140,000 which represented
approximately 1.16% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 December 2013.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
As at 31 December 2013, details of the share option granted

BB st 8l (58)
(a) BERLBBEABRRESS (E)
R—ZT—=ZF+-A=+—08 " REa

under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows: RN EE AR ARE 5T 81 P % L eV B AR
BT
Number of
shares subject
Number of to outstanding
shares subject options as at
Exercisable ~to outstanding Number of 31 December
Date of Grant  Exercise period  options as at Number of options Number of 2013
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per (dd/mm/yyyy) 1January 2013 options granted exercised options lapsed  R=F-=%  Approximate
(Note?)  share Note2) M-B-=% during during duing T=ZA=1+-H  percentage
RHAH (HKS) %8 -B-AHA the year the year theyear  H&{THZ shareholdings
(B/R/%) BRIRE (B/B/%) fikzBRES ERREL ERTR FR%R BRESRZ R
(MzE1) (&) (h2)  ReBHEAE BREHE BREHE BREHE RHEE BREMH
23/06/2010 243 130772012 - 12/07/2013 1,050,000 0 0 1,050,000 0 -
I%-%F ZB-TELATERE
~AZtT=R TE-ZEEATCRA
13/07/2013 - 121072014 1,400,000 0 0 0 1,400,000 0.13402%
ZE-CELRTZRR
“E-mELATZA
2,450,000 0 0 1,050,000 1,400,000 0.13402%
23/06/2010 243 1300772012 - 12/07/2013 300,000 0 0 300,000 0 -
5% ZE-CEATERZ
~AZTZH “T-CELATCR
13/07/2013 - 12/07/2014 400,000 0 0 0 400,000 0.03829%
CR-CELATERE
Z2-mELATZA
700,000 0 0 300,000 400,000 0.03829%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

BREsTE (&)

BROMBEMNBRESS (F)

Number of
shares subject
Number of to outstanding
shares subject options as at
Exercisable ~to outstanding Number of 31 December
Date of Grant  Exercise period  options as at options  Number of 213
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per (dd/mm/yyyy) 1January 2013 options granted exercised optionslapsed  W=F-=F  Approximate
(NoteT)  share Note2) MW=%-=% during during TZA=t+-H  percentage
RHAH (HKS) %8 -B-AEK the year theyear  H&{TfE2 shareholdings
(8/B/%) BRARE (B/B/%) GRzBRES ERfTE ERiY  BREYRZ ki
(Rts1) (#7m) (2 ReRHEAE BREHE BREHE RH%E LR
(i) Directors (continued)
23/06/2010 243 130712012 - 12/07/2013 127,500 127,500 0 0 -
_3-%E ZR-CELATERE
~AZt=R ZZ-ZELATIA
13/07/2013 - 121072014 170,000 0 0 170,000 0.01627%
ZE-CELATERZ
ZZ-RELATIA
297,500 127,500 0 170,000 0.01627%
3,447,500 127,500 1,350,000 1,970,000 0.18858%
23/06/2010 243 130712012 - 12/07/2013 1,560,500 1,138,500 422,000 0 -
_3-%E ZR-CELATERE
~NAZTZE “R-CEEATCR
13/07/2013 - 12/07/2014 2,790,000 182,000 0 2,608,000 0.24966%
ZR-CEEATERE
Z2-mELATZA
4,350,500 1,320,500 422,000 2,608,000 0.24966%
7,798,000 1,448,000 1,772,000 4,578,000 0.43824%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes:

(1

It was the date when the Company offered to the grantees the
options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Each of the grantees to whom options have been conditionally
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to
exercise:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

up to 30% of the total number of options granted at any
time during the period commencing from the date of the
first anniversary of the date when the shares of the Company
were first listed on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Date”) to
the date of the second anniversary of the Listing Date (both
days inclusive);

up to 30% of the total number of options granted at
any time during the period commencing from the date
immediately following the date of the second anniversary of
the Listing Date to the date of the third anniversary of the
Listing Date (both days inclusive); and

up to 40% of the total number of options granted, at
any time during the period commencing from the date
immediately following the date of the third anniversary of
the Listing Date to the date of the fourth anniversary of the
Listing Date (both days inclusive).
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (the
“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”) on 23 June 2010, which was
approved by the shareholders’ written resolutions, is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years. It is a share incentive scheme
and is established to recognize and acknowledge the contribution
that the eligible participants have or may have made to the Group.
Pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at
its discretion, offer to grant an option to any Director, employee,
advisor, consultant, distributor, contractor, supplier, customer,
agent, business partner, joint venture business partner, promoter,
service provider of any member of the Group.

Pursuant to the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 23 May
2013 and the approval granted by the Listing Committee of the
Stock Exchange, the scheme mandate limit in respect of which
share options may be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme is refreshed and not permitted to exceed 104,449,920
shares, representing 9.99% of the total number of shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2013.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme to eligible participants in any 12 months period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of
this 1% limit shall be subject to the approval of shareholders in a
general meeting.

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall not be less
than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant;
(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; or (iii) the nominal value
of a Share.

BREsTE (&)

(b)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
As at 31 December 2013, details of the share option granted
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows:

BREsTE (&)

BRAMBEABRETE (E)
R-T—=%+-_A=+—8 " BEY
RAFIEE AR T SIPTH A IE R

BT
Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  options as at
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 31 December
(dd/mm/yyyy) ~price per Exercisable 1 January 2013 granted exercised lapsed 213
(Note )~ share period RZE-=F during during during  W=Z-Z%  Approximate
RHEAH (HKS) (dd/mmiyyyy)  —A-RHK the year the year theyear t=A=T-H¥  percentage
Grantees (B/B/%) BROFE eS8 TEZEREY FRRE R ERER RTEZBRE shareholdings
BEA (W) () (B/B/%) RzeHRH®E  BREHE  BREUE  BREEA YRIRGHE REENAAM
(i) Directors
EE
Mr. Fang Ankong 031052011 6.388  03/052012 - 03/052013 4,950,000 0 0 4,950,000 0 -
FEERE 2k “E-CFnfAZAZ
A=A “Z-ZE7f=H
(Note 5) 04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 4,950,000 0 0 0 4,950,000 0.47386%
(MtzEs) “3--ERAmAZ
“Z-RETAZH
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 6,600,000 0 0 0 6,600,000 0.63181%
“Z-MERANAZ
“F-1%RA=A
(Note 2)
(H5E2)
16,500,000 0 0 4,950,000 11,550,000 1.10567%
281032012 4186 28/03/2013-27/03/2016 4,950,000 0 0 4,950,000 0 -
it TE-ZEZAT/\RE
ZAZTNE Z3-NEZAteR
(Note 6) 28/03/2014 - 27/03/2016 4,950,000 0 0 4,950,000 0 -
(Ktze) Z5-WEZACT/\RE
ZF-FZRZTtA
28/03/2015 - 27/03/2016 6,600,000 0 0 6,600,000 0 -
ZF-REZACTN\RE
ZE-EZACTHA
(Note 3)
(M3E3)
16,500,000 0 0 16,500,000 0 -
(Note 6)
(Mite)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

BREsTE (&)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) BARLAMBEABRETS(E)
Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  options as at
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 31 December
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2013 granted exercised lapsed 2013
(Note?)  share period  H=E-ZF during during during  W=Z-Z%  Approximate
RiLAH (HKS) (dd/mmlyyyy) —A-AEE the year the year theyear T=A=T—HH percentage
Grantees (B/B/%) BRIFE Ed TEZEREY ERig EnirE EREN RTEZERE shareholdings
ERA () () (B/R/%) RzRhEE BREHA BREHA BREHA PRZROUE REEHASM
(i) Directors (continued)
Ez(g)
Mr. Fang Ankong 221032013 375 220032014 -21/03/2017 0 4,950,000 0 0 4,950,000 0.47386%
(continued) “3-=f ZF-IEZRZ+ZAR
FEERE(B) o = S
(Note 7) 2210312015 - 21/03/2017 0 4,950,000 0 0 4,950,000 047386%
(FtsE7) Z3-RF=A-fzRE
I Yy
221032016 - 21/03/2017 0 6,600,000 0 0 6,600,000 0.63181%
ZE-EZAzTAR
B o
(Note 4)
(Hyzt4)
0 16,500,000 0 0 16,500,000 1.57953%
Mr. Stephanus 03/05/2011 6388 03/05/2012 - 03/05/2013 300,000 0 0 300,000 0 -
Mariavan Oojlen ~ —F——% “%-“knR=RZ
StephanusMariavan ~ RA=A ZF-=%1A=A
Oojjen 7 (Note 5) 04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 300,000 0 0 0 300,000 0.02872%
(FtsEs) “E-CERAMAZ
_Z-mERA=A
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 400,000 0 0 0 400,000 0.03829%
ZE-MELANAZ
“T-RERAZH
(Note 2)
(BsE2)
1,000,000 0 0 300,000 700,000 0.06701%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BREsTE (&)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) BXRAMBRERBRETE(E)
Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  options as at
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 31 December
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2013 granted exercised apsed 2013
(Note?)  share period  H=E-ZF during during during  W=Z-Z%  Approximate
RiLAH (HKS) (dd/mmlyyyy) —A-AEE the year the year theyear T=A=T—HH percentage
Grantees (B/B/%) BRIFE Ed TEZEREY ERig EnirE EREN RTEZERE shareholdings
ERA (sE1) (1) (B/R/%) RzRhEE BREHA BREHA BREHA PRZROUE REEHASM
(i) Directors (continued)
22(8)
Mr. Stephanus 2810312012 4186 28/03/2013-27/03/2016 600,000 0 0 600,000 0 -
Mariavan Qojlen ~ —5-=F ZF-ZEZAZT/\AE
(continued) “A-tNA ZE-REZRZTtA
Stephanus Maria van (Note 6) 28/03/2014 - 27/03/2016 600,000 0 0 600,000 0 -
Oojjen 724 () (Hizt6) ZF-IE=AZ+/\AE
ZE-EZACTHA
28/03/2015 - 27/03/2016 800,000 0 0 800,000 0 -
ZE-nEZAZT/\AE
B ESACTHA
(Note 3)
(HzE3)
2,000,000 0 0 2,000,000 0 -
(Note 6)
(Fiste)
201032013 375 22032014 - 211032017 0 600,000 0 0 600,000 0.05744%
o3-= Z3-MESAZTZRE
=AZtH “3-t5Zf21-8
(Note 7) 22103/2015 - 21/03/2017 0 600,000 0 0 600,000 0.05744%
(HtE7) ZT-RE-ACCAE
ZE—+EZRC1-A
22/03/2016 - 2110312017 0 800,000 0 0 800,000 0.07658%
SE-REZACTIHEE
“3-t5Zf21-8
(Note 4)
(fizt4)
0 2,000,000 0 0 2,000,000 0.19146%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BREsTE (&)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) BARLAMBEARBRETS(E)
Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  options as at
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 31 December
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2013 granted exercised lapsed 2013
(Note?)  share period  H=E-ZF during during during  W=Z-Z%  Approximate
RiLAH (HKS) (dd/mmlyyyy) —A-AEE the year the year theyear T=A=T—HH percentage
Grantees (B/B/%) BRIFE Ed TEZEREY ERig EnirE EREN RTEZERE shareholdings
ERA (Mt 1) (1) (B/R/%) RzRhEE BREHA BREHA BREHA PRZROUE REEHASM
(i) Directors (continued)
22(8)
Mr. Gu Liyong 03/05/2011 6.388  03/05/2012 - 03/05/2013 262,500 0 0 262,500 0 -
BEERE 55 CE-CERAZAE
A=A e
04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 262,500 0 0 0 262,500 0.02513%
“E--¥RAMAZ
“Z-RETA=A
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 350,000 0 0 0 350,000 0.03351%
ZE-MELANAZ
ZE-R5RA=A
(Note 2)
(BsE2)
875,000 0 0 262,500 612,500 0.05864%
2810312012 4186 28/03/2013-27/03/2016 195,000 0 0 195,000 0 -
S 3 ZB-ZESACTN\RE
=A=tNA ZF-FZRZTtA
(Note 6) 28/03/2014 - 27/03/2016 195,000 0 0 195,000 0 -
(Ftse) Z3-RE=AZT/\HE
ZE-EZACTHA
28/03/2015 - 27/03/2016 260,000 0 0 260,000 0 -
ZE-nEZAZT/\AE
ZF-FZRZTtA
(Note 3)
(H5E3)
650,000 0 0 650,000 0 -
(Note 6)
(Fiste)
BE R EEBRA R



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BREsTE (&)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) BARLAMBEABRETS(E)
Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  options as at
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 31 December
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2013 granted exercised lapsed 2013
(Note?)  share period  H=F-ZF during during during  W=Z-ZE  Approximate
RiEAH (HKS) (dd/mmlyyyy) —A-AEE the year the year theyear T=A=+—HH  percentage
Grantees (B/B/%) BRIFE el TEZEREY ERig R EREN RTEZEBRE shareholdings
ERA (1) (1) (B/R/%) RzkRhEE BREHA BREHA BREHA PRZROUE REHEHASM
(i) Directors (continued)
22(8)
Mr. Gu Liyong 221032013 375 22032014 -21/03/2017 0 195,000 0 0 195,000 0.01867%
(continued) Z5-=F ZF-MEZRZ+ZAR
BEBAL(R) o s = S
(Note 7) 2210312015 - 21/03/2017 0 195,000 0 0 195,000 0.01867%
(FtsE7) Z3-RF=A-fzRE
I Yy
221032016 - 21/03/2017 0 260,000 0 0 260,000 0.02489%
ZE-EZRZTAR
“E-tF-fA-1-H
(Note 4)
(Hzt4)
0 650,000 0 0 650,000 0.06223%
Dr. Loke Yu 03/05/2011 6388 03/05/2012 - 03/05/2013 45,000 0 0 45,000 0 -
37\ B Z5—F Z5-ZFRAZRZ
A=A “3-=FRA=A
04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 45,000 0 0 0 45,000 0.00431%
“E--¥RAMAZ
“Z-RETA=A
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 60,000 0 0 0 60,000 0.00574%
ZE-MELANAZ
ZE-R5RA=A
(Note 2)
(BsE2)
150,000 0 0 45,000 105,000 0.01005%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

SBREST 8 ()
(b) ERABIRERMBRETE (H)

Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  options as at
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 31 December
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2013 granted exercised lapsed 2013
(Note?)  share period  H=F-ZF during during during  W=Z-ZE  Approximate
RiEAH (HKS) (dd/mmlyyyy) —A-AEE the year the year theyear T=A=+—HH  percentage
Grantees (B/B/%) BRIFE el TEZEREY ERig R EREN RTEZEBRE shareholdings
ERA (1) (1) (B/R/%) RzkRhEE BREHA BREHA BREHA PRZROUE REHEHASM
(i) Directors (continued)
22(8)
Dr. Loke Yu 2810312012 4186 28/03/2013-27/03/2016 22,500 0 0 0 22,500 0.00215%
(continued) —3-CF “T-=F-fA-f)\RZE
FiBEL(8) =R=tNA ZF-FZRZTtA
28/03/2014 - 27/03/2016 22,500 0 0 0 22,500 0.00215%
ZT-MEZAZTN\BE
ZE-EZACTHA
28/03/2015 - 27/03/2016 30,000 0 0 0 30,000 0.00288%
ZE-nEZAZT/\AE
ZBEZACTHA
(Note 3)
(H5E3)
75,000 0 0 0 75,000 0.00718%
Ms. Zhang Jingdong 03052011 6388 03/05/2012 - 03/05/2013 45,000 0 0 45,000 0 -
EHRRL Z5—F Z5-ZFRAZRZ
A=A ZF-=%1A=A
04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 45,000 0 0 0 45,000 0.00431%
“Z--knAmAZ
“Z-RETA=A
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 60,000 0 0 0 60,000 0.00574%
ZE-MELANAZ
“T-RERAZH
(Note 2)
(BsE2)
150,000 0 0 45,000 105,000 0.01005%

ST



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BREsTE (&)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) BARLAMBEABRETS(E)
Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  options as at
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 31 December
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2013 granted exercised lapsed 2013
(Note?)  share period  H=F-ZF during during during  W=Z-ZE  Approximate
RiEAH (HKS) (dd/mmlyyyy) —A-AEE the year the year theyear T=A=+—HH  percentage
Grantees (B/B/%) BRIFE el TEZEREY ERig R EREN RTEZEBRE shareholdings
ERA (1) (1) (B/R/%) RzkRhEE BREHA BREHA BREHA PRZROUE REHEHASM
(i) Directors (continued)
22(8)
Ms. Zhang Jingdong ~ 28/03/2012 4186 28/03/2013-27/03/2016 22,500 0 0 0 22,500 0.00215%
(continued) “5-CF ZF-ZEZAZT/\AE
EHRRL(8) =k JAY= ZF-FZRZTtA
28/03/2014 - 27/03/2016 22,500 0 0 0 22,500 0.00215%
ZT-MEZAZTN\BE
ZE-EZACTHA
28/03/2015 - 27/03/2016 30,000 0 0 0 30,000 0.00288%
ZE-nEZAZT/\AE
B ESACTHA
(Note 3)
(HzE3)
75,000 0 0 0 75,000 0.00718%
Mr. Li Xikui 03/05/2011 6388 03/05/2012 - 03/05/2013 45,000 0 0 45,000 0 -
Xy 55 CE-CERAZAE
A=A “3-=FRA=A
04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 45,000 0 0 0 45,000 0.00431%
“E--¥RAMAZ
“Z-RETA=A
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 60,000 0 0 0 60,000 0.00574%
ZE-MELANAZ
ZE-R5RA=A
(Note 2)
(BsE2)
150,000 0 0 45,000 105,000 0.01005%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

BREsTE (&)

(b) BERAMBERBRETE ()

Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  options as at
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 31 December
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2013 granted exercised apsed 2013
(Note?)  share period  H=F-ZF during during during  W=Z-ZE  Approximate
RiEAH (HKS) (dd/mmlyyyy) —A-AEE the year the year theyear T=A=+—HH  percentage
Grantees (B/B/%) BRIFE el TEZEREY ERig R EREN RTEZEBRE shareholdings
ERA (1) (1) (B/R/%) RzkRhEE BREHA BREHA BREHA PRZROUE REHEHASM
(i) Directors (continued)
22(8)
Mr. Li Xikui 2810312012 4186 28/03/2013-27/03/2016 22,500 0 0 0 22,500 0.00215%
(continued) —E3-of “T-=F-fA-f)\RZE
ekt (8) =R=tNA ZF-FZRZTtA
28/03/2014 - 27/03/2016 22,500 0 0 0 22,500 0.00215%
ZT-MEZAZTN\BE
ZE-EZACTHA
28/03/2015 - 27/03/2016 30,000 0 0 0 30,000 0.00288%
ZE-nEZAZT/\AE
ZBEZACTHA
(Note 3)
(H5E3)
75,000 0 0 0 75,000 0.00718%
38,200,000 19,150,000 0 24,797,500 32,552,500 3.11623%
(i) Employegs and 221092010 338 23092012 -22/09/2013 1,086,000 0 64,500 1,021,500 0 -
other particpants ~ —5-%% ZT-CEAAZTZHEE
EEREMZEE  AAZTZH “2-ZERACTCA
23/09/2013 - 22/09/2014 1,448,000 0 0 20,000 1,428,000 0.13670%
CR-CEfACTZEE
ZB-mEAACTZA
(Note 2)
(BsE2)
2,534,000 0 64,500 1,041,500 1,428,000 0.13670%

ST



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BREsTE (&)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) BXRAMBRERBRETSE)
Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  options as at
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 31 December
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2013 granted exercised apsed 2013
(Note?)  share period  H=F-ZF during during during  W=Z-ZE  Approximate
RiEAH (HKS) (dd/mmlyyyy) —A-AEE the year the year theyear T=A=+—HH  percentage
Grantees (B/B/%) BRIFE el TEZEREY ERRE R EREN RTEZEBRE shareholdings
ERA (RtsE1) (1) (B/R/%) RzkRhEE BREHA BREHA BREHA PRZROUE REHEHASM
(i) Employees and other ~ 03/05/2011 6388 03/05/2012 - 03/05/2013 3,477,000 0 0 3,477,000 0 -
participants 3 “3-“knAZRE
(continued) BA=A Z5-%£1A=A
EERAMZEE(B) 04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 3,477,000 0 0 96,000 3,381,000 0.32366%
“F-=FnAmAZ
“E-MERA=A
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 4,636,000 0 0 128,000 4,508,000 043154%
“Z-PMERAMAZ
“2-1%RA=ZA
(Note 2)
(f3k2)
11,590,000 0 0 3,701,000 7,889,000 0.75520%
28/03/2012 4186 28/03/2013 - 27/03/2016 3,343,500 0 0 180,000 3,163,500 0.30284%
“E2-CF TE-ZEZACT/\RE
ZAZTNE ZFEZACTHA
28/03/2014 - 27/03/2016 3,343,500 0 0 180,000 3,163,500 0.30284%
ZB-MEZAZTN\RE
ZE-REZACTHA
28/03/2015 - 27/03/2016 4,458,000 0 0 240,000 4,218,000 0.40379%
ZT-REZACT/\EE
ZFEZACTHA
(Note 3)
(M3E3)
11,145,000 0 0 600,000 10,545,000 1.00947%
25,269,000 0 64,500 5,342,500 19,862,000 1.90137%
Total A3t 63,469,000 19,150,000 64,500 30,140,000 52,414,500 5.01760%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes:

(1

It was the date when the Company offered to the grantees the
options under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Date of
Grant”).

Each of the grantees to whom options have been conditionally
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to

exercise:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

up to 30% of the total number of options granted at
any time during the period commencing from the first
anniversary of the Date of Grant to the date of the second
anniversary of the Date of Grant (both days inclusive);

up to 30% of the total number of options granted at
any time during the period commencing from the date
immediately following the second anniversary of the Date
of Grant to the date of the third anniversary of the Date of
Grant (both days inclusive); and

up to 40% of the total number of options granted, at
any time during the period commencing from the date
immediately following the third anniversary of the Date of
Grant to the date of the fourth anniversary of the Date of
Grant (both days inclusive).

Each of the grantees to whom options have been conditionally
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to
exercise:

(i)

as to 30%, from the date of the first anniversary of the Date
of Grant, i.e. 28 March 2013, to the date immediately before
the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 27 March
2016 (both dates inclusive);

(ii) as to 30%, from the date of the second anniversary of the
Date of Grant, i.e. 28 March 2014, to the date immediately
before the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 27
March 2016 (both dates inclusive); and

(iii)  as to 40%, from the date of the third anniversary of the Date

of Grant, i.e. 28 March 2015, to the date immediately before
the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 27 March
2016 (both dates inclusive).

BREsTE (&)

(b)

BROMBERBRESS (H)

Wi

(@)

)

3

EaREBERATA

WRADRIBEERAAMEERER
R B A AR AR BB RS B 5
(MR EED) -

RBERARBEERBRES RS
BIHRARTREESSFEA - 7]

(i) BREASMRE-BEF AR
ERLAHRFEF-_BFER
Lz HBER(BEERMAE
M) - BER TR B
THEEB30% :

iy, BRHASRE-_BEFZEAR
EERHARRE=ZBAFER
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THEB30% &
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes: (continued)

)

(©)

Each of the grantees to whom options have been conditionally
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to
exercise:

(i) as to 30%, from the date of the first anniversary of the Date
of Grant, i.e. 22 March 2014, to the date immediately before
the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 21 March
2017 (both dates inclusive);

(ii) as to 30%, from the date of the second anniversary of the
Date of Grant, i.e. 22 March 2015, to the date immediately
before the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 21
March 2017 (both dates inclusive); and

(i) as to 40%, from the date of the third anniversary of the Date
of Grant, i.e. 22 March 2016, to the date immediately before
the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 21 March
2017 (both dates inclusive).

The 16,500,000 share options and 1,000,000 share options were
granted to each of Mr. Fang and Mr. van Ooijen on 3 May 2011
subject to the vesting condition that the net profit of the Group
for the financial year of the Company ended 31 December 2011
is equal to or exceeds 130% of the net profit of the Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2010. As the aforesaid condition
has not been met and therefore the share options granted to Mr.
Fang and Mr. van Ooijen in 2011 have not been duly vested and are
not exercisable. Notwithstanding this, these share options should
be taken into account for the purpose of determining whether the
limits under Rule 17.04(1) of the Listing Rules are exceeded.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(6)

@)

The 16,500,000 share options, 2,000,000 share options and
650,000 share options were granted to each of Mr. Fang, Mr.
van Ooijen and Mr. Gu on 28 March 2012 subject to the vesting
condition that the net profit of the Group for the financial year
of the Company ended 31 December 2012 is equal to or exceeds
130% of the net profit of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2010. As the aforesaid condition has not been met and
therefore the share options granted to Mr. Fang, Mr. van Ooijen and
Mr. Gu in 2012 were automatically lapsed on the publication date
of the final results of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2012.

The 16,500,000 share options, 2,000,000 share options and
650,000 share options were granted to each of Mr. Fang, Mr.
van Ooijen and Mr. Gu on 22 March 2013 subject to the vesting
condition that the net profit of the Group for the financial year of
the Company ending 31 December 2013 is equal to or exceeds
130% of the net profit of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2010 (the “Performance Target”). If the Performance
Target is not reached, the share options granted to Mr. Fang, Mr.
van Ooijen and Mr. Gu on 22 March 2013 will automatically lapse.

Saved as disclosed as above, no options were granted, cancelled
or lapsed as at 31 December 2013. The consideration paid by each
grantee for each grant of option is HK$1.00.
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BERLRBERBRESS ()
FieE : ()
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and Its Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2013, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

(i)  Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares:

= N 2

Em iR E
EEREIBTRABREAAAREABE
B - EBRORMESHESER KA

RIB—=F+"A=+—H ARREFK
TRITRABRARBSEEEBER (E
EA(EHF LB ERID(EFRAEGD]) S
XV &) ity ~ B R EFTHE A RE
ARERES L REERIFEI2ZIFAETEENE
O R PR SRSk AR I L T AR AUM 8%+ Pt T
BITAERETERRZHRESTRI([1R2ET
AN BARMEARBREEBHEIHMERAT]
(TBEZZ AT ) BB SOA B AN T -

() BROORIEEREEIFE

Number of Total  Approximate
Number of underlying number of percentage
Shares Shares Shares  shareholding
Name of Capacity/Nature interested interested interested in the Company
Director of Interest HEERN FEEEN BEERN  ERDERE
EZEB 5/ BEME ROEE  HEROHE RABH  HELEI
Mr. Fang Ankong Beneficial owner 5,614,000 29,450,000 35,064,000
ARERE BRBERA (Note 1)
(BrzE1)
Interest in controlled corporations 378,905,265 31,266,667 410,171,932
REEFEE 2 S (Note 2) (Note 2)
(FizE2) (HizE2)
Interest of the other parties to 397,392,735 141,275,536 538,668,271
an agreement under section (Note 3) (Note 3)
317 of the SFO (M3E3) (MH3E3)
EFRBEEIE 317 E T
HtET QR PR 2 s
Total: 485t 983,904,203 94.19%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued) R E (&)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short EZERFTETHRAERAATREMEEE
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures BEHR#% - HERORESFHWEZR AR
of the Company and Its Associated Corporation (%)

(continued)

() Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares: (continued) () R RIAER D EFE - (&)
Number of Total  Approximate
Number of underlying number of percentage
Shares Shares Shares  shareholding
Name of Capacity/Nature interested interested interested in the Company
Director of Interest FRERN RFEERN REERN  ERDRRE
EZEB 5/ REtE RABE  HERGHE ROLE  HHNEIL
Mr. Stephanus Beneficial owner 300,000 3,100,000 3,400,000
Maria van Ooijen BExlEAA (Note 4)
Stephanus Maria van (HizE4)
Ooijen %4
Interest in controlled corporations 290,395,981 52,100,000 342,495,981
RREHZEE 2 R (Note 5) (Note 5)
(Fi#5E5) GiE$)
Interest of the other parties to 491,216,019 146,792,203 638,008,222
an agreement under section (Note 6) (Note 6)
317 of the SFO (Hrit6) (Hsk6)
EAERBERIENTETHE
HETA R e 2 #am
Total: 85t : 983,904,203 94.19%
Mr. Gu Liyong Beneficial owner 255,000 1,432,500 1,687,500 0.16%
BEREE ERAAA (Note 7)
GiE))
Dr. Loke Yu Beneficial owner - 180,000 180,000 0.02%
B Mgt BRBERA (Note 8)
CiEz:)
Ms. Zhang Jingdong Beneficial owner - 180,000 180,000 0.02%
EfEZT BREBA (Note 9)
(MizE9)
Mr. Li Xikui Beneficial owner - 180,000 180,000 0.02%
FHERE EnEEA (Note 10)
(Tit:E10)

EaREBERATA




Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued) ERRE (8)
Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short EERFTETHRAERAATREBE X

Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures BEHR#% - HERORESFHWEZR AR
of the Company and Its Associated Corporation (%)
(continued)

(i) Short positions in Shares: (i) ROEEE -

Approximate
percentage
shareholding
Name of Capacity/Nature Number of in the Company
Director of Interest Shares EARA T R
ExEB 5/ EEitE REAE HERBE D
Mr. Fang Ankong Interest of the other parties to an 20,837,095 1.99%

FRELE agreement under section 317 of the SFO (Note 11)

ErREEROIENTE T (BgzE11)

BRI Prsh < e

Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%

Stephanus Maria van Ooijen %¢ 4 REZEHEE 2 (Note 11)

(BzE11)

(i) Long positions in debentures of the Company: (i) AR ENEFAILE

Principal amount of
the debentures held
FEES AL
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest (HK$)
EEEB B Rty (A7)
Mr. Fang Ankong Interest in controlled corporations 187,600,000
FRERE AR HNEE 2 s (Note 12)
(Mi3E12)
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Interest in controlled corporations 312,600,000
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen ¢4 NEZIEFER 2 e (Note 13)
(BI3E13)

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2013



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short

Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and Its Associated Corporation

(continued)
Notes:

(1) Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”) was granted Share Options under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to
subscribe for 3,500,000 Shares and 49,500,000 Shares, respectively. Mr.
Fang exercised Share Options to subscribe for 1,050,000 Shares on 18 May
2012. 1,050,000 Share Options granted to Mr. Fang on 23 June 2010 have
not been exercised in the exercisable period and were lapsed on 13 July
2013. 4,950,000 Share Options granted to Mr. Fang on 3 May 2011 have
not been exercised in the exercisable period and were lapsed on 4 May
2013. 16,500,000 Share Options were granted to Mr. Fang on 28 March
2012 subject to the vesting condition that the net profit of the Group for
the financial year of the Company ended 31 December 2012 is equal to or
exceeds 130% of the net profit of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2010. As the aforesaid condition has not been met and
therefore the 16,500,000 Share Options granted to Mr. Fang on 28 March
2012 were automatically lapsed on 21 March 2013.

emiE ()
EEREIBTRABREAAAREABE
EHRG  AHERORESFNEER AR
(#)

BT -

() FAEZEEE(HEE]DRESRLAREEN
BREASIREBERNAHABERBRETSE
% TR IE S IR A ] 3,500,000 AR AR5
149,500,000 f& R85 » HEAENR T ——4F
AA+N\BITERERAELAGREE 1,050,000 B2 A%
BeR_E—TENA-FTZARTFHIEE
21,050,000 {7 B8 AR 4 M0 K 74 17 {55 B U 1 7T
FER-ZZT—=FtA+=BERH - -R=F
——F R A=ZBETH A 24,950,000 1%
BRETRNITERARNETEER =2 —=
ERAMBEM - RZBE——F=A=+N
B 1\ 5 % £ % F 16,500,000 19 B8 % 4 - M
ZRAEBEGY  BIBE_T—=-F+=A
=+ — B IEARR BB E E B A B % T
HERIBANEERHE T —TF+ A
=+ —HUEFRFEFEFN130% - AR E
MG ARENX - At RZFE—=F=A
Z+NBETF % ER 16,500,000 17 iE B 1
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short

Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and Its Associated Corporation
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

)

318,905,265 Shares are held by HWH Holdings Limited (“HWH") as
beneficial owner and HWH is wholly-owned by Mr. Fang. Green Elite
Limited (“Green Elite”) holds 60,000,000 Shares as beneficial owner and
is 50%-owned by each of HWH and Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”). On
1 March 2012, the Company issued a three-year 4% coupon convertible
bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$815,800,000 entitling the holders thereof to convert into Shares at
an initial conversion price of HK$6.00 per Share, subject to adjustments,
and HWH subscribed for the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of
HK$187,600,000. Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 16
January 2013 entered into between, among others, HWH and Greenwoods
China Alpha Master Fund (“Greenwoods”), an independent third party,
HWH has, on 16 January 2013, transferred part of its Convertible
Bonds in the principal amount of HK$120,000,000 (“Option Bonds”) to
Greenwoods and Greenwoods has granted a call option (“Call Option”)
in favour of HWH to purchase all or part of the Option Bonds on the
same day. The 31,266,667 underlying Shares comprise (i) 11,266,667
underlying Shares held by HWH as beneficial owner which fall to be
issued to HWH upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds; and (ii)
20,000,000 underlying Shares held by HWH as beneficial owner which
Greenwoods is obliged to deliver to HWH upon exercise of the Call Option
by HWH. Therefore, Mr. Fang is deemed to be interested in an aggregate
of 410,171,932 Shares held by his controlled corporations.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short

Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and Its Associated Corporation
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(3) Mr. Fang, Mr. Stephanus Maria van Qoijen (“Mr. van Ooijen”), Mr.
Herman Maurits de Leeuw (“Mr. de Leeuw"”), HWH, Delco, Sims
Metal Management Dragon Holdings Limited (“Sims”) and Sims Metal
Management Asia Limited (“Sims Asia”) are considered having entered
into an agreement under section 317 of the SFO. The 397,392,735
Shares comprise (i) 300,000 Shares held by Mr. van Ooijen as beneficial
owner; (i) 230,395,981 Shares held by Delco as beneficial owner; and (iii)
166,696,754 Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner. The 141,275,536
underlying Shares comprise (i) 3,100,000 underlying Shares held by Mr. van
Qoijen as beneficial owner as referred to in Note 4 below; (i) 52,100,000
underlying Shares held by Delco as beneficial owner which fall to be issued
to Delco upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds; (iii) 20,837,095
underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner which Delco is obliged
to deliver to Sims upon exercise of the Option by Sims; (iv) 52,600,000
underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner which fall to be issued
to Sims upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds; and (v) 12,638,441
underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner which fall to be issued
to Sims upon full conversion of the Warrants. Therefore, Mr. Fang is
deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 538,668,271 Shares held by
the other parties to an agreement under section 317 of the SFO.
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(3)  J344 - Stephanus Maria van Ooijent4E ([van
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([de Leeuw?t4 |) ~ HWH * Delco * Sims Metal
Management Dragon Holdings Limited ([ Sims )
. Sims Metal Management Asia Limited
([Sims Asial) # R AR EH K EAE KIS
31716 T 8 15 7% © 397,392,735 B 15 B 1&
(A van Ooijen L EERE=EB AZEDN
300,000 &A% 15 (i) B3 DelcotERE @R A
F5E1#)230,395,981 &M ¢ K (iii) B8 Sims 1
REEAR AFFER 166,696,754 %7 -
141,275,536 BARRARR (9 B245 (i) T XPI=E 4 BT
iifvan OoijenE EEAE=EE ARAR
3,100,000 & HREEA% 15 : (i) B DelcofERE =
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EREZHEB ARG ENRIREFEREA
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short

Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and Its Associated Corporation

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

)

(5)

Mr. van Ooijen was granted Share Options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe for
1,000,000 Shares and 5,000,000 Shares, respectively. Mr. van Ooijen
exercised Share Options to subscribe for 300,000 Shares on 18 May 2012.
300,000 Share Options granted to Mr. van Ooijen on 23 June 2010 have
not been exercised in the exercisable period and were lapsed on 13 July
2013. 300,000 Share Options granted to Mr. van Ooijen on 3 May 2011
have not been exercised in the exercisable period and were lapsed on 4
May 2013. 2,000,000 Share Options were granted to Mr. van Ooijen on
28 March 2012 subject to the vesting condition that the net profit of the
Group for the financial year of the Company ended 31 December 2012 is
equal to or exceeds 130% of the net profit of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2010. As the aforesaid condition has not been
met and therefore the 2,000,000 Share Options granted to Mr. van Ooijen
on 28 March 2012 were automatically lapsed on 21 March 2013.

230,395,981 Shares are held by Delco as beneficial owner and Delco is
indirectly 50%-owned by Mr. van Ooijen. Green Elite holds 60,000,000
Shares as beneficial owner and is 50%-owned by each of HWH and Delco.
The 52,100,000 underlying Shares represent such number of underlying
Shares which fall to be issued to Delco upon full conversion of the
Convertible Bonds. Therefore, Mr. van Ooijen is deemed to be interested in
an aggregate of 342,495,981 Shares held by his controlled corporations.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short

Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and Its Associated Corporation

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(6) Mr. Fang, Mr. van Ooijen, Mr. de Leeuw, HWH, Delco, Sims and Sims Asia
are considered having entered into an agreement under section 317 of
the SFO. The 491,216,019 Shares comprise (i) 5,614,000 Shares held by
Mr. Fang as beneficial owner; (ii) 318,905,265 Shares held by HWH as
beneficial owner; and (iii) 166,696,754 Shares held by Sims as beneficial
owner. The 146,792,203 underlying Shares comprise (i) 29,450,000
underlying Shares held by Mr. Fang as beneficial owner as referred to in
Note 1 above; (ii) 31,266,667 underlying Shares held by HWH as beneficial
owner as referred to in Note 2 above; (i) 20,837,095 underlying Shares
held by Sims as beneficial owner which Delco is obliged to deliver to Sims
upon exercise of the Option by Sims; (iv) 52,600,000 underlying Shares
held by Sims as beneficial owner which fall to be issued to Sims upon full
conversion of the Convertible Bonds; and (v) 12,638,441 underlying Shares
held by Sims as beneficial owner which fall to be issued to Sims upon full
conversion of the Warrants. Therefore, Mr. van Ooijen is deemed to be
interested in an aggregate of 638,008,222 Shares held by the other parties
to an agreement under section 317 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short

Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and Its Associated Corporation
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

@)

9

(10)

Mr. Gu Liyong (“Mr. Gu") was granted Share Options under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe
for 425,000 Shares and 2,175,000 Shares, respectively. Mr. Gu exercised
Share Options to subscribe for 127,500 Shares and 127,500 Shares on 18
May 2012 and 14 May 2013 respectively. 262,500 Share Options granted
to Mr. Gu on 3 May 2011 have not been exercised in the exercisable period
and were lapsed on 4 May 2013. 650,000 Share Options were granted
to Mr. Gu on 28 March 2012 subject to the vesting condition that the
net profit of the Group for the financial year of the Company ended 31
December 2012 is equal to or exceeds 130% of the net profit of the Group
for the financial year ended 31 December 2010. As the aforesaid condition
has not been met and therefore the 650,000 Share Options granted to Mr.
Gu on 28 March 2012 were automatically lapsed on 21 March 2013.

Dr. Loke Yu (“Dr. Loke"”) was granted Share Options under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme to subscribe for 225,000 Shares. 45,000 Share
Options granted to Dr. Loke on 3 May 2011 have not been exercised in the
exercisable period and were lapsed on 4 May 2013.

Ms. Zhang Jingdong (“Ms. Zhang") was granted Share Options under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe for 225,000 Shares. 45,000
Share Options granted to Ms. Zhang on 3 May 2011 have not been
exercised in the exercisable period and were lapsed on 4 May 2013.

Mr. Li Xikui (“Mr. Li”) was granted Share Options under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme to subscribe for 225,000 Shares. 45,000 Share Options
granted to Mr. Li on 3 May 2011 have not been exercised in the exercisable
period and were lapsed on 4 May 2013.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short

Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and Its Associated Corporation
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(11)  Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 17 January 2012 entered
into between, among others, Delco and Sims, Delco has granted a call
option (the “Option”) in favour of Sims in respect of 20,837,095 Shares,
subject to adjustments (the “Option Shares”). The short position in respect
of 20,837,095 Shares represent the number of the Option Shares which
Delco is obliged to deliver to Sims upon exercise of the Option by Sims. Mr.
van Ooijen is deemed to have the same short position as Delco since Delco
is indirectly 50%-owned by Mr. van Ooijen. Mr. Fang is also deemed to
have the same short position as Delco since Mr. Fang and Delco are parties
to an agreement under section 317 of the SFO referred to in Notes 3 and
6 above.

(12)  This represents the aggregate of (i) the principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds of HK$67,600,000 held by HWH as at 31 December 2013; and (ii)
the principal amount of the Option Bonds of HK$120,000,000 held by
Greenwoods (in which HWH is deemed to be interested by virtue of the Call
Option as referred to in Note 2 above), by virtue of which HWH is deemed
to be interested in 31,266,667 underlying Shares as referred to in Notes
2 and 6 above. Mr. Fang is deemed to be interested in the same principal
amount of the Convertible Bonds as HWH since HWH is wholly-owned by
Mr. Fang.

(13)  This represents the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds subscribed
by Delco, by virtue of which Delco is deemed to be interested in
52,100,000 underlying Shares as referred to in Notes 3 and 5 above. Mr.
van Ooijen is deemed to be interested in the same principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds as Delco since Delco is indirectly 50%-owned by Mr. van
QOoijen.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations which would have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEe2RE (E)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued) ERRE (8)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions FERRRZA QT HKR G R EER G M E
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company BRAR

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the RZZE—=F+"HA=+—H BARFES
persons, other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company,  RFBITHABSN - L FATRAARR TR K&
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in  #HEARR ) A EREE S NS KM 336
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as  {§B P17 & 2 &M AracitriE s oA

follows: T
(i) Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares: () R RIBER (D EILEE -
Number of Total Approximate
Number of underlying number of percentage
Shares Shares Shares shareholding
Name of Capacity/Nature interested interested interested  in the Company
Shareholder of Interest BRERN BRERN BEEEN AN RE
RREH g/ BE1E RHGEE RBRH%A R EY WEREDL
HWH Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 318,905,265 31,266,667 350,171,932
ERHEEA (Note 1) (Note 1)
(MzE1) (MizE1)
Interest in controlled corporations 60,000,000 - 60,000,000
REEGEE 2R (Note 1)
(M)
Interest of the other parties to 403,006,735 170,725,536 573,732,271
an agreement under section (Note 2) (Note 2)
317 of the SFO (Fit2) (firzx2)
EHRAEEAIZ T IET B
EMETOR R 2 ER
Total: 45t : 983,904,203 94.19%
Delco Participation B.V. Beneficial owner 230,395,981 52,100,000 282,495,981
BEXBBA (Note 3) (Note 3)
GEE) (Fiz3)
Interest in controlled corporations 60,000,000 - 60,000,000
REEHEE 2R (Note 3)
(WiE3)
Interest of the other parties to 491,516,019 149,892,203 641,408,222
an agreement under (Note 4) (Note 4)
section 317 of the SFO (MizE4) (MizE4)
BHERBERAENTETHE
EMETHR A 2R
Total: 485t : 983,904,203 94.19%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued) RERIFE (&)
Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions EZERRRZA 1 78R 4 & 863 IR 4 15
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company #&mR#®X2E (&)
(continued)
() Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares: (continued) () R RIGERGEFE : (E)
Number of Total Approximate
Number of underlying number of percentage
Shares Shares Shares shareholding
Name of Capacity/Nature interested interested interested  in the Company
Shareholder of Interest BEERN BEERN BEERN AR R RE
BRRE® 5/ BEKE RAEE HERGEA PR WEAEA L
Mr. Herman Maurits de Leeuw Interest in controlled corporations 290,395,981 52,100,000 342,495,981
Herman Maurits de Leeuw 54 WEEHAR BR (Notes 3 & 5) (Notes 3 & 5)
(M3 R5) (B33 %5)
Interest of the other parties to 491,516,019 149,892,203 641,408,222
an agreement under section (Notes 4 &5) (Notes 4 &5)
317 of the SFO (M4 R5) GEZYS)
ERRAERIIZNTIE T HE
X HEYi 2P
Total: 51 : 983,904,203 94.19%
SVO Company B.V. Interest in controlled corporations 781,912,000 201,992,203 983,904,203 94.19%
REEHEE 2 R (Notes 3,4 &5)  (Notes 3,4 &5)
(33~ 4%5) (33 4%5)
H.P.L. Metals B.V. Interest in controlled corporations 781,912,000 201,992,203 983,904,203 94.19%
REEHEE R (Notes3,4&5)  (Notes3,4&5)
(M3 4%5) (M3 4R5)
Stichting Beheer Aandelen Interest in controlled corporations 781,912,000 201,992,203 983,904,203 94.19%
H.P.L. Metals WEEHAR ER (Notes3,4&5)  (Notes 3,4 &5)
(W3 4R5) (W3- 4RK5)
Green Elite Limited Beneficial owner 60,000,000 - 60,000,000 5.74%
EEHAA
T R ——



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued) ERRE (8)
Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions FERRRZA QT HKR G R EER G M E
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company #R#%X= ()

(continued)
() Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares: (continued) () R RIGERGEFE : (E)
Number of Total Approximate
Number of underlying number of percentage
Shares Shares Shares shareholding
Name of Capacity/Nature interested interested interested  in the Company
Shareholder of Interest BRERN BRERN BEERN AR R RE
BRRE® 5/ BEKE RAEE HERGEA PR WEAEA L
Sims Metal Management Beneficial owner 166,696,754 86,075,536 252,772,290
Dragon Holdings Limited BERHBA (Note 6) (Note 6)
(Hizte) (Fiizte)
Interest of the other parties to 615,215,246 115,916,667 731,131,913
an agreement under section (Note 7) (Note 7)
317 of the SFO (MzE7) (MW7)
ERRAERIIZNTIE T HE
X HEYi 2P
Total: 485t : 983,904,203 94.19%
Sims Metal Management Interest in controlled corporations 781,912,000 201,992,203 983,904,203 94.19%
China Holdings Limited REEHEE 2R (Notes6,7&8)  (Notes 6, 7 &8)
(k6 - 7R8) (36 7R8)
Sims Metal Management Interest in controlled corporations 781,912,000 201,992,203 983,904,203 94.19%
Asia Limited REEHEE R (Notes6,78&8)  (Notes6,7 &8)
(M6 7k8)  (MizEe 7RS)
Sims Metal Management Limited Interest in controlled corporations 781,912,000 201,992,203 983,904,203 94.19%
WEEHAR ER (Notes6,7&8)  (Notes 6, 7 & 8)

(WizE6 - 7R8) (M6 7R8)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued) ERRE (8)
Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions FERRRZA QT HKR G R EER G M E
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company #R#%X= ()

(continued)
(i) Short positions in underlying Shares:

(i) 1ERER 78X E

Number of Approximate

underlying percentage

Shares shareholding in

Name of Capacity/Nature interested the Company

Shareholder of Interest BEREN {EA A R B

BRREHE 5 RattE HERDEE HENE D

Delco Participation B.V. Beneficial owner 20,837,095 1.99%
EnlEAA (Note 9)
(Pit5E9)

HWH Holdings Limited Interest of the other parties to an 20,837,095 1.99%
agreement under section 317 of the SFO (Note 9)
BRRIERIIENTIRTIRE (P5E9)

BRI PR 2 s

Mr. Herman Maurits de Leeuw Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
Herman Maurits de Leeuw &4 REZIE R 7 i (Notes 5 & 9)
(F#E5%9)

SVO Company B.V. Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
REEHEE 2 (Notes 5 &9)
(PH3E5 % 9)

H.P.L. Metals B.V. Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
REAEENEE 2 2 (Notes 5 &9)
(FH3E5 % 9)

Stichting Beheer Aandelen Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
H.P.L. Metals REEHEE 2 (Notes 5 & 9)
(PHZE5 % 9)

Sims Metal Management Dragon Interest of the other parties to an 20,837,095 1.99%
Holdings Limited agreement under section 317 of the SFO (Note 9)
EHRBEROE T IE T HE (BF519)

BT AN A 2

EaREBERATA
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EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions

in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

(if)

Notes:

Short positions in underlying Shares: (continued)

= N 2

=

& ()

FERRRADANR G RAEERDHE
mR%AE ()

(i)

TR (789K R - (&)

Number of Approximate

underlying percentage

Shares shareholding in

Name of Capacity/Nature interested the Company

Shareholder of Interest BEREN {EA A R B

BRREHE g,/ ERtE HEROEHE HENE D

Sims Metal Management China Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
Holdings Limited MEIEHEE 2 (Notes 8 & 9)
(Pt 8 % 9)

Sims Metal Management Asia Limited Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
REEHER 2 s (Notes 8 & 9)
(FizF8 &9)

Sims Metal Management Limited Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
REAEGER 2 (Notes 8 & 9)
(FfizF8 & 9)

318,905,265 Shares are held by HWH as beneficial owner. The 31,266,667
underlying Shares comprise (i) 11,266,667 underlying Shares held by HWH
as beneficial owner which fall to be issued to HWH upon full conversion
of the Convertible Bonds; and (ii) 20,000,000 underlying Shares held by
HWH as beneficial owner which Greenwoods is obliged to deliver to HWH
upon exercise of the Call Option by HWH as referred to in Note 1 under
the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and
Its Associated Corporation” above. Green Elite holds 60,000,000 Shares
as beneficial owner and is 50%-owned by each of HWH and Delco and
therefore HWH is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares
as held by Green Elite.
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EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions

in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(2) Mr. Fang, Mr. van Ooijen, Mr. de Leeuw, HWH, Delco, Sims and Sims Asia
are considered having entered into an agreement under section 317 of
the SFO. The 403,006,735 Shares comprise (i) 5,614,000 Shares held by
Mr. Fang as beneficial owner; (ii) 300,000 Shares held by Mr. van Ooijen
as beneficial owner; (iii) 230,395,981 Shares held by Delco as beneficial
owner; and (iv) 166,696,754 Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner. The
170,725,536 underlying Shares comprise (i) 29,450,000 underlying Shares
held by Mr. Fang as beneficial owner; (ii) 3,100,000 underlying Shares held
by Mr. van Ooijen as beneficial owner; (iii) 52,100,000 underlying Shares
held by Delco as beneficial owner which fall to be issued to Delco upon
full conversion of the Convertible Bonds; (iv) 20,837,095 underlying Shares
held by Sims as beneficial owner which Delco is obliged to deliver to Sims
upon exercise of the Option by Sims; (v) 52,600,000 underlying Shares
held by Sims as beneficial owner which fall to be issued to Sims upon
full conversion of the Convertible Bonds; and (vi) 12,638,441 underlying
Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner which fall to be issued to Sims
upon full conversion of the Warrants. Therefore, HWH is deemed to be
interested in an aggregate of 573,732,271 Shares held by the other parties
to an agreement under section 317 of the SFO.

(3) 230,395,981 Shares are held by Delco as beneficial owner. The 52,100,000
underlying Shares represent such number of underlying Shares which fall
to be issued to Delco upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds. Green
Elite holds 60,000,000 Shares as beneficial owner and is 50%-owned by
each of HWH and Delco and therefore Delco is deemed to be interested in
the same number of Shares as held by Green Elite.

Em i E ()
EERRA S A AR R ARG MR
HRAA (H)

BIRE - ()
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EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions

in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

)

(5)

Mr. Fang, Mr. van Ooijen, Mr. de Leeuw, HWH, Delco, Sims and Sims Asia
are considered having entered into an agreement under section 317 of
the SFO. The 491,516,019 Shares comprise (i) 5,614,000 Shares held by
Mr. Fang as beneficial owner; (ii) 300,000 Shares held by Mr. van Ooijen
as beneficial owner; (iii) 318,905,265 Shares held by HWH as beneficial
owner; and (iv) 166,696,754 Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner. The
149,892,203 underlying Shares comprise (i) 29,450,000 underlying Shares
held by Mr. Fang as beneficial owner; (ii) 3,100,000 underlying Shares
held by Mr. van Ooijen as beneficial owner; (iii) 31,266,667 underlying
Shares held by HWH as beneficial owner as referred to in Note 1 above;
(iv) 20,837,095 underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner which
Delco is obliged to deliver to Sims upon exercise of the Option by Sims; (v)
52,600,000 underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner which fall
to be issued to Sims upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds; and
(vi) 12,638,441 underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner which
fall to be issued to Sims upon full conversion of the Warrants. Therefore,
Mr. van Ooijen is deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 641,408,222
Shares held by the other parties to an agreement under section 317 of the
SFO.

Delco is 50%-owned by each of SVO Company B.V. (“SVO") and H.P.L.
Metals B.V. (“HPL"). SVO is wholly-owned by Mr. van Ooijen. HPL is
wholly-owned by Stichting Beheer Aandelen H.P.L. Metals (“Stichting
HPL"), a foundation for the sole benefit of Mr. de Leeuw. Therefore, each
of SVO, Mr. van Ooijen, Mr. de Leeuw, HPL and Stichting HPL is deemed to
be interested in the long positions and short positions held by and through
Delco.
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EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions

in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(6) 166,696,754 Shares are held by Sims as beneficial owner. The 86,075,536
underlying Shares comprise (i) 20,837,095 underlying Shares held by Sims
as beneficial owner which Delco is obliged to deliver to Sims upon exercise
of the Option by Sims; (i) 52,600,000 underlying Shares held by Sims as
beneficial owner which fall to be issued to Sims upon full conversion of the
Convertible Bonds; and (iii) 12,638,441 underlying Shares held by Sims as
beneficial owner which fall to be issued to Sims upon full conversion of the
Warrants.

(7) Mr. Fang, Mr. van Ooijen, Mr. de Leeuw, HWH, Delco, Sims and Sims Asia
are considered having entered into an agreement under section 317 of
the SFO. The 615,215,246 Shares comprise (i) 5,614,000 Shares held by
Mr. Fang as beneficial owner; (ii) 300,000 Shares held by Mr. van Ooijen
as beneficial owner; (iii) 318,905,265 Shares held by HWH as beneficial
owner; (iv) 230,395,981 Shares held by Delco as beneficial owner; and
(v) 60,000,000 Shares held by Green Elite as beneficial owner. The
115,916,667 underlying Shares comprise (i) 29,450,000 underlying Shares
held by Mr. Fang as beneficial owner; (i) 3,100,000 underlying Shares held
by Mr. van Ooijen as beneficial owner; (iii) 31,266,667 underlying Shares
held by HWH as beneficial owner as referred to in Note 1 above; and (iv)
52,100,000 underlying Shares held by Delco as beneficial owner which
fall to be issued to Delco upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds.
Therefore, Sims is deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 731,131,913
Shares held by the other parties to an agreement under section 317 of the
SFO.
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EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions

in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(8)  Sims is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sims Metal Management China
Holdings Limited (“SMM China”), which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Sims Asia. Sims Asia is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sims
Metal Management Limited (“SMM"). Therefore, each of SMM, SMM
China and Sims Asia is deemed to be interested in the long positions and
short positions held by and through Sims.

(9) The short position in respect of 20,837,095 Shares represent the number of
the Option Shares which Delco is obliged to deliver to Sims upon exercise
of the Option by Sims.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
or the controlling shareholder of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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EEEHE (H)

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the senior management of the Group based on their performance,
experience, and prevailing industry practices so as to retain competent
employees.

The emolument of the Directors is decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to the
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual
report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
with the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float throughout the financial year ended 31 December
2013.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution
for the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s
auditor is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board
Chiho-Tiande Group Limited
Fang Ankong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2014
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Corporate Governance Report
PEemssapa

INTRODUCTION

The Company recognizes the importance of corporate transparency and
accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high standard
of corporate governance and leading the Group to attain better results
and improve our image with effective corporate governance procedures.

During the year ended 31 December 2013 (the “Year”), the Board (the
“Board") of Directors (the “Directors”) identified certain practices which
were not in full compliance with the hedging policy (the “Hedging
Policy”) of the Group. In view of this, the Board has taken remedial
actions and commissioned an independent professional to review the
internal control system and corporate governance of the Group. The
Company will review its corporate governance practices on a continual
basis.

Throughout the Year, the Company has adopted, applied and complied
with all the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) except on the deviations set out
below.

The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company
have not been segregated as required by the provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code.

Mr. Fang Ankong is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. With extensive experience in the mixed metal scrap recycling
business, Mr. Fang is responsible for the Group’s overall strategic
planning and the management of our business. The Board considers that
vesting the roles of chairman and chief executive officer in the same
person is beneficial to the business prospects and management of the
Group. The balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation
of the senior management and the Board, which comprise experienced
and high caliber individuals. The Board currently comprises three
Executive Directors (including Mr. Fang), one Non-Executive Director and
three Independent Non-Executive Directors and therefore has a fairly
strong independence element in its composition.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the guidelines for the Directors’ dealings in the
securities of the Company. Upon specific enquiries of all the Directors,
each of them confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the Year in relation to
their securities dealings, if any.

The Model Code has extended to be applicable to senior management
and relevant employees who likely possesses the inside information of
the Company.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group'’s business, strategic decisions and
performances and comprises seven Directors, including three Executive
Directors namely Mr. Fang Ankong, Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen
and Mr. Gu Liyong, one Non-Executive Director namely Mr. Michael
Charles Lion and three Independent Non-Executive Directors namely
Ms. Zhang Jingdong, Dr. Loke Yu and Mr. Li Xikui. The management
is delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for
the day-to-day operation and management of the Group under the
Board'’s instruction. In addition, the Board has also established various
Board committees and has delegated various responsibilities to the
Board committees including the Executive Committee (the “Executive
Committee”), the Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), the
Nomination Committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
Pricing Committee (the “Pricing Committee”) (together, the “Board
Committees”). All the Board Committees perform their distinct roles in
accordance with their respective terms of reference and further details
of these committees are set out hereunder. The Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration and the Group’s annual results for the
Year were approved in the board meetings of the Company.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business,
family or other material relationships among members of the Board.

The Non-Executive Director is appointed for a term of 3 years.
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RER®E (F)

THE BOARD (continued)

All of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a term
of three years. None of them holds any other offices in the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or is interested in any shares of the Company.
The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors a confirmation of his independence in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills, experience and diversity
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.

The Board has convened four regular meetings during the Year. The
attendance of all Directors at the Board Meetings, Annual General
Meeting (“AGM") and Extraordinary General Meeting ("EGM") of the
Company held during the Year are as follows:
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No. of Meetings attended/No. of Meetings held

HESEEA SETEEA
Regular Board Special Board

Meetings Meeting AGM/EGM
Name of Directors Exe Ezeg RERAFEAE/
EEpE EHER KAgE RREAIKE
Executive Directors HITES
Fang Ankong (Chairman) HEE(ER) 4/4 1" 212
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen 4/4 11 212
Gu Liyong BZE 4/4 1n 212
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Michael Charles Lion Michael Charles Lion 4/4 " 2/2
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES
Loke Yu e 4/4 n 22
Li Xikui FTHE 4/4 17 0/2
Zhang lingdong BEHR 4/4 1n 072
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THE BOARD (continued)
A special meeting was held for the Board to review the exposure level
of the Group’s commodity future contracts and the corresponding
procurement and inventory management strategy in light of the non-
compliance with the Hedging Policy.

The Company adopted a procedure to enable the Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’'s expense. Subject to the prior approval by the Chairman
of the Board and notification to the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, the Directors may seek independent legal, financial or other
professional advice from advisors independent of those advising the
Company as and when necessary in appropriate circumstances to
enable them to discharge their responsibilities effectively, either on the
Company'’s affairs or in respect of their fiduciary or other duties, at the
Company's expenses.

The Chairman of the Company held two meetings with the Non-
Executive Directors (including Independent Non-Executive Directors)
without the Executive Directors present in March and December 2013.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Executive Committee with written
terms of reference, which is responsible for the management and
administration of the business of the Company and any matters which
are within the ordinary course of the Company’s business under the
control and supervision of the Board and in accordance with the
provisions of the Terms of Reference of Chiho-Tiande Group Limited
for ensuring a high standard of corporate governance and compliance
of the Company. The written terms of reference of the Executive
Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.

The Executive Committee consists of Mr. Fang Ankong, Mr. Stephanus
Maria van Ooijen and Mr. Gu Liyong, the Executive Directors of the
Company, and is chaired by Mr. Fang Ankong. The Board delegated
the corporate governance function to the Executive Committee to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendation to the Board, review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, review and monitor the code of conduct and Model Code
applicable to the Directors or employees.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (continued)

Directors’ Training and Professional Development
Every newly appointed Director of the Company receives a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his appointment to make sure that he has proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Company and that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities in the Company.

During the Year, all Directors received regular updates and presentation
on changes and developments to the Group’s business and on the latest
developments in the laws, rules and regulations relating to the Directors’
duties and responsibilities.

The Company recommends Directors to attend relevant seminars for
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. During the Year, all Directors have participated
in continuous professional development programmes by attending
seminars, in-house briefing and reading materials. The Company
organized a training section conducted by a professional firm in
December 2013 on the new Companies Ordinance.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process, all Directors are encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses and they are
requested to provide their respective training records to the Company
Secretary for record as follows:

Name of Directors

HITRES (&)

EEHIREERE
AATSENETEFNERES TR HRE
B2E  EXFHAEMBOMERAM @ BR
HOBEE WERALTBERESR  URE
HAE AR A AR EL -

RAFE  FMEEFCRBAKEEBEIR
BEROTHEMLGH  AREHREERAN
BERER  ERRRENRIERE o

RATRIHEBER2 MFHE R XL RAERMAF
S DA R N R I ) AR S B RE o AN
B BERRBLEMNE - AEEHRNEE
B RAS IR EERERAE - AOFIEH
RAEPIN —FE—=F+ A As—&Edl
RIZ - ERBEEIIT -

EXRRIIRERERRE  MAEEEHESRZ
MAREIIRE - BRAAARAXN - BRE
AR RMERREESBHFIEENT

Attending seminars/In-house briefing/
Reading materials

EEHR SMHE RIBER B EM R
Executive Directors HITES
Fang Ankong (Chairman) FRE(XRE) v
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen v
Gu Liyong RFE v
Non-Executive Director FBITES
Michael Charles Lion Michael Charles Lion v
Independent BUKHTES

Non-Executive Directors
Loke Yu R g AR v
Li Xikui Tz 4
Zhang lJingdong EHR v
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RER®E (F)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in June 2010 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website. The Audit Committee has established a
whistleblowing policy of the Company in December 2012 and set out
the procedures on reporting possible improprieties in financial reporting
matters of the Company.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process and internal control
procedures of the Group and nominating and monitoring external
auditors. The Audit Committee consists of one Non-Executive Director
and three Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Michael Charles
Lion, Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Zhang Jingdong and Mr. Li Xikui and is chaired
by Dr. Loke Yu. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules,
the chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the appropriate
professional and accounting qualifications.

The Audit Committee has convened three meetings during the financial

year ended 31 December 2013 with the attendance of each member as
follows:

Name of Committee members
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CFXFEEEEEERGHER -
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No. of Meetings attended/
No. of Meetings held

ZEEREHSR HESEREE T ETERYE
Independent BYFHTES
Non-Executive Directors

Loke Yu (Chairman) REgMR(EE) 3/3
Li Xikui Fip= 3/3
Zhang Jingdong B 3/3
Non-Executive Director FHTES

Michael Charles Lion Michael Charles Lion 3/3

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed in the Committee
meetings the audited financial results for the year ended 31 December
2012, the unaudited interim results of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2013, the connected transactions report for the year
ended 31 December 2012, the whistleblowing policy report for the
period ended 30 June 2013, the engagement terms and remuneration
of auditors and the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the
Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in June 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages and
conditions of employment for the Directors and senior management
and evaluating and making recommendations on employee benefit
arrangements. The Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Fang
Ankong and Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen, Executive Directors, and
Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Zhang Jingdong and Mr. Li Xikui, Independent Non-
Executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Fang Ankong.

The Remuneration Committee has convened two meetings during the
Year with the attendance of each member as follows:

Name of Committee members

FHEES

AARE MR £ RIS AR A
FUR-B-FENARIHFMERS - 3]
PEEBEGE - HHEB T BEREGE
PO SR B4 B AR A R B AP o

FHEEEN I ERERERESTRSRE
BAENFMHES RERKERNESSRY
B ARFMEIEMNLH Rt iR H &
HOTHNEESRENTESHITERER
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen 04 A K387 JF
WOTEFREEME L  EFRLLTRTHEL
o FRERERFMNEERER -

RAEE  FHEESLBRAMAISHE @ §K
SHFEET

No. of Meetings attended/
No. of Meetings held

ZEENERE HESEYA SBTEREHA
Executive Directors HITES

Fang Ankong (Chairman) FEZE(ER) 212
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen 2/2
Independent BYFHTES

Non-Executive Directors

Loke Yu B 7 Ak 2/2
Li Xikui ESVES 2/2
Zhang Jingdong EHR 2/2

Throughout the Year, the Remuneration Committee has discussed and
recommended to the Board for approval of the bonus payment to the
Directors and senior management of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012, the Directors’ and senior managements’ remuneration
of the Group for the years of 2013 and 2014, the grant of share options
to the Executive Directors, refresh the scheme mandate limit of the Post-
IPO share option scheme and the renewal of service contracts of senior
management of the Company in 2013.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee in June 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a set
of the revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee on 15
August 2013, which has included changes in line with the amendments
to the Main Board Listing Rules relating to the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report which came into effect on 1
September 2013. The written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.

The duties of the Committee include:

1. to formulate nomination policy for consideration of the Board and
implement the nomination policy laid down by the Board;

2. to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

3. toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

4. to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors, having regard to the requirements under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited;

5. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors
in particular the chairman and the chief executive;

6.  to do any such things to enable the Committee to discharge its
powers and functions conferred on it by the Board; and

7. to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitution of the Company or imposed by legislation.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Fang Ankong and Mr.
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen, Executive Directors, and Dr. Loke Yu, Ms.
Zhang Jingdong and Mr. Li Xikui, Independent Non-Executive Directors
and is chaired by Mr. Fang Ankong.

The Nomination Committee has convened 1 meeting during the Year
with the attendance of each member as follows:

Name of Committee members

REEEE (&)
REZESRRATEEFLRELER
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen &4 A K& 5837 IF
WITESREMNEL  EMRLIRTHES
B FREFERREEEGER -

REZEERAEELTBR— e
HEMT

P BEKE

‘I]]]IJ

No. of Meetings attended/
No. of Meetings held
SMEBRBE LITEEHE

ZEEHREHA
Executive Directors BITES
Fang Ankong (Chairman) FEZE(ERF)

Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen

171
7

Independent BYFHTES
Non-Executive Directors

Loke Yu BeE /G A

Li Xikui SV ES

Zhang Jingdong FHCR

7
1”7
7

Throughout the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed
and discussed the composition, size and structure of the Board, the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors, re-election
of Directors and adoption of revised terms of reference.

In considering the nomination of new directors, the Company will
propose the candidates to the Nomination Committee and the
Committee will review and make recommendation to the Board on the
expertise, skills and experience of the candidates appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Company.

The composition of the Board has the significant element of diversity,
in terms of skills, regional and industry experience, background and
gender.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has established a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 15 August 2013 which sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

RER®E (F)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Board Diversity Policy (continued)

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and education background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.

PRICING COMMITTEE

The Company established the Pricing Committee in June 2010 to review
and determine the offer and selling prices of the Group's physical
stock, the Group’s inventory level and hedging positions requirements
on a daily basis; to enhance the risk management of commodity price
fluctuations and to ensure an effective risk monitoring system. The
Pricing Committee comprises Mr. Fang Ankong, Mr. Xu Jialiang, Mr. Zhu
Zhonghui, Mr. Gan Jun, Ms. Chan Tung Tung and Mr. Chow Wan Hoi
Paul and is chaired by Mr. Fang Ankong.

The Pricing Committee has convened twelve regular meetings and one
special meeting during the Year with the attendance of each member as
follows:
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No. of Meetings attended/No. of Meetings held

HESBME ETEEEE
Name of Committee members Regular Meetings Special Meeting
ZEERERA EHEEH HRlE®R
Chairman of Pricing Committee EEZEEXRE
Fang Ankong FRZE 12/12 11
Committee members EEEME
Chow Wan Hoi Paul il 12/12 1/1
Xu Jialiang FFINR 12/12 1/1
Zhu Zhonghui KB 12/12 11
Gan Jun HE 12/12 11
Chan Tung Tung BRI 12/12 11
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PRICING COMMITTEE (continued)

Throughout the Year, the Pricing Committee has reviewed the Group’s
monthly physical stocks price and commodities transactions. A special
meeting of Pricing Committee was held on 30 October 2013 and the
Independent Non-Executive Directors were invited to attend, review and
discuss the exposure level of the Group’s commodity future contracts
and the corresponding procurement and inventory management
strategy in the third quarter of 2013. On 20 January 2014, the Pricing
Committee held another review meeting with the members of the Board
to review the Group’s commodity future contracts’ exposure level and
the corresponding procurement and inventory management strategy in
the fourth quarter of 2013 and to revise the Group’s Hedging Policy. The
revised Hedging Policy is available on the Company’s website.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary provides support to the Chairman, Board and
Board Committees by ensuring good information flow and that Board
policies and procedures are followed. The draft Minutes of all Board
Meetings and Committee Meetings were circulated to the Board and
Board Committees within a reasonable time. All signed Minutes and
Resolutions of all Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were
circulated to all the Directors and Committee Members for record.

The Company Secretary is not an employee of the Company. The
Company appointed Mr. Gu Liyong, the Executive Director, as primary
contact person with the Company Secretary of the Company.

The Company Secretary has attended relevant professional seminars to
update her skills and knowledge. She has complied with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules and has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Year.
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AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
During the Year, the fees paid or payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
in respect of its audit services and non-audit services are as follows:

BB EN B &
RAFE - BERRY R IEERR D RE
FEE « MRS EHEATOMSMT

HK$
BT
Type of services IREER
Audit fee for the Group AEEEZEA 2,310,000
Review of the Group's Interim Result HEAEEFEEE 610,000
Review of the Group’s Internal Control FH AR EENEEEE 300,000
Review of Continuing Connected EHFERERS
Transaction 50,000
Total et 3,270,000

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all
information and representations contained in the financial statements
of the Company for the Year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that
period. The Directors consider that the financial statements have been
prepared in conformity with all appropriate accounting standards and
requirements and reflect amounts that are based on the best estimates
and reasonable, informed and prudent judgment of the Board and the
management. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the financial statements of the Company on a
going concern basis.

The statements of the auditors of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 91 of this
report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for establishing, maintaining and operating
an effective system of internal controls. The Company leverages
on the expertise offered by internal and external professionals to
develop its internal control system which includes a well-established
corporate structure and an organization with clearly defined lines of
responsibility and authority. The Internal Control Department is to
provide independent assurance to the Board and executive management
on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls for the Group.
The internal control system is reviewed and assessed on on-going basis
by the Executive Directors, and will be further reviewed and assessed at
least once each year by the Audit Committee and the Board.

Internal Control Department adopts a risk-and-control based audit
approach. The annual work plan of Internal Control Department covers
major activities and processes of the Group’s business units. The audit
plan is reviewed and agreed by the Audit Committee. In addition to the
agreed schedule of work, Internal Control Department conducts other
review and investigative work as may be required. All audit reports are
communicated to the Audit Committee and key members of executive
and senior management. Audit issues are tracked and followed up for
proper implementation, with progress reported to the Audit Committee,
executive and senior management periodically.

During the Year, the Board identified the following practices which were
not in full compliance with the Hedging Policy:

(@)  the Hedging Policy provides, among other things, that at any time
the quantities of metal futures contracts that the Group may buy
or sell cannot exceed 50% of the actual physical inventories held
by the Group at the relevant time (the “Hedging Limit"”) without
the approval of the Board. The Hedging Limit was exceeded during
the Year but owing to an unintentional failure in the internal
control of the Group, no Board approval had been sought at the
relevant times; and
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INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

(b)

the Hedging Policy sets out, among other things, the target
inventory turnover days that the Group aims to achieve under
normal circumstances and market conditions, and provides that
the Board must approve any change to the inventory turnover
day criteria. The Hedging Policy also requires the Board to obtain
professional advice on the current and future market outlook
of the commodities market if the target inventory turnover days
could not be met. During the Year, the inventory turnover days
were longer than the target inventory turnover days of 90 days
because of various practical reasons, including seasonal factors
and prevailing market conditions, but no Board approval had been
sought at the relevant times nor had any professional advice been
sought.

In view of the above, the Board has taken the following actions to
address the above issues:

(a)

the Board has resolved that the Executive Directors should improve
their reporting system to manage the hedge positions correctly,
the Company should reduce the quantity of metal futures
contracts as soon as reasonably practicable in order to reduce the
exposures to the futures market, and that the Pricing Committee
should take necessary steps to strengthen its internal control
system to ensure strict adherence to the Hedging Limit;

the Board has appointed an independent professional to perform
an internal control and corporate governance assessment (the
“Internal Control and Corporate Governance Assessment”) and
make recommendations to the Board, and the Internal Audit
Manager of the Company was assigned to participate and assist
in the Internal Control and Corporate Governance Assessment.
The Internal Control and Corporate Governance Assessment
was completed in February 2014 and a report (the “List of
Findings and Recommendations Report”) was submitted to the
Company in March 2014. The Board has resolved to adopt the
List of Findings and Recommendations Report and implement the
recommendations in the List of Findings and Recommendations
Report;
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EREE ()

INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

(0)

the Board has also resolved to appoint the same independent
professional to provide compliance training to the Directors in
order to enhance the awareness of the Directors with regard to
internal control and corporate governance; and

the Board considered it is unrealistic to maintain the then target
inventory turnover days of 90 days, and that the Board should
be given a discretion to determine whether it is necessary for
the Board to engage and seek relevant professional advice.
Accordingly, the Board has resolved to amend the Hedging Policy
such that (i) the target inventory turnover days is now changed
from 90 days to 160 days; (i) any change to the inventory turnover
day criteria (i.e. if the inventory turnover days are more than
160 days) will require approval by the Board in accordance with
the terms of the Hedging Policy, save that no such approval is
required if the target inventory turnover days are not achieved
in January and February owing to the intervening Chinese New
Year holiday; and (iii) in the event that the commodity market
experiences a sustained and sharp decline in prices that are likely
to cause a lengthening in the inventory turnover days, the Board
may consider engaging and seeking relevant professional firms
to advise it on the current and future market outlook of the
commodities market.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication policy
(the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) in March 2012 for
setting out the policies, communication strategies and practices of the
Company for communication with its shareholders. The Shareholders’
Communication Policy enables the shareholders (the “Shareholders”)
of the Company to obtain comprehensive and plain information of
the Company, to exercise their powers on an informed basis and to
strengthen their communication with the Company.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2013
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

The Company has established and maintained a dialogue with
Shareholders by conveying information to the Shareholders and
investors through the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual
reports); annual general meetings and other meetings that may be held;
and all the information submitted to the Stock Exchange for disclosure,
as well as corporate communications and other publications which shall
be posted on the website of the Company.

The Company undertakes to convey information to the Shareholders
and investors in a timely and effective manner at all times. If there are
any questions about the Shareholders’ Communication Policy, it shall be
delivered to the Company Secretary or the Head of Investor Relations
Department of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders general enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available.

Procedures for putting forward enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time forward enquires to the Board in writing
through the Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the
Board for handling. Contact of the Company Secretary is as follows:

The Company Secretary

48 Wang Lok Street

Yuen Long Industrial Estate
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2587 7799
Email Address: cosec@chiho-tiande.com
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B SRAER ()
BRABERRAGZERF

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings

Subject to the provisions of the articles of association of the Company
(“Articles of Association”), the Listing Rules and the applicable laws
and regulations, Shareholders may convene general meetings of the

RIBARBAGZIZAR ([ERAA ) FE
EHRARERERIER - RRAIRBEIAT
BFARERRRBERAS

Company in accordance with the following procedures:

One or more Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company (the “Requisitionist(s)”) may require the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company (an
“"EGM") by depositing a written requisition (the “Requisition”) at
the registered office of the Company at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and a copy thereof at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at 48 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long
Industrial Estate, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or the
Company Secretary.

—ZREZERREZBRBBARETD
RER TRV ARFTRREAG LIRE
ZARABFREA T2 —8IRE([F
KADAIBEREFGBRARRAIRR S
AMRg(RREFNARE ] ZHEKA
REBBRERTEFREDZEEZEERD
A FEf I FEEE (#h ik & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands) &
HEIARBXREARARABEBETEEEME
(it BEB TR T X PR LA 4857)
WHABEESRARIMWE -

2. The Requisition must clearly state the name(s) and shareholding in EREBETEESHE KA ZHL LR
the Company of the Requisitionist(s), specify the purposes of the NElLZRE - PIBARERERIRE 2 B &Y
EGM and the details of the business proposed to be transacted in RERIRERRIARS LRIE 2 FIEME
the EGM and be signed by the Requisitionist(s) and may consist of 15 WHERASZE : ZEREZ0E
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the ZHEERER 2t §HHa %
Requisitionists. URBRAEE -

3. Upon receipt of the Requisition, the Directors shall verify the WRFERkER - EFEERRNEZRHD
Requisition with the Company’s branch share registrar and upon BN EZEZERE  URERZS
this confirmation that the Requisition is proper and in order, shall SREALZENEER  EYETEAXEHM
forthwith proceed duly to convene the EGM, and such EGM shall PRERFRAS  ZBREERASHERS
be held within two (2) months after the deposit of the Requisition. SKERRIEM (2) 8 A NEAT o

4. If the Directors do not within twenty-one (21) days from the date MERBEREE -_+T—QNBR &=

of the deposit of the Requisition proceed duly to convene the
EGM, the Requisitionist(s), may himself or themselves convene the
EGM in the same manner and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General

Meetings (continued)

5. Under the Articles of Association and pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, a notice specifying the time
and place and the general nature of the proposed business to be
transacted at the EGM shall be given to all Shareholders entitled
to attend the EGM for consideration in the following manner:

(i)  notice of not less than 21 clear days or 10 clear business
days, whichever is the longer, if a special resolution is to be
passed at the EGM; and

(i) notice of not less than 14 clear days or 10 clear business
days, whichever is the longer, in all other cases, provided
that a EGM may be called by a shorter notice if it is so
agreed by a majority in number of the Shareholders having
the right to attend and vote at the EGM, being a majority
together holding not less than 95% in nominal value of the
issued shares of the Company giving such right.

The notice period is exclusive of (i) the day on which the notice is
served or deemed to be served; and (ii) the day on which the EGM
is to be held.

Procedures for Shareholders to Make Proposals at
General Meetings

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Listing
Rules and the applicable laws and regulations, Shareholders may
propose a resolution at general meetings of the Company by following
the “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General Meetings” to
convene an extraordinary general meeting and propose a resolution
to be resolved at that extraordinary general meeting. Please refer to
the document titled “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings” on the Company’s website.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for

Election as a Director

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Listing Rules
and the applicable laws and regulations, the Company may from time to
time in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect any person to be a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director.

1. Shareholder(s) may propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a Director at general meeting in accordance with the
following procedures:

(@) a Shareholder or a group of Shareholders holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may requisition an extraordinary general meeting
to propose the Candidate to be elected as a Director in
the manner provided in “Procedures for Shareholders to
Convene General Meetings”; or

(b)  Election of directors whether by rotation or otherwise in
the place of those retiring would be considered ordinary
business at an annual general meeting of the Company (the
“"AGM") and if the notice of an AGM includes the election
of Directors, any Shareholder may propose the election of
any person as a Director at the AGM,;

Provided that, in each case, no Candidate other than a Director
retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors
for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless:

(i)  a notice signed by a Shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such Candidate for election; and

(i) a notice signed by the Candidate of his willingness to be
elected,

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2013
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for

Election as a Director (continued)

shall have been lodged to the Company at its principal place
of business in Hong Kong at 48 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long
Industrial Estate, Hong Kong within the period of at least seven (7)
days commencing on the day after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting and ending no later than seven (7) days prior
to the date appointed for such general meeting.

In addition, the notice must contain the information as specified in
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules about the Candidate, including
but not limited to the following:

(i) full name;

(i) age;

(iii)  business and residence addresses;

(iv)  principal occupation or employment;

(v)  experience including (a) other directorships held in the
last three years in public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or
overseas, and (b) the major appointments and professional
qualifications; and

(vi) interests in shares of the Company within the meaning of

Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 576
of the Laws of Hong Kong).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the Year, there was no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The management of the Company believes that effective and proper
investor relations play a vital role in creating shareholders’ value,
enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing market
confidence. As such, the Company has adopted a stringent internal
control system to ensure true, accurate, complete and timely disclosure
of relevant information pursuant to requirements of relevant laws
and regulations in order to ensure all shareholders equal access to
information. To strive for effective communication and transparency
of the Company, the personnel in charge have frequent contacts with
Shareholders and investors through various channels such as interview,
presentation, internet, telephone and email.

In addition, we have during the Year organized numerous site visits
to our facilities with several fund managers and equity market
analysts. Through the site visits, the visitors managed to have a better
understanding of the Group’s operations and the opportunity to know
more about the Group’s development strategy.

We will continue to establish communication opportunities in order to
enhance investors’ understanding of and confidence in the Company.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

To deter wrongdoing and to promote standards of good corporate
practices, the Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy in
December 2012. The policy aims at encouraging and enabling
employees of the Group at all levels and others to report violations
or suspected violations and to raise serious concerns about possible
improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other matters of the
Group.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the securities
regulations of the Stock Exchange, and publishes periodic reports and
announcements to the public in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations. Our primary focus is to ensure information disclosure
is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling
Shareholders, investors as well as the public, to make rational and
informed decisions.

m Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZHMmRE

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHIHO-TIANDE GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chiho-
Tiande Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 93 to 231, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continued)

By RBEHE (&)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2013,
and of its loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

RERERAEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &

=—F_—

EE—=F+_HA=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E-=f —Z——fF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
BisE FET FHET
Revenue W 7 7,222,003 8,202,702
Cost of sales SHEKA 8 (7,245,813) (8,031,286)
Gross (loss) profit E(18) 7 (23,810) 171,416
Other income HAh A 9 43,665 21,453
Other gains and losses H e &g 10 (60,558) 272,760
Distribution and selling expenses DHERHERAS (35,481) (33,456)
Administrative expenses TR (133,250) (155,294)
Other expense HinfA® 17 - (32,156)
Finance costs BATSRAR 11 (172,342) (172,689)
(Loss) profit before tax BrEiAT (E518 ) m A (381,776) 72,034
Income tax expense FriSBiRS 14 (25,742) (32,683)
(Loss) profit for the year FR (E18) & F 12 (407,518) 39,351
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hip2EWA (BX%)
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: e EFHHBEIBENER ¢
Exchange difference arising on translation MEKEREY
to presentation currency EERNELZSE 51,050 (8,029)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently FEEARET EEER
to profit or loss: HIER -
Reclassification adjustment relating disposal FLHE A ERA
of available-for-sale investment ENHBEFE - 429
Fair value loss on available-for-sale investment At HERE AT EFRE (1,417) (805)
Cumulative impairment loss reclassified to FAIEHERE M B D
profit or loss on available-for-sale investment ZER 2EREBE - 7,029
(1,417) 6,653
Other comprehensive income (expense) FREMEERA (FX)
for the year 49,633 (1,376)
Total comprehensive (expense) income FR2E (Fx) KABRE
for the year (357,885) 37,975
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: ATEAEEEAN (FE)&H
Owners of the Company ZA/NEIE ZEUN (382,920) 88,591
Non-controlling interests JEERR RS (24,598) (49,240)
(407,518) 39,351
Total comprehensive (expense) income ATE 7RG
for the year attributable to: FREE (FX) WAL :
Owners of the Company RRAEEA (331,677) 87,422
Non-controlling interests FEE R RS (26,208) (49,447)
(357,885) 37,975
HK$ HK$
(Loss) earnings per share ik (EE) BF
— basic —HAR 16 (0.37) 0.08
- diluted — 16 (037) 0.8
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R &

At 31 December 2013 R=ZE—=F+_-_H=+—H

2013 2012
—E—= —E—_4F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
ks FET FAET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE &kHE 17 331,530 298,463
Prepaid lease payments BRHEE 18 433,069 346,547
Investment properties TEYHE 19 28,942 30,808
Available-for-sale investment AlEHERE 20 14,053 15,470
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WM - =
plant and equipment REBREFARE 41 40,332 2,063
Deferred tax assets R THE 33 5,997 12,621
853,923 705,972
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 21 2,570,273 2,982,599
Trade and other receivables E 5 Kk EAMEKGIR 22 708,035 786,074
Bills receivables e 23 6,614 7,054
Amount due from a substantial shareholder f&Us=E Z % R I8 38 36,442 23,636
Prepaid lease payments TBRHEE 18 10,642 8,687
Investments at fair value through BEATEFABRZRE
profit or loss (“FVTPL") (MM RAFETAEZRE]) 24 - 24,677
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A 25 132,688 55,438
Tax recoverable AREIFIE 10,334 9,484
Pledged bank deposits BEEBIRITER 26 141,841 105,765
Margin deposits RE® 26 175,405 44,656
Bank balances and cash IRITRBRIRE 26 271,095 447,937
4,063,369 4,496,007
Current liabilities mENBE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E A EFRIE 27 328,284 265,439
Amount due to a substantial shareholder e EZARRAKIE 38 78,721 42,917
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA 25 33,303 21,520
Tax payable FERTHLIE 2,268 14,640
Bank borrowings and overdrafts RITIEEREX 28 1,958,680 1,949,673
2,401,256 2,294,189
Net current assets mENEERE 1,662,113 2,201,818
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERREBERE 2,516,036 2,907,790
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

e MBIRR R (&)

At 31 December 2013 R=ZE—=F+=-HA=+—H

2013 2012
—E—-= —E—_4F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHExT FAT
Capital and reserves B2 R @
Share capital &N 29 10,446 10,435
Share premium and reserves A&7 (B R i 1,763,914 2,104,570
Equity attributable to owners RNARER ANE(EERS
of the Company 1,774,360 2,115,005
Non-controlling interests Eediig o 30 (67,671) (41,463)
Total equity RSB 1,706,689 2,073,542
Non-current liabilities FRENEE
Convertible bonds AIRARE S 31 759,406 708,547
Embedded derivative components AMAARE AR AT
of convertible bonds PTETAE S 31 13,353 85,290
Warrants RRRHE R 32 1,331 8,046
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIEAE 33 35,257 32,365
809,347 834,248
2,516,036 2,907,790

The consolidated financial statements on pages 93 to 231 were HRFEPBEE21ENGEATBEREN_-_Z
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 March ~ —pO4E=F -+ AEEES I EREEA D

2014 and are signed on its behalf by: WHTINESREESE :
Mr. Fang Ankong Mr. Gu Liyong FRERE BEB XL
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR BE BE

ST



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERgEx

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlE T —=F+-_A=+—HIFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BENRATERREA
Foreign Attributable
Capital Share Statutory  Enterprise  Investment  currency tonon-
Share Share redemption ~option  Capital  general  expansion revaluation  translation Accumulated controling
apital  premum reseve  reseve  reserve Teserve fund — resene  resene  profits  Sub-fotel  interests Total
ErRE R ek GRER REER  MEEX ek
ke BhkE i e A1GH i 5] i e Zraf Ny Bake )
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKF'000  HKY'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000
Tén TRr  TEr  fEr  TEn TR T fEr  TEn Tt TEr  TEn TEn
(notel) — (noteil)  (noteil)
() (W) (Rski)
At 1 January 2012 W-E-"%-5-A 10419 884911 00 278 22760 94905 94905 (6,653) 126773 59504 2046622 17398 2,004,020
Profitfor the year Epghl = - - - - - - - - 83591 88591 (49240)  393M
Bchangediference  HEREH
arsing on translationto ~ EXEEH)
presentation cureny  EXEE - - - - - - - - (18 - 18 207 (309
Reclasifed to profitor loss EFABEHETE
on disposel of avalable- ~ HERARR
for-sale investment - - - - - - - 09 - - 0 - 49
Fair value loss on avallable- AEHEREATE
for-sale investment BB - - - - - - - (805) - - (805) - (805)
Cumulative mpaiment ~ ERARZERE
loss reclassified toprofit ~ BEZAEHERE
orlossonimpaiment  BfEEE
of avalable-for-sale
nvestment - - - - - - - 10 - - 109 - 109
Total comprehensive
income fortheyear  FRZERALE = = = = = = = 6,653 (182) 88591 A @947 37975
Cash dividend paid BIERERE (i 15)
(Note 15) - - - - - - - - - (38612 (38612 - (38612
Share options exercised BT E
(Note 29 {note i) (29 (Ht) % 1920 - Q) - - - - - - 9735 = 9,735
Lapse of share options~ EERIER - - - B - - - - -8 - - -
Recognition of equity-  ELREEER
settled share-based iR AR
payments (Note37) ~ fi3(HiE37) - - - 170 - - - - - - 1B N T ;]
Shares repurchased RABE R
and cancelled (W 29 (ki)
(Note 29 {note i) (200 (7.845) 20 - - - - - - (200 (7.865) - (7869
Deregistration of a HE i
non-wholly sbsidiary ~ WEAR
(note i) (Fiakii) - - - - - - - - - - - o4 (9414
Transfer of reserves kel - - - - - 18 7,261 - - (145)) - - -
At31 December 2012 =32
tZA=1-H 10435 888,986 20 9% 22760 102,167 102,166 - 118951 639333 2115005 (41463 2073542
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

REER2ER (H)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HEZ =T —=F+=-F=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BEREARBEREL
Foreign Attributable
Capital ~ Share Statutory Enterprise Investment  currency tonon-
Share  Share redemption  option  Capital  general expansion revaluation translation Accumulated controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve fund  reseve  reseve  profits  Sub-total  interests Total
EREE  EhE HE-R  LERE  REER  MMEY 3ok

BE  REEE it B EARE L i i Bk R 0t REEL it
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tén TR TR TR T TER TR TR TR TR TR TER AR
(noted)  (noteii)  (noteii)
(Wa)  (WaEi) (i)
Loss for the year gk - - - - - - - - - (3829200 (382920)  (24598) (407,518)
Bchangediference ~ EERER
arsng on translationto ~ EEEEH

presentation cureny  EREE - - - - - - - - 52660 - Sa860  (1610) 51050
Fair value loss on avallable- AEHEREATE

for-sale investment BB - - - - - - - (141) - - (141) - (141)
Total comprehensiie ~ FRZE

xpense for the year Az - - - - - - - (1417 52660 (382920) (33167)  (26,208) (357,885
Cash dividend paid BlEERE

(Note 15) (s 15) - - - - - - - - - W) ) - ()
Share options exercised {7 ERE

(Note 29 {note i) (K20 (Hiaki) 15 48 - (1109 - - - - - - 33 - 331
Lapse of share options %H%?%H - - - (1809 - - - - - T809 - - -
Recognition of equity- ~ FEZMRELER

setfled share-based HRABERZNR

payments (Note 37) (K&37) - - - 10762 - - - - - - 10762 - 10762
Shares repurchased RABE R

and cancelled (k20 (i)

(Note 29 (note i) @ (1320 4 - - - - - - @ (13 - (139)
Transfer of reserves fifkER - - - - -0 0 - - (8419) - - -
At31December 2013 HZF-=%

t2A=1-A 10446 892,493 04 38K 20760 104376 04376 (1417) 1611 231656 1774360 (67,671) 1,706,689

notes: B & -

(i) Capital reserve represents the sum of (a) the difference between the nominal value 0) BARFEERE@QARAR-ZETN\FE @iiﬁmﬁﬁq&z
of the aggregate share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries acquired by BHBARIRAERM EEABZEAEEAR
the Company upon a group reorganisation in 2008 and the nominal value of the HARAEFT TR 2 EENEZE R (b) =& Tié
gg%pany's shares issued in exchange and (b) a capitalisation of shareholders’ loans in MEPRRE TR ©

(ii) Statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund represent the appropriation (ii) AABRRMBAFMELGSZMAETE - ARE
of 10% of profit after tax determined based on the relevant accounting rules and EP;E_)\Eﬁﬂ(M:J)mgg HEAIR ,ﬁ;ﬁfﬁm
regulations of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") as required by the Articles of BRI BT 10% BAEE—REBROERRE
Association of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. The appropriation may cease to apply if ® o MET—MREERLERRES AT EDR R M
the balance of the statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund has reached B AR E AR 50% » A A4 FBHE o

50% of the PRC subsidiaries’ registered capital.

(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group decided to deregister a 51% (iii) REBEE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—HLFEE  £5H
owned subsidiary. Immediately prior to deregistration, all assets (other than cash) were RFEFEH — F'ﬁf?ﬁﬁ 51% eI EB A 7] o BHEEH
disposed of and liabilities of the subsidiary were settled. The cash of HK$19,212,000 Bl ZMBARMEERE GRERINCEENRE
was distributed to the equity owners in proportion to their equity interest. BEEAEE - IE 19,212,000 8 T IRERER AR

SIS R TS EBA -

wexeamamAn —e-=sEn



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE—E—=F+_A=+—HILFE
2013 2012
—BE-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETED
(Loss) profit for the year Em(EE) B (407,518) 39,351
Adjustments for: HTIIRBEZHE
Income tax s 25,742 32,683
Finance costs BB 172,342 172,689
Interest income FIEHA (6,207) (6,689)
Dividend income from available- A HERERSMA
for-sale investment (428) (418)
Depreciation of investment properties REMFENE 1,866 1,244
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BERRENE 34,308 69,254
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments e 3 8,829 7,995
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE - BEREENESR 2 2,139
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables B 5 RE MR RERE 2,91 8,014
Share-based payment expense PR AR 2 A 10,762 17,703
Reclassification of cumulative impairment loss on BN/ RAREERE . 2ERESE
available-for-sale investment - 7,029
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale investment HERHHEREER - 429
Gain on fair value change of derivative ARREFTETANH 2
components of convertible bonds ATEEFHNEG (71,937) (57,481)
Gain on fair value change of warrants RRERENTEES N (6,715) (5,372)
Net foreign exchange gains B 5 e 558 (99,881) (6,858)
(Reversal of allowance) allowance of inventories (BEBE) FakE (6,243) 40,618
Operating cash flows before movements EEECEHA
in working capital MEERSTE (342,079) 322,330
Decrease in inventories FERD 500,822 196,576
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 RE W IER > 87,869 19,441
Decrease in bills receivables EWREER D 654 26,627
Increase in amount due to a substantial shareholder &= 2R EF BN 22,998 19,281
Decrease (increase) in investments at FVTPL BROTEFABRORER D (M) 24,677 (24,585)
Increase in derivative financial instruments TSI AN (64,438) (36,811)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables B 5 REMENFEL ML) 66,356 (246,085)
Cash from operations BEmERS 296,859 276,774
Interest paid ERFE (122,951) (131,865)
Tax paid BNFE (31,637) (24,158)
Tax refunded BREWE 2,141 44,720
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHHRERSTE 144,412 165,471
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

RERERER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

2013 2012
—E-Z=F —F-—&
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER AT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BENE  BEREE (57,806) (89,671)
Deposit for leasehold interests and property, HERRRNE  BERZH2ES
plant and equipment (50,332) (1,526)
Refund of deposit for leasehold interests HERERE BN 10,000 -
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment  HEWE « BEk&EEFE 1,008 9,913
Payment for prepaid lease payments LR EEANES (89,537) (152,637)
Placement of margin deposits FARES (1,379,976) (568,209)
Withdrawal of margin deposits RERES 1,250,358 594,723
Placement of pledged bank deposits BEABERBFTER (223,163) (106,360)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RIMEBERRITER 189,664 127,620
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale investment  HE A H &R EMETIE - 2,785
Dividend received from available-for-sale investment WA HERE TR S 428 418
Interest received BIHE 5,009 6,689
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETBMARSEE (344,347) (176,255)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
New bank borrowings raised MEBRITEE 7,304,449 8,243,516
Repayment of bank borrowings BRETREE (7,266,950) (8,946,129)
Issue of convertible bonds and detachable warrants  E77 AR Rk &2 J I RS R e s - 815,800
Repurchases of shares BRI (1,324) (7,865)
Net proceeds from issue of shares through exercise FRTRERERTROMETEFE
of share options 3,737 9,735
Return of investment to non-controlling interests RSB A AR R RERRERE
upon deregistration of a subsidiary - (9,414)
Dividend paid EffRE (22,143) (38,612)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RETBHHERSTE 17,769 67,031
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH RERASSEEAFE(AD)EM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (182,166) 56,247
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY R-A-HBRERELEEER 446,536 390,477
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES  SNEEXRZBHHNTE 6,409 (188)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER R+=-A=+—-HHEERBEELZEEHR 270,779 446,536
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HeRBESEEB AN
Bank balances and cash RITERIRE 271,095 447,937
Bank overdrafts (Note 28) HBITES (13 28) (316) (1,401)
270,779 446,536

rexesmanen —2-z55n [N



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMIEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlE T —=F+-_A=+—HIFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated and registered as an exempted
company in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability. The shares of the Company
have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 12 July 2010. The
Company’s registered office is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and its main place of business is located at Taizhou Industrial Zone
of Metal Recycling Fengjiang, Lugiao, Taizhou, Zhejiang, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 43.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB").
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$") for the convenience of the shareholders as the
Company is listed in Hong Kong.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new or revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements;

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements;

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in

Other Entities;
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Statements, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interest in Other Entities:

Transition Guidance;

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FREMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (continued)
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement;
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee Benefits;

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate Financial Statements;

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures;
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures-Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities;
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income;
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2009-2011 Cycle; and

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production

Phase of a Surface Mine.

Except as described below, the application of the new or revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

FE R #TR] K RS RT BB R I 3R
HEA(EBYHREEL D)
(%)

BREMBHRELERE 135K AVEHE:
BAGEUE19% EERM
(R=F——F&EA)

BRGIERE27H BURBERE -

(R=F——FEET)
BAEGERF 285 HEMaEhE

(RZZ——FFEFT) RE:
EEREREEANETR BE-HHSH
CHEN) LERERE
BfE:
BELFERE 15 Hiv2ENRER
CHEN) T
BB BREER BN REE
CHES AIZZTTAF
ET——F
BEEFE
ot R
% (BRUEHRERE BRESEEDN
ZEE)-RBFE0H  HBKA-

BRI XFrioh - RANFE R 3] R IERT
BERMBRERNHAREREFEBESF
EZRBRRARMAR, TRZEFE TR
KB RBELEEATE -

BaXtEEERAT —ET-ZFFRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“"HKFRSs") (continued)
New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures comprising HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements, HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, HKFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, HKAS 27 (as revised in
2011) Separate Financial Statements and HKAS 28 (as revised in
2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, together with
the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 regarding
transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group as it
deals only with separate financial statements.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 changes the definition of control such
that an investor has control over an investee when a) it has power
over the investee, b) it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and c) has the ability to use
its power to affect its returns. All three of these criteria must be
met for an investor to have control over an investee. Previously,
control was defined as the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries. In general, the application
of HKFRS 12 has resulted in more extensive disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the
application of these five standards in the current year and
concluded that they have had no material effect on the amounts
reported in these consolidated financial statements. However,
additional disclosure on Group’s interests in subsidiaries has been
made in Note 43.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance
for fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; the fair value
measurement requirements of HKFRS 13 apply to both financial
instrument items and non-financial instrument items for which
other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, subject to a few
exceptions.

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that
would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in
the case of determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at
the measurement date under current market conditions. Fair
value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure
requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application from 1 January 2013.
In accordance with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the
Group has not made any new disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for
the 2012 comparative period. Disclosures of fair value information
are set out in Notes 6 and 19. Other than the additional
disclosures, the application of HKFRS 13 has not had any material
impact on the amounts recognised in these consolidated financial
statements.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1T—HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation
of Items of Other Comprehensive Income. The amendments
introduce new terminology for the statement of comprehensive
income. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, the ‘statement of
comprehensive income’ is renamed as the ‘statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income’. The amendments
to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made in the
other comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a) items
that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and
(b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis — the amendments do not change the option to present
items of other comprehensive income either before tax or net
of tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively,
and hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the
above mentioned presentation changes, the application of the
amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit
or loss, other comprehensive income and total comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1T—HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities retrospectively
for the first time in the current year. The amendments to HKFRS 7
require entities to disclose information about:

a) recognised financial instruments that are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation; and

b) recognised financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting agreement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether the financial
instruments are set off in accordance with HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 have been applied retrospectively.
The application of the amendments has had no material impact
on the amounts reported in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements but has resulted in more disclosures relating to the
Group's offsetting arrangements and master netting agreements.
Detailed disclosures are set out in Note 6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE=F—=

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“"HKFRSs") (continued)
New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 cycle?

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 cycle*

Financial Instruments?
Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition

Disclosures®

Investment Entities’

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities’

Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets'

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge

Accounting’

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies'

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 with limited
exception

8 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be determined
when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in 2010 to include the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for hedge accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.

o With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at FVTPL, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes
in the financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as FVTPL was presented in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future
will affect the measurement and classification of the Group's
available-for-sale investment but may not affect the Group’s other
financial assets and financial liabilities.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues
relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities
requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning
of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off’ and
‘simultaneous realisation and settlement’.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 32 will have significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Group does not
have any financial assets and financial liabilities that qualify for
offset.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to disclose
the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit (“CGU") to
which goodwill or other intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives had been allocated when there has been no impairment
or reversal of impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore,
the amendments introduce additional disclosure requirements
regarding the fair value hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation
techniques used when the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU
was determined based on its fair value less costs of disposal.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
these amendments to HKAS 36 will not have a significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Except as described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of new and revised HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective will not have material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EZ ==

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

3 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights
are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the
Group's voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders
or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing
below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and carrying an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. In the
event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefits of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EZ ==

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in order
to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the accounting
policies below); and

° exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the
monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of Group’s entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

—=F+ZA=t+—HILFE

3.

BERETTECR (&)

Shik

REEREE B BN BRI - LI
ZEBBEE ONE) EITHR HIRR
S BHERMNERTER - NS E2HRLE
HEH DUNSEHEMNEKIEEORER
HEHMERSEHNAE - INESTER
LKA ERFEERIEE IBESEH
HBE -

SRTE B W E BN E L R
R HEATHE R -

ERRERKREERGZERE
EZIEBECELEZR %%
ERBRRRINEEREZFBEA
AEETARTEEZIRA

o  ARYEMETINERBETZIRS
ZERER(2HTXEFEER)
P54

s RBRIEBNBEBINERHBZERIRE
ZERZR  BEASEERD
B2 AR (E b RN

BEREZ—87)  NIFREM
2EREER  WREEEKIR

BEmEaEN O EEER

MEFGEMBHRERME  AEEER
MEEMBEREZRPEEANESK
BEXRANEENZ7EE(AET)
MR B AR FE R FIE R E - H
EXRERAERBRNGRI - EZBER
T BEARZERNERRE - fFE
EEREERE(NE) BRREMEEKRA

WRSNE BB R (AER - SRR
EG) BT RETIHE
BEaXMEBARAR —T-=FFk

115




116

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Share-based payment arrangements

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received
determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the date of grant is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share option reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to
profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
accumulated profits.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and
deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EZ ==

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than construction in progress), are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Plant and equipment in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such plant and equipment
are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other plant
and equipment, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of assets (other than construction in progress) less their residual
value over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined by the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and cost
necessary to make the sales.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale (“AFS") financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset
is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

3 it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

o it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping
is provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising from remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item. Fair value is determined in
the manner described in Note 6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated
as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) financial assets at
FVTPL or (b) loans and receivables.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS
financial assets and are traded in an active market are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in
the fair value of AFS equity investments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of investment revaluation reserve. When the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or
loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables, bills
receivables, amount due from a substantial shareholder, pledged
bank deposits, margin deposits and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EZ ==

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an AFS equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Financial assets such as trade receivables that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the respective credit periods, as well
as observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
and loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or
loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investment revaluation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instrument issued by the Company are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
The Group's financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are derivatives
that are not designated and effective as hedging instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any interest paid on the financial liabilities and is included
in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item. Fair value is determined in
the manner described in Note 6.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amount due to a substantial shareholder and bank borrowings
and overdrafts) are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other
than those financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL, of which the
interest expense is included in net gains or loss.

Convertible bonds and warrants

Convertible bonds

The component parts of convertible bonds issued by the Company
are classified separately as financial liabilities and derivative in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
on its initial recognition. Derivative that will be settled other than
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments
is a conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the liability and derivative components
are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The derivatives together
with other embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and derivative components in
proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating
to the derivative components are charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the lives of the convertible loan notes using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Convertible bonds and warrants (continued)

Warrants

Warrants that will be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments are classified as derivatives
and are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group's derivative financial instruments include commodity
futures, provisional pricing arrangements and foreign currency
forwards contracts.

Contracts to buy or sell a non-financial item at a future date that
can be settled net in cash are accounted for as derivatives unless
they were entered into and continue to be held for the purpose
of the receipt of the non-finance item in accordance with the
Group's expected purchase, sale or usage requirement.

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship.

Derivatives of the Group do not qualify for hedge accounting
thus they are deemed as financial assets held-for-trading or
financial liabilities held-for-trading. Changes in fair values of such
derivatives are recognised directly in profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of
a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

3.

EXRSFTEHE (&)

SRIA (&)

RIERER
EEEERDRENA QRN Z HE
HHEEREERLEERBENBAR
BoEBRNEOHRERE S —BRE - K
SESTERIEREREE - HAKE
DRECEEEREERARNBAR
DEREER  AEEREERAZES
BEEYRERC WS RENEBMRE
RITERERSBMEER - EEREE
HEW R EEREZZEARREME
E s TR R iR RE 2 RET B &
AR FERR

EHEEAKRENEERER - BUESE
miEs - ARBETERIEERASREAE -
RIEERNeRABE I RAERD R
ENREZ ZBENEaTER o

BREEREZER

RBEHR  AEEHEAVEENK
EEETEN  URTZXESEERSD
HRERBENTIR o fif 1 IR E %S
R BHEEENAIRE S FEETEEIA
EEREBR(HE) - M TaEMhatE—
BEMAEKREE  RIAKEAEEE
EfENREELEUNATOKESE -
RABAIGER —BEARNEET - &
EEEMEO R EAIRSELEMT
BRIgH DA B RIE—EHRE
EFRNR/NREELENS -

BaXtEEERAT —T-ZFFK

129




130

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EZ ==

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Write down on inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventories listing on a
category-by-category basis at the end of reporting period, and
assesses whether the cost of the finished products will exceed their
net realisable value. Management estimates the net realisable value
for such inventories based primarily on the latest resale value and
quoted prices on applicable commodity exchanges. If the market
price of inventories are to decline, additional write down may be
required. The Group's inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the end of reporting period. The carrying amount of
inventories is disclosed in Note 21.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

When there is indication that an item of the property, plant and
equipment has suffered an impairment loss, management of the
Group takes into consideration of the estimation of its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount calculation requires the Group
to estimate higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use
expected to arise from the property, plant and equipment and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment is disclosed in Note 17.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in
progress) are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives, after taking into account their estimated
residual value. The Group assesses annually the residual value
and the useful lives of property, plant and equipment. If the
expectation differs from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the depreciation charge in the year in which such estimate
is changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4.

(continued)

Fair value of embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds and warrants

As described in Notes 31 and 32, the directors of the Company
use their judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation technique
for financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
The fair values of the embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds and warrants are determined using the Binomial
Option Pricing Model adjusted for specific terms and conditions
of the respective instruments. Major inputs into the model include
quoted market prices, risk free rates, expected volatility, dividend
yields and the option’s life.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group'’s overall strategy remained unchanged
from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
bank borrowings and overdrafts and convertible bonds disclosed
in Note 28 and Note 31, respectively, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising capital, various reserves and accumulated profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. The directors of the Company also balance the
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share repurchases as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 31
December 2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. &RITHE
6a. Categories of financial instruments 6a. SEMTEMER
2013 2012
—E-=5F —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financial assets SREE
Investments at FVTPL BAFEFABRZZERE - 24,677
Derivative financial instruments PTEEMITAE 132,688 55,438
Loans and receivables (including B EYGRIE (B4
cash and cash equivalents) RekAeFMEER) 915,988 837,874
AFS investment Al S 14,053 15,470
Financial liabilities SRasE
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A 33,303 21,520
Embedded derivative components [ EER AR ITE
of convertible bonds TAHFS 13,353 85,290
Warrants AR E 1,331 8,046
Amortised cost SRR 3,033,070 2,916,427
BeXitEEBERAT —T—=FF#H 133
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, bills receivables, investments at FVTPL,
derivative financial assets, pledged bank deposits, margin
deposits, bank balances and cash, amounts due from and to
a substantial shareholder, AFS investment, trade and other
payables, derivative financial liabilities, bank borrowings
and overdrafts, convertible bonds, embedded derivative
components of convertible bonds and warrants. Details
of the financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely

and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency sales, purchases,
trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
margin deposits, bank balances and cash, AFS
investment, trade and other payables, derivative
financial instruments, bank borrowings, which expose
the Group to market risk arising from changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management closely monitors its foreign currency risk
exposure and considers any foreign currency forward

contracts should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TEITHE(E)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. SEEKEEBERECE (H)

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

In addition, the Group had entered into several
foreign currency forward contracts with a bank
to reduce its exposure to currency fluctuation
risk of payments for trade payables which were
denominated in United States dollars (“USD"”). The
derivatives were not accounted for under hedge
accounting. The Group was required to estimate the
fair value of the foreign currency forward contracts at
the end of the reporting period, which therefore also
exposed the Group to currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets
and liabilities which are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entities are as follows:

HiE R ()
() EEmE(E)
AN - AR B — R RTTR]

T ZERHINES K - AR
EERURET([ET]) X
B I RNFRAMEERNES
MRENERR o T4 T ARIRY
MEEDEIIR - AEBAR
HEHRMGHEIINES L
ZAYE - ALERAKE
R A S R o

AEEEREENBEBZR
EETIRAREEER 2
BEEMR SN 2 AT Bt
A :

2013 2012
—2-= =T==f
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
Monetary assets EWEE
HK$ BIT 13,496 5,935
RMB AR 300 3,770
usbD =TT 136,861 16,030
Euro ("EUR") Buor (BTl ) 7,575 221,714
Monetary liabilities E¥aE
HK$ BIT 830 4,420
usbD =TT 1,815,277 1,669,891
EUR BT 28,705 14,950
Net monetary assets EREE(BE)FE
(liabilities)
HK$ 7B TT 12,666 1,515
RMB ARH 300 3,770
usD =TT (1,678,416) (1,653,861)
EUR BT (21,130) 206,764
BEXMEEERAT —T—=FF#&




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currencies
of HK$, RMB, USD and EUR when such currencies are
different from the functional currency of the relevant
group entities.

A 5% sensitivity rate is used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
because it represents management’s assessment of
the possible change in foreign exchange rates. On
this basis, if the foreign currencies strengthen/weaken
against the functional currency of the relevant group
entities by 5%, the Group's post-tax loss for the year
would decrease/increase (2012: post-tax profit for
the year would increase/decrease) by the following
magnitude, and vice versa:

ST A (&)
6b. SEAREERBRIEK (H)

s R ()
() EEmE(E)

AEMEIBRBL AR
% ETRETE IR
EE B EME R
HEIEEAR -

NARIAHREREREAER
3 o1 2B B {5 B 5% O B
RELLE TR EREK
& 18 B ATRT {4 0B R Al gk H IR
RO BIEL R o EA I - fissh
ks S RIERA SR E B B 2 TAE
EEBAE/EESY  A5E
FABRTE BB 18
MZE—=—F: FRKRK
1% 555 F 45 28 00k A ) B 1
BT - RZIMA

2013 2012
—g2—= —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Decrease (increase) in loss RZZE—=FEERL GEm)
in 2013;
increase (decrease) in RZZ—ZF RN ORL)
profit in 2012:
Monetary assets and E¥EERER
liabilities
HKS$ strengthening against BT i AREHE
RMB 529 63
USD strengthening against ~ ELEARBHE
RMB (62,865) (62,656)
EUR strengthening against BT HARE
RMB/USD /ETAHE (882) 8,335
RMB strengthening against AR ETHHE
usD 13 157
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis below had been determined
based on the exposure to the Group’s forward buying
rate risk at the end of the reporting period. If the
forward exchange rate of USD and EUR strengthens/
weakens 5% against RMB and USD respectively while
all other input variables of the valuation models were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year
would decrease/increase (2012: post-tax profit for
the year would increase/decrease) by the following
magnitude:

6. RIE (&)
6b. SREKRESEAEREE (H)

s R ()
() EEmE(E)
BRE W ()

AT SRE DT TR B AR &=
B 7 7 45 HA SR P T B 2 3 R
BABEXRRRET ° WET
KRBT H AR &3 TT iR
X5 B AE/FZESS -
M EER 2 FrA Etbs A
BEHEFTE  AAEEF
AR BB A 1N
—T——F: FRKRFE
i A 0, R ) By iR
T

2013 2012
—g2—= —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Decrease/increase in loss R=ZZ—=FFERD G0N
in 2013;
increase/decrease in profit i e 27 |62 | - AN
in 2012:
USD strengthening against 704 AREFHE
RMB 99 =
EUR strengthening against BT R ZEILAE
usD - 2,646

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
not necessarily representative of the inherent foreign
exchange risk as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

Other than HK$, RMB, USD and EUR, the Group
does not have any other major exposure to foreign
currency risk.

EaREBERAT

BEEERR  BRFRER
EERREANRRE - BEK
RUE DT I AR BB SME
=

BAET - ARE - ZTRE

TN REE N EEH H A
TEINERR -

—E-=FFR
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EITHE(E)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. £EEKEEBERECE (H)

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on bank deposits and variable-rate bank
borrowings. The Group's cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of London
Interbank Offered Rate arising from the Group’s USD
denominated borrowings.

The Group considers that the variable-rate bank
balances are within short maturity period, and
the fluctuation in interest rate and the cash flow
interest rate risk arising from the bank balances are
insignificant.

The Group’'s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to its fixed-rate pledged bank deposits, bank
borrowings and overdrafts and convertible bonds.
It is the Group’s policy to maintain a majority of
borrowings at fixed rate of interest so as to reduce the
cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate
hedging contracts. Management monitors the
Group's related interest rate exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure

s R ()

(i)

FIE 2R
REBRERITER TSI
TTEERE RS &% B
MESRSREN KRR o
AEERREREN R R
TEEPREREEAET
FHEMERS RN RBERTT
BESISGVEIK

AEERRZRRITERTY
REHRBIE - A =R E
RRRITHEBKEHNR SR
E = b BT E AR o

AEEHN D FHENXRRE
RHEFSEEMRITER
RITIEE KB R AR E
HHR o NEBHBUR A1
RBOEERTBERLE
5 REHRSREMNEE

B o

2N E5 [ 3 AR BT S AR AR R
e  EEESTYERE
755 8 4R B M) = R B 0 7 44
Z i Z B8 B AR

when the need arises. % o
Sensitivity analysis R E ST
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary RERE R - % B EE
liabilities which carried variable interest rates at the BHNASEEKBEREE
end of the reporting period are as follows: AN
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Liabilities =k 1,086,913 245,160

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2013




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRIITAE)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis below was determined based
on the exposure to risk of interest rate changes for
variable-rate bank borrowings at the end of the
reporting period and management considered that
such exposure for variable-rate bank deposits was
minimal as the amount involved was not significant.

A 100 basis points increase or decrease was used
when reporting interest risk internally to key

6b. TEEMREEREREE &)

s R ()

(i)

FIE @bz (&)
HRE T (B
THHBREDMIER RS
HIRF BRTTRER N K&
BERME - RS HE
IR HEEERSTER
EeREZ 0k E S o) S
x o

LA 100 B E 2L FH K BAE 25
RAREEEEE A8 2|RF

management personnel because it represented EEpe - EHERLAEEE
management’s assessment of the possible change in E R R O] gE B ENRYREAE ©

interest rate.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax loss for the year would increase/
decrease (2012: post-tax profit for the year would
decrease/increase) by the following magnitude:

i 1) Z= 32 0,37 2> 100 {1 2
i ET A A B g - Bl
ANEEF AR % E B
m/ g (Z=E—=F: F
[ B i 18 05 B 5 38 hn R

D)RIREAT
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Increase/decrease in loss R-Z—=FEHEEN, R
in 2013;
decrease/increase in profit M= T— TR 0
in 2012 8,152 1,839
EeRMEEERAT —ZT—=FF3& 139
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE M mRAE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

6b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Equity, debt and commodity price risks
At 31 December 2013, the Group was exposed to
equity, debt and commodity price risks through its
AFS investment, investments at FVTPL, aluminium,
copper, zing, steel rebar and nickel future contracts
and its provisional pricing arrangements embedded in
sales contracts.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below is determined based on
the exposure to commodity price risk of aluminium,
copper, zinc, steel rebar and nickel future contracts
and the provisional pricing arrangements embedded
in sales contract of copper scrap at the end of
the reporting period. If the commodity price risk
of aluminium, copper, zinc and steel rebar future
contracts and the quoted copper future price for the
valuation of provisional pricing arrangements had
been 5% higher/lower, the Group’s post-tax loss
or other comprehensive income for the year would
decrease/increase (2012: post-tax profit or other
comprehensive income for the year would increase/

ERT A (&)
6b. SEAREERBRIEK (H)

iR ()

(i) ARAE - (EIERE G B E R
RZE—=F+=—RA=+—
B AEEERAIHEER
& BAFEFABSE R
&8  i BE - SN 4R
HEAK RSSO
B B E 1B 2 Bk 1 0 S AR
EIE R EmERER o

THSEE DT T ER &3k
REAE A A AR EHE & #I K
HHREEELEEmE AR
o B BB T AE o fif 88
i - SR E S MR
mEBEELEEEBLZH
HEMRMIRNBEER L
Tt/ 5% @ BIAREREF
ARTBEBEIEMEZE
Wasm b AEm( =T —=
F : FRRRTE R S E A
2 U453 0,5 ) B

decrease) by the following magnitude: BT :
2013 2012
—E—-= —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Decrease/increase in loss R=ZT—=FFERD G0
in 2013;
increase/decrease in profit MZZF— A,
in 2012 173,844 89,893

The sensitivity analysis above excluded the price
risks on AFS investment and investments at FVTPL as
the management considers the price sensitivity on
AFS investment and investments at FVTPL are not
significant.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TEITHE(E)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. £EEKEEBERECE (H)

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued) iz (&)
(iv)  Equity price risk on the Company’s shares (iv) A2 AR R ETE S

At 31 December 2013, the Group was also exposed to
equity price risk as a result of the fair value change on
the embedded derivative components of convertible
bonds and the warrants the Company had issued as
set out in Notes 31 and 32.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below is determined based
on the exposure to the Company’s shares’ equity
price risk of embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds and warrants. If the share price
of the Company inputted to the valuation model for
assessing the fair values of the embedded derivative
components of convertible bonds and warrants had
been 10% higher/lower while all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year
(2012: post-tax profit for the year) would be changed
by the following magnitude:

Company's share price 10% higher

R-F—=F+t=-A=+—
B AKBEITEARARDE
TR AR ESR 2 RARLT
AT R D RRBREZEZA
T EZB)(20MIE31 K32 AT
) MEERREERRR -

HREE DT

Y BREE DM TR B AT
BfEZ 2 iR AT T A
2 N R RERE P E B 2 AR R
AR ERERMEE ©
PR R4 AT AR A 25 2 B A
HOTET B EO RBBER
WA FEMEAZEGER
K2 AR RRAE LR/ T B
10% - i Pr A H At & 8 4R
AR BIARRBFABRD
BEEB(ZZE—ZF: R
BRx iz ) Z 8 2 18 40
T~

Company's share price 10% lower

RAARELR10% RAARETHR10%

2013 2012 2013 2012

—E-ZF —T--fF —Z2-=F —EZF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT T TERT THT
(Increase) decrease in loss RZS-=FEE(EN)

in 2013; Wb

(Decrease) increase in profit RZF-ZF5H(HY)

in2012 1 (7.163) (25,673) 5470 22,825

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analyses
are not necessarily representative of the inherent
market risk as the pricing model used in the fair value
valuation of the embedded derivative components
of convertible bonds and warrants involves multiple
variable where certain variables are interdependent.

EaREEERAT

ERERR  BRESNR
PREREBMSER - FHS
AMREF ZBRARITET
EAbn R B HERE 2 A F(E
BEPMAERZEEBER -
BREEER - MEPET

—E-=FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had concentration of
credit risk as 61% and 79% (2012: 31% and 73%) of its
total trade receivables was due from its largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively. The five largest
customers have good repayment history and credit quality
with reference to the track records of these customers under
internal assessment by the Group.

The Group is also exposed to concentration of credit risk
arising on the amount due from a substantial shareholder of
HK$36,442,000 (2012: HK$23,636,000) as at 31 December
2013, and deposits with several banks and commodities
future brokers with high credit ratings. The substantial
shareholder has good repayment history and credit
quality with reference to the track records under internal
assessment by the Group.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group'’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2013

6.

ERT A (&)
6b. SEAREERBRIEK (H)

FEERK
RZE—=F+=ZA=+—8"
AEBRR S5 EEBITEMEM
HEZXVBEENZAEER
BFEE RFREMBIKARES
AR EReREE 2 REE -

RZZE—=F+=-RA=+—H0"
ArEEEEESETER  FES
JEUGRIBREN61 % K%T79% (==
— % :31% % 73%) D RIKBE R
SENEAREFRAKREFE - 1R
BAEEHZERFEL AEET
Mt RERFPHEERTEN
S REEEE -

R-—E—=F+=-_RA=+—8"
REEBETHEEREZRFRIE
36,442,000 (= F — = F -
23,636,000/ 7T ) KR & THRIT
MEEREEFSzERMBEL
BZBERAMAZEESTRR -
K2RBAEB AN TH 2 BTR
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TEITHE(E)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. SEEKEEBERECE (H)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk TENE L E R

The objective of the Group is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for non-derivative financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the
end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group's liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial liabilities. The table was
drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual net cash
outflows on derivative liabilities that settle on a net basis,
and the undiscounted gross (inflows) and outflows on those
derivatives that required gross settlement. The liquidity
analysis for the Group’s derivative financial liabilities
were prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management considered that the contractual maturities
were essential for an understanding of the timing of the
cash flows of derivatives.

AEENERERREFERE
BRERRTEE ZHNFE -

TRFANAKEFTESZRBE
MR EWFH - JIRBRAE
B A sE AN A R F B HRIETT
EEHMABERMBRRESRE - i
MERERZE  KEBRSHEA
WRERON R ARG H -

BESN - TRFNAREEITES B
BENRBESON - BRAF
BREENITEBBERMARSR
R RUEREENITER
BERBALBORAR) LR T
E-HREERERSANFHY
BERTEBERERENKHE
MER #AKETLESRAR
MRBES DT HER A FH
i #mEd ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. =R ITA (&)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. SEEKEEBERECE (H)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) RENE L E b (&)
Liquidity and interest risk tables BB & RFEE R F1E
Total carrying
On value at the
Weighted  demand or Total end of the
average less than 13 3months 1-5 undiscounted  reporting
interestrate ~ 1month ~ months  to 1year years cash flows period
mE  REXE ZRAZ RERRE WREHRZ
ToRE HR-fA -E=fA -§  -ERf RESE REAE

%  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

At 31 December 2013 ZF-ZE+ZA=t-R
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3Efi4£RE [
Trade and other payables BAREMENTE - B5119 - 544 - 6263 236,263
Amount due to a EREERFNE
substantial shareholder - 78121 - - - 78721 78721
Bank borrowings and overdrafts  BAEERER
- fixed rate -EE 151 438,653 60,984 375,463 - 875,100 871,767
- variable rate ) 253 838,893 1,038 251,790 - 1,091,721 1,086,913
Convertible bonds HRES
- fixed rate ) 4.00 - 16,316 16,316 832,116 864,748 759,406

1,591,986 78338 644113 832,116 3,146,553 3,033,070

Derivatives - net settlement fiEIA-FHEE
Aluminium, copper, zinc, steel rebar 38+ £ + 3% - SFEREHEAH

and nickel future contracts - 18,816 12,632 1,235 - 32,683 32,683
Provisional pricing arrangements  EBEREERH - - - 181 - 181 181
18,816 12,632 1416 - 32,864 32,864

Derivatives - gross settlement ~ HATA-AHEER
Foreign currency forward contracts ~ SMS&E44)

~inflow =i - - - - (16,222) (16,222) (16,222)

- outflow ~ i - - - - 16,661 16,661 16,661

- - - 439 439 439

Derivative financial liabilities ELRaE 18,816 12,632 1,416 439 33,303 33,303
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TEITHE(E)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. SEEKEEBERECE (H)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) RENE L E b (&)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) REE 2 RFIF R Z1E ()
Total carrying
On value at the
Weighted ~ demand or Total  end of the
average  less than 13 3months 1-5 undiscounted  reporting
interestrate 1 month months  to 1 year years  cash flows period
g REXE =Rz AERRE REEERZ
TaNE  SR-BR  —2=fif -£  -FRf  RBLE  BE4E

%  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

At 31 December 2012 ZE-ZETZA=t-R
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3Efi4£RE[E
Trade and other payables BAREMENTE - 21529 - - - 2529 21529
Amount due to a EREERFAE
substantial shareholder - 4917 - - - 42917 42917
Bank borrowings and overdrafts  BAEERER
- fixed rate -EE 3.67 808,746 546,687 361,250 - 1,716,683 1,704513
- variable rate —#8. 345 695 1390 248346 - 50431 245,160
Convertible bonds HRES
- fixed rate ) 4.00 - 16,316 16,316 864,748 897,380 708 547

1067648 564393 625912 864748 3,122,701 2916427

Derivatives - net settlement fiETR-LERFE
Aluminium, copper, zing and 8 BRARHESH

steel rebar future contracts - 6,676 13331 - - 20,007 20,007
Provisional pricing arrangements  EBEEERH = = = 1433 = 1433 1433
6,676 13,331 1433 - 21,440 21,440

Derivatives - gross settlement ~ H1ATH-£EHE
Foreign currency forward contracts ~ SM&E844)

~inflow —iA - - (73,652) - - (73,652) (73,652)
- outflow il - - 73,732 - - 73,732 73,732
- 80 - - 80 80

Derivative financial liabilities ELHaE 6,676 13411 1433 - 21520 21,520

EARMEBERAT —ZT-=F5§ 145




146

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE M mRAE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

6¢.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 month” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December
2013, the aggregate carrying amounts of these bank
borrowings amounted to HK$1,275,158,000 (2012:
HK$629,252,000). Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the directors do not believe that it is
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid within
two years (2012: within two years) after the reporting date
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements and the facility letters. At that
time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows
of HK$1,274,788,000 and HK$15,785,000 will be repaid
within one year and one to two years respectively (2012:
HK$447,462,000 and HK$201,046,000 within one year and
one to two years respectively).

The amounts included above for the variable interest rate
instruments are subject to change if changes in actual
interest rates differ to those estimated at the end of the
reporting period.

Fair value

Fair value of the Group'’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and
inputs used), as well as the level of fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value measurements are categorised (levels
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.
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6.

ERT A (&)
6b. SEAREERBRIEK (H)

6¢C.

REBESRER (&)
BIREREEZRITEERA
MEHE DA 2 (R Bkt
—EA | EHBERN - R=F—
F+-—A=+—8 %R
B RM{ER%EE1,275,158,000
BIL(=ZZ — = : 629,252,000
BIT) o BEr RAEE 2 B AR
W& EFHERT AR
FEHBIFEABZRKENEER -
EEZHE 2SRITEEBRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6c¢.

Fair value (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a

6. RIE (&)
6c. AFE(H)

BREMEELNPEFEZE

EEEREERERMEBZIAY

recurring basis (continued) B (&)
Fair value as at Relationship of
31 December Significant unobservable
213 Valuation unobservable inputs to
Financial assets WZE-Z% Fairvalue technique(s) inputs fair value
(finandial liabilities) +ZB=1-H hierarchy  and key input(s) EXTUEE FUBEG G ER
SREE(SHER) ZAVE  ATERR  fHERRRIZEAME BARE AYENRE
HK$'000
ThR
1) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong 14,053 Level 1 Quoted bid price on the Stock N/A N/A
classified as AFS investment in the £~ Exchange iR i
consolidated statement of financial RERFHREAE
position
1) REREERIRRARATHLERE
LREE ETRAES
2)  Aluminium, copper, zinc, steel rebar 130,272 Level 1 Quoted hid commodity future prices ~ N/A /A
and nickel future contracts classified (32,683) =%  onthe london Metal Exchangeand TR NER
as derivative finanial instruments in the Shanghai Future Exchange
the consolidated statement of financial RAEBR AR LERER AR
position AnfEEAE
) REeMBRIRTABANESRIA
288 AFREREA
3)  Provisional pricing arrangements 2,149 Level2  Computation of difference between N/A N/A
classified as derivative financial (181) 28 quoted bid market price of copper NER NER
instruments in the consolidated futures with the adjustments for the
statement of financial position purity of the copper scraps sold and
3 REREBIRIRRIRANEERIA contract prices.
LERTERH The key inputs were quoted copper
future price on the London Metal
Exchange and the Shanghai Future
Exchange and purity rates of copper
scrap.
STERBEAREME LT AR
MEATBERNEZZR
IEHABEANGILRR MR
HEBERSHAREHEER
BRAR -
BeXitEEERAT —T—=FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE M mRAE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6¢c. Fair value (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a

6. SRIE (&)
6c. AFE(H)

BREMEELNPEFEZE

EEEREERERMEBZIAY

recurring basis (continued) B (&)
Fair value as at Relationship of
31 December Significant unobservable
213 Valuation unobservable inputs to
Financial assets WZE-Z% Fairvalue technique(s) inputs fair value
(finandial liabilities) +ZB=1-H hierarchy  and key input(s) EXTUEE FUBEG G ER
SREE(SHER) ZAVE  ATERR  fHERRRIZEAME BARE AYENRE
HKS'000
ThR
4) Foreign currency forward contracts 267 Level 2 Future cash flows are estimated based ~ N/A N/A
classified as derivative financial (439) 28 on forward exchange rates (from MEE TR
instruments in the consolidated observable forward exchange rates at
statement of financial position the end of the reporting period) and
4 RERUBRIRRARANTEERIA contracted forward rates.
LNERERH REESNEHAE (REEHATE
R ANEH %) RETHNESR
SRR ARR R ©
5  Embedded derivative component of (13,353 Level 3 Binomial Option Pricing Model. Expected volatility, ~ The higher the
convertible bonds (note i) =  Thekey inputs are the Company's taking into account  expected volatility, the
5 ARREFRAATELASS (W) share price, exercise price, expected the average historical — higher the fair value.
volatility, dividend yield, option ife volatility of the BEESEA ATE
and risk free rate. Company's share HA
ZEHERERS - price as at the date of
IEGNIRRARARE B valuation.
BERD  REOHRE  BEERRE  EERINRAR
BRHE AREREERSZ
THRELRE
Dividend yield, The higher the
taking into account ~~ dividend yield, the
the Company's lower the fair value.
historical dividends ~~ EEH%HR - AF
payout ratio and B
management's
experience.
TREERE DA RAR
AELREREERE
BESR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE M mRAE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &

E-F-=Ft-A=+-BLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6c¢.

Fair value (continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a

6. RIE (&)
6c. AFE(H)

BREMEELNPEFEZE

EEEREERERMEBZIAY

recurring basis (continued) B (&)
Fair value as at Relationship of
31 December Significant unobservable
213 Valuation unobservable inputs to
Financial assets WZE-Zf% Fairvalue  technique(s) inputs fair value
(financial liabilities) +=h=t-H hierarchy  and key input(s) EXFTRE FBEGAHER
SHEE (SHER) ZOTE  AVERR  AERKRIZAANE BARE AVENRE
HK$'000
Tén
6)  Detachable warrants to the convertible (1,331) Level 3 Binomial Option Pricing Model. Expected volatility, ~ The higher the
bonds classified as warrants in the £=8  Thekeyinputs are the Company's taking into account  expected volatility, the
consolidated statement of financial share price, exercise price, expected the average historical  higher the fair value.

position (note i)
6  RERUBIRARTARARREE T
AfARERARES (Hii)

volatility, dividend yield, warrant life
and risk free rate.

DRHEEREEL -
IZHAIBATLARE F7RE
BHRE REDHE  AREZHR
REmpEHE -

volatility of the
Company's share
price as at the date of
valuation.
BEEBNARAR
AREMAEREZ
THAELES o

Dividend yield,

taking into account
the Company's
historical dividends
payout ratio and
management's
experience.

RS BB DA RAR
AELREREERE
BESR -

EaREEERAT

k6L AT
fBHA -

The higher the
dividend yield, the
lower the fair value.
REEREDS - A
THE#) -

—E-=FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
6c. Fair value (continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (continued)

notes:

(i) If the expected volatility to the Binomial Option Pricing Model was
10% higher and lower while all other variables were held constant,
the carrying amount of the embedded derivative component of
convertible bonds would increase by HK$5,497,000 and decrease by
HK$4,615,000 respectively.

If the dividend yield to the Binomial Option Pricing Model was 10%
higher/lower while all other variables were held constant, the carrying
amount of the embedded derivative component of convertible bonds
would decrease/increase by HK$45,000.

(ii) If the expected volatility to the Binomial Option Pricing Model was
10% higher and lower while all other variables were held constant,
the carrying amount of the Warrants (as defined in Note 31) would
increase by HK$539,000 and decrease by HK$452,000 respectively.

If the dividend yield to the Binomial Option Pricing Model was 10%
higher/lower while all other variables were held constant, the carrying
amount of the Warrants (as defined in Note 31) would decrease/
increase by HK$5,000.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analyses are not
necessarily representative of the fair value as the pricing
model used in the fair value valuation of the embedded
derivative components of convertible bonds and warrants
involves multiple variable where certain variables are
interdependent.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2013

6.

ERMIA (&)
6c. AFE (M)

REMEENAFHEFEZR
KESHEERSMARZ AT
& (&)

Bt 5 -

B

(i) il E o B BRI TR AOERT -
—EHEEERANERRER
=R FIE10% - AT RBRES KA
KATET A ZREEAS D 5
5,497,000 % 7T X At 44,615,000 4
T o

fird P ELAth B BUR A E B R T -
“IHAEEERANREEHRER
=/ PE1E10% @ Al AR E ] A
XOTETAZREEGRD, L
45,0007 7T °

(ii) i R E A #BRIF T ENBERT
—IHAEEERANERESRS
HFRIE10% @ RREE (& BME
31) Z BREE# 5 5113 hn 539,000 4
JC MR A 452,000 7T ©

fE P E A B BR B AR AOERT -
“IEBAEEERXNR S EHRER
=/ PE10%  RARAERS (EERM
#31) Z BREE R 21 505,000
BT o

EEERA BMBEHSTRLA
RATE  EATRRESZ S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRITE (&)
6¢c. Fair value (continued) 6c. ATE(GE)
Fair value measurements recognised in the REEHBERRRERNAFE
consolidated statement of financial position TE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-4 /) E=% @it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TR

As at 31 December 2013 R-E-=%

+=A=+-~H
Available-for-sale financial ~ AHESHEE
assets
Listed equity securities EmRAES 14,053 - - 14,053

Financial assets at FVTPL BROAFEFABE
HEMEE
Derivative financial assets TTESBEE 130,272 2,416 - 132,688

Financial liabilities at FVTPL ~ #AFEFARE

Hemas
Derivative financial liabilities fTEeRAaR 32,683 620 - 33,303
Derivative components of AR ES
convertible bonds FTET A - - 13,353 13,353
Warrants R - - 1,331 1,331

As at 31 December 2012 R-E-Z%

t=A=t-AH
Available-for-sale financial ~ T#HEELHEE
assets
Listed equity securities ETlRAES 15,470 - - 15,470

Financial assets at FVTPL BROFEFARE

MemEE
Investments at FVTPL BRAFEG ARG

A - 24,677 - 24,677
Derivative financial assets TESHEE 50,761 4,677 - 55,438

Financial liabilities at FVTPL & AVE AEH

HemaE
Derivative financial liabilities TESRMARE 20,007 1,513 - 21,520
Derivative components of AR ES
convertible bonds FTETASS - - 85,290 85,290
Warrants RRHEZE - - 8,046 8,046
There were no transfers between the three levels during HE-_T——Fx-_FT—=F+=-A4
either of the years ended 31 December 2012 or 2013. =t+—HLFE ZEAER ML EE

% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. =T A (E)
6¢c. Fair value (continued) 6c. AFE(E)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of
financial liabilities

CHMEBECE="RAVEHEZ
HiR

Derivative

components of

convertible bonds Warrants

ARRES 2 HTE
IARS R EE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
At 1 January 2012 R—ZT——F—HF—H - -
Issue of convertible bonds BATAARRE S 142,771 13,418
Gain recognised in profit or loss RiEmF ER AR (57,481) (5,372)
At 31 December 2012 R—E——F+=-_A=+—H 85,290 8,046
Gain recognised in profit or loss PR R Y U e (71,937) (6,715)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=A=+—H 13,353 1,331

Financial assets and financial liabilities that are not
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The management considers that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values which is at level 3 and
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

Fair value measurements and valuation process

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company determines the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 and 2 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation for financial instruments that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis. The valuation team works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6c¢.

6d.

Fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process
(continued)

The Chief Financial Officer engages the external valuers to
perform the valuations of the convertible bonds and the
warrants required for financial reporting purposes, including
Level 3 fair value measurements of financial instruments.
As a part of the valuation process, the Chief Financial
Officer reports the findings to the board of directors of the
Company semi-annually, in line with the Group’s interim
and annual reporting dates.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used
in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities
are disclosed above.

Business and economic circumstances affecting fair
value of measurements

During the current year, the Group experienced the adverse
impact of the prolonged volatility and the overall downward
movement of the global metal prices. The Group entered
into aluminium, copper, zinc, steel rebar and nickel future
contracts in order to manage its exposure to the volatility
in metals’ price risks. The decline in the commodity market
prices led to a realised loss in the fair value change of
derivative financial instruments.

Financial instruments under enforceable

master netting agreements

The following table sets out financial assets and financial
liabilities that are under enforceable master netting
agreements and similar agreements, which are not offset in
the Group's consolidated statement of financial position.

6.

ERMTIA (&)
6c. AFE (M)

6d.

EaREBERAT

DFEFERMGEERF (H)

MR M RS B R B A
HB % BB S FTHA AR B 5 e AR AR
HETHE BRERTIAE=
BAFEFTE - EREERFD
—&D WBBEESFFRALAR
AEFEREM[ELER  BEW
BRIEAEETHARFERSH
Hi—2 e

EREErNREERBERTE
P BB E T R i ABURR
BER X °

EBREARAYEATENE

RARFEE  REEBARXEZHREE
EREHKE MEETENAT
B REBFTILER - 8 FF -
M RIEREANNEEEDE
ERKBER - EAmMSERD
THERTEERTI AR FESR
PHEHIREE -

BEBTHR - FELERBEE
Tz&mIA
TRET RGN ITHR —FEEE
W R AU ZEE TR AE
B4R e B RRRAEE 2 S/
BERTHEE-

—E-=FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EITHE(E)
6d. Financial instruments under enforceable 6d. BEHTHE - BHLEHEE
master netting agreements (continued) TZEMIA (&)
The amounts recognised for the provisional pricing Mo ERTTESREERSRA
arrangements classified under derivative financial assets and FEETHEREELHEERNE
liabilities are excluded since these transactions are not under BHWHERIESN - TV RZER
any master netting arrangements or similar agreements. SWEIBIBEERS —FEEE D

B GBRLET -

Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable SZIRAIKS  RETHE —FEE
master netting arrangements and similar agreements FEZERBURECZSHEE
As at 31 December 2013 R-ZB—Z=F+=H=+—H

Gross amount  Net amounts

of recognised of financial Related amounts
financial assets not set off in
liabilities set presented the consolidated
off in the in the statement of
Grossamounts  consolidated  consolidated financial position
of recognised  statementof  statement of Cash
financial financial financial Financial collateral Net
Description assets position position instruments received amount
R&& R&& BRRGRUBRRR
BERREA  BBRREA hEsZERLR
BRISH  HHZEERD 25247 Bhag
i BESE  SRARLE BEFE SRIE il FE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TR TEn TR TEn TEn TR
Margin deposits RED 175,405 - 175,405 (67) - 175,338
Pledged bank deposits CERRTER 102,170 - 102,170 (439) - 101,731
Derivative financlal assets ~ §TE2RAE
— Aluminium, copperzinc, ~ — %~ 8+
steel rebar and nickel AR
future contracts BEGH 130272 - 130272 (32,616) - 97,656
~ Foreign currency forward ~ —$MEEEIAY)
contracts 267 - 267 - - 267
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. ERITE(E)
6d. Financial instruments under enforceable 6d. BEBTHA - FEEHEBRE
master netting agreements (continued) TZEMIA (&)
Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable ZRAESE  BEBITHE —FE
master netting arrangements and similar agreements HEZHERELUREZEREE
As at 31 December 2013 N=-ZB—=F+=-A=+—H

Gross amount  Net amounts

of recognised of financial Related amounts
financial liabilities not set off in
assets set presented the consolidated
off in the in the statement of
Grossamounts  consolidated  consolidated financial position
of recognised ~ statementof  statement of Cash
financial financial financial Financial collateral Net
Description liabilities position position instruments pledged amount
R&& R&& TRRGRUBRRR
BERREA  BBRREA hEsZERLE
BRISH  HHZEED 25247 BEARS
i BEEE SHER4E BERE SRIR il FE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TEn TR TEn TEn TEn TEn
Derivative financial liabilities ~ $T4& 2 BERE
- Aluminium, copperzine, ~ — %~ 1~ & »
steel rebar and nickel AR
future contracts Hean 32,683 - 32,683 (32,616) (67) -
- Foreign curtency forward — —SNEEHAH
contracts 439 - 439 - (439) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. ERTE (&)
6d. Financial instruments under enforceable 6d. BEHTHE - BHLEHEE
master netting agreements (continued) TZEMIA (&)
Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable ZRAESE  BEBITHE —FE
master netting arrangements and similar agreements HEZHERELUREZEREE
As at 31 December 2012 R-E——F+_-_A=+—H

(ross amount Net amounts

of recognised of financial Related amounts
financial assets not set off in
liabilties set presented the consolidated
offin the in the statement of
(Gross amounts consolidated consolidated financial position
of recognised statement of statement of Cash
financial financial financial Financial collateral Net
Description assets position position instruments received amount
) ) TARGRIHRAR
IHRREA  BBRRER hi EHe%
ERAeR  HH/EER 2hlz8/ BlEE
A BELE  SRRREE BESE SRIA B E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

Margin deposits RES 44,656 - 44,656 - - 44,656

Pledged bank deposits BEARTER 2152 - 2152 (80) - 207

Derivative financial assets T2 BEAE
- Aluminium, copperzine, ~ ~ A~ i+ 8% »
steel rebar and nickel R
future contracts HEaH 50,761 - 50,761 (20,007) - 30,754

- Foreign curency forward -~ —JMEREIAY)
contracts - - - - - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE M mRAE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & Z=F —

=FtT-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TEITHE(E)
6d. Financial instruments under enforceable 6d. BEHTHE - BHLEHEE
master netting agreements (continued) TZEMIA (&)
Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable ZRAESE  BEBITHE —FE
master netting arrangements and similar agreements HEZHERELUREZEREE
As at 31 December 2012 R-E——F+_-_A=+—H
Grossamount  Net amounts
of recognised of financial Related amounts
financial ligbilities not set off in
assets set presented the consolidated
offin the in the statement of
(Gross amounts consolidated consolidated financial position
of recognised statement of statement of Cash
financial financial financial Financial collateral Net
Description liabilities position position instruments pledged amount
Vo Vo TRRNGRIRRAR
HBIRRA  BBIRRER afiispde] 76
EEReR  HHcEER iz em BEARS
A BfEE  SRAELR BEFE SRIA HHm R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin Fin Fin Fin Fin T
Derivative financial liabilities ~ $74&BEfE
- Aluminium, copperzine, 48+ #+ #% »
steel rebar and nickel HHRE
future contracts HEAH 20,007 - 20,007 (20,007) - -
- Foreign curtency forward —~ —SMEEHAH
contracts 80 - 80 - (80) -
BEAEEERAT —ZB—=FFIK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6d. Financial instruments under enforceable
master netting agreements (continued)
The gross amounts of the recognised financial assets and
financial liabilities as presented in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position, both of which have been
disclosed in the above tables, are measured as follows:

o Margin deposits and pledged bank deposits —
amortised cost

° Derivatives — fair value

The disclosures set out in the tables above include
commodities futures contracts traded on the London Metal
Exchange or the Shanghai Futures Exchange through
brokers and foreign currency contracts contracted with
banks. The related collaterals are included in margin
deposits and pledged bank deposits. If a default event
(included but not limited to default payment, liquidation,
bankruptcy or insolvency) occurs, the brokers and the banks
are able to exercise the right to offset against any favourable
contracts and/or the collaterals placed.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's revenue represents the amounts received or
receivable for the sales of metal scrap, net of sales related taxes,
during the year.

Operating and reportable segments are identified on the basis of
internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM")
in order to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance. The executive directors of the Company are
identified as the CODM and they regularly review the internal
report on gross (loss) profit derived from different business
activities and different products to assess performance and
allocate resources of the Group.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

The Group is mainly engaged in the principal business of metal
recycling, involving the recycling of mixed metal scrap into copper
scrap, steel scrap, aluminium scrap, iron scrap and other metal
scrap. The Group is also engaged in the foundry business which
involves the production and sale of aluminium-alloy ingots and
copper rod and wire, and wholesales business which involves
trading of other metal scrap without processing and copper
cathode. The operating and reportable segments are identified
based on major products under three categories of business
activities:

(i) metal recycling business (including sales of copper scrap,
steel scrap, aluminium scrap, iron scrap and other metal
scrap);

(i) foundry business (including sales of aluminium-alloy ingots
and copper rod and wire); and

(iii)  wholesales business (including sales of other metal scrap
without processing and copper cathode).

7.

REBETERECBHEEL PR
RERE S B D U0 B RE 8 - REEE - BE
tn BENEMESE  THESRE
B M 3H E fn g DA MR MR SR iR 1A
Xy REEEMARNTESERE
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BRIZERIDR=BEHED :

() SBBEXRDG(BHEHEEREN - E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment revenues and segment results

An analysis of the Group’s segment revenues and segment results

by operating and reportable segment is as below.

For the year ended 31 December 2013

7. WamkoSER (&)
2 U R D LA
AT AREB R 2RS BHEAEES
s & 5 R Z AT

BE-_Z—=F+-A=1+—HLEFE

Metal recycling business Foundry business Wholesales business
SRELER BEZR HEEs
Other
Other Aluminium- metal scrap
Copper Steel - Aluminium Iron metal alloy Copperrod  without ~ Copper
scrap scrap serap serap srap  ingots  andwire processing  cathode Elimination Total
i BER  EfRNI
] B B B B4R B fif  BER  BES 4 it
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TR TR TR TEn  TEn  TEr TR TR TR TEn  TEn
REVENUE i
External sales bl 3854404 961499 238261 201,023 59,022 366,552 1335 100534 511673 - 120,003
Inter-seqmen sales e 193,09 26464 279,365 - 3390 26,09 - 3715383 5963 (4300,727) -
Total segment revenue ANEEE GOATAOT 987963 517626 20103 62412 302651 24335 4780587 517,636 (4309727) 7,222,003
Seqment (oss)profit AB(EE) &R (M710)  (14878) 10464 09 (5868 %05 (8175 M6 (13674)  (207)  (23810)
Other income EHA 13,665
Other gains and losses EfthgREe (60,558)
Ditrbution and sellng expenses S $4RAERR (35.481)
Adminisrative expenses fBE% (133,250)
Finance costs BB (172,38)
Loss before tar kitiea (381,776)
Income tax expense FERAR (25,742)
Loss for the year EEs (407518)
Reversalof allowance EERERAH(ER)
(allowance for inventory) EHnAE
included n segment (FERE)
(loss)profit 5113 11412 (819) - (4.875) - (5,003) - 475 - 6,243
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WsEKkoEER (F)
(continued)
Segment revenues and segment results DEb R I o EBEEAE ()
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE " ZT——#+-_A=+—HI&E
Wholesales
Metal recycling business Foundry business business
SRALRH RERH i
Other
Other ~ Aluminium- metal scrap
Copper Steel  Aluminium Iron metal aloy Copperrod  without
Scrap sarap Serap Srap SCrap ingots  andwire processing  Elimination Total
A AR ApANT

B ] Bia B %] i i i ] 43 it
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
T Tt Thn Thn Thn TAT ThL TRL T ThL

REVENUE it
External sales e 4982451 1,295,304 249440 266,777 80,209 305,697 227,651 795173 - 8202,702
Inter-segment sales AHEEE 202,604 26592 275576 3 10,730 14,334 - 4038016 (4567,875) -
Total segment revenue DHUEBE 5185055 1321896 525016 266,800 90,939 320031 227651 4833189 (4,567,875 8,202,702
Segment profit (loss) AHETI(ER) 71,001 (12,899) 11,660 3,987 (2,682) 5314 2030 100,137 (719 171416
Other income EfA 21453
Other gains and losses EfphaRER 272,760
Distribution and seling expenses AHRHERR (33456)
Administrative expenses THRR (155,294)
Other expense Az (32,156)
Finance costs g (172,689)
Profit before tax BHaaR 72,034
Income tax expense FisHEx (32,683)
Profitfor the year Eg 39,351
Allowance for inventory BENADE

included in segment (&) Aok

profit (loss) FEkk (18.946)  (13418) (690) 8) (42) - (7,514) - - (40,618)
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e R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Segment revenues and segment results

(continued)

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note
3. Segment (loss) profit represents the gross (loss) profit resulted in
each segment without allocation of other income, other gains and
losses, distribution and selling expenses, administrative expenses,
other expense, finance costs and income tax expense. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market price.

Segment assets and segment liabilities

Information on segment assets and segment liabilities of the
Group are not reviewed by the CODM for the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment nor otherwise regularly
provided to the CODM. As a result, no analysis of segment assets
and segment liabilities is presented.

Geographical information

Approximately 90% of external revenue of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 90%) are attributable
to customers established in the PRC, the place of domicile of
the Group’s major operating entities. The remaining revenue is
immaterial for separate disclosure of the Group’s geographical
information. Majority of the Group’s non-current assets are
located in the PRC.

Information about a major customer

Included in revenue arising from metal recycling business of
HK$5,314,209,000 (2012: HK$6,874,181,000) are revenue
of HK$818,333,000 (2012: nil) which arose from sales to the
Group'’s largest customer. No other single customer contributed
10% or more to the Group’s revenue for both 2013 and 2012.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

8.

COST OF SALES
Included in cost of sales is the following (reversal of allowance)
allowance for inventory:

SHER AR
HERARBIEAT (BERE) FER
&

2013 2012
—E2—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Reversal of allowance) allowance (B E#E) FTERE
for inventory (6,243) 40,618

Management assesses whether the carrying value of inventories
exceed their net realisable value at the end of the reporting period.
Management estimates the net realisable value for inventories
with reference to the ask price of metal scrap in the relevant
markets and the quoted prices of metal on applicable commodity
exchanges at the end of reporting period. As at 31 December
2013, because the market prices of the commodities were higher
than the respective net realisable value of certain inventories
held, a reversal of allowance for inventory of HK$6,243,000 was
recognised (2012: allowance for inventory of HK$40,618,000 was
recognised because the market price of the commodities were
lower that the respective purchase prices of certain inventories
held).

EEERNSHRERRTHTFERAES
CHBATENERFE BEELS
REREHREETENESEEER
BRSNS BREGTFEN
BIRE N E—=F+_-F=+—
H AREGRmERMBETEESA
BHEFEAR CHERERTERE
6,243,000 T(ZZT—ZF : AR
EMEBERAMFETFENSEREER
& - FERFE B 40,618,00087T) °

BaXtEEERAT —ET-ZFFRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE M mRAE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE =F+ZA=1+—HItFE

note:  The Group received unconditional government subsidies from a local municipal
government as an encouragement for the development and advancement of

business. No other contingencies attach to the government subsidies that have

been recognised.
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9. OTHER INCOME Hlgr A
2013 2012
—E—-= —E—_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Interest income F 2 UgA 6,207 6,689
Gross rental income from WEYEHRS WAL
investment properties 2,115 1,329
Less: direct operating expenses B BEEERY (5) (106)
Net rental income from LEYER S WA FRE
investment properties 2,110 1,223
Government subsidies (note) BRAS e B (BitRE) 33,910 9,734
Transportation and scale income E g LT 83 1,647
Dividend income from listed AFS WA EHERERBIRA
investment 428 418
Others Hi 927 1,742
43,665 21,453

Biat : A MREABMASEXHEREE ST
BT ARENEGIBUTHE o BERBUT
BB M INE ML AEL -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE M mRAE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

10. HittlmREE

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHT
Gain (loss) on fair value changes of: NHEZSKE (BE)
— derivative financial instruments (note) — TSR A (i)
— realised -BER (315,311) 181,059
—unrealised —RER 99,385 33,918
(215,926) 214,977
- investments at FVTPL —RBATEFABGZRE - 11
~ derivative components of convertible —ARREFTET RS (HFE31)
bonds (Note 31) 71,937 57,481
— warrants (Note 32) — R (MisE32) 6,715 5,372
Net foreign exchange gains B 5 e 5 99,881 6,858
Impairment loss on trade B 5 REMENRERERSR
and other receivables (2,911) (8,014)
Recovery of bad debts Yl sz iR 12 -
Gain on fair value change of BRATEF A BRI REL
investment at FVTPL NEZENE 34 =
Loss on disposal of AFS HERHHEREEE
investment - (429)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE kit FEE
plant and equipment (90) (2,139)
Impairment loss on AFS AR ERERERE
investment - (7,029)
Net compensation (paid) received () W ERm (B % %8 (1,224) 5,672
Others Hif (18,986) -
(60,558) 272,760
note: The amounts arose from aluminium, copper, zinc, steel rebar and nickel future i : ZSeWHELSE W iF - BHREH

contracts, provisional pricing arrangements embedded in sales contracts and

BEK - HE S LM R0 R E B 2 RS

foreign currency forward contracts.

KEfan -

EaREEERAT

—E-=FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

11.

12.

FINANCE COSTS 1. BERA
2013 2012
—g2—= —EF——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Interest on: A TEIEHFE
— bank borrowings wholly —RAF AR BHEE
repayable within five years ZIRITEE 88,847 106,743
— bank overdrafts —RITIEX 4 694
Effective interest expense on AR ES 2 B A SR
convertible bonds (Note 31) (fF=E31) 83,491 65,252
172,342 172,689
(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. £ (E8) &R
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THT
(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived FRN(ER) & - Mk
at after charging:
Directors' emoluments =M 4,579 6,759
Other staff costs Hith 8 TH A 209,560 209,716
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RIBFEEIRR - T~
excluding those of directors B ZRINERIF I 3,952 2,723
Share-based payments, excluding PARR(D REREI A - TNERE
those of directors E=ARG AERE R 9,900 15,787
Total staff costs STHALHE 227,991 234,985
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense REAZHFEERAE 7,245,813 8,031,286
Depreciation of investment properties REMENE 1,866 1,244
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% + BRE &R ETE 34,308 69,254
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments ERNHSEEH 8,829 7,995
Total depreciation and amortisation WEREHAE 45,003 78,493
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEE £ 2,310 2,300
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

13. EE - FETHRAERES

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS &
Directors S
Details of the emoluments paid by the Group to the directors of AREEBRFANLZNARARIESHIEE
the Company for the year are as follows: BAR
Retirement
Salaries Performance benefit
and bonus scheme Share-based
Fees allowances (note i) contributions  payments Total
HeR RATAL  BAER M43 B
e 25 (WD) SHEMR ERONR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiEn TR TR TERL FER
Year ended 31 December 2013 #z_T-=F1t-A
ST-HIEFE:
Executive directors: B1ES:
Mr. Fang Ankong ( Mr. Fang”) ARERE(THEE] 2 1,195 - 8 190 1,417
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Qoijen Stephanus Maria van 24 1,056 - - 54 1,134
Qoijen %4
Mr. Gu Liyong BFERE 24 927 - 9 351 1311
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Mr. Li Xikui FHELE 150 - - - 89 239
Dr. Loke Yu BERmELT 150 - - - 89 239
Ms. Zhang Jingdong EHELT 150 - - - 89 239
Mr. Michael Charles Lion (note i) Michael Charles Lion
A (R ) - - - - - -
522 3,178 - 17 862 4,579
BeRitEEBERAT —T—=FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

13. EE - FETHRAERES

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) M (1)
Directors (continued) E5(#)
Retirement
Salaries  Performance benefit
and bonus scheme  Share-based
Fees  allowances (note i) contributions  payments Total
He Rk FAA RINER] SRR A
ik =13 (Bitszi) SRl ERMAR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THL Tt THT T THLT
Year ended 31 December 2012: HEZT-——%1ZAR
=t-HILEE:
Executive directors: WMIES
Mr. Fang HEE 24 1,176 500 8 556 2,264
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Qoijen Stephanus Maria van 24 1,056 300 - 159 1,539
Qoijen %4
Mr. Gu Liyong BFBERE 24 936 300 8 659 1,927
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema (note ii) Ralph Sytze Ybema 54 6 31 = = 101 138
(i3Ei)
Mr. Li Xikui FHELE 150 - - - 147 297
Dr. Loke Yu BERmELT 150 - - - 147 297
Ms. Zhang Jingdong BHRRL 150 - - - 147 297
Mr. Michael Charles Lion (note i) Michael Charles Lion
e (Fitszin) = = = = = =
528 3,199 1,100 16 1,916 6,759
Mr. Fang is also the Chief Executive of the Company and his HEENRAERNARZEBTHRAERE
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered e EEEATEITHRA SR

by him as the Chief Executive.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 13. EF - FETHAEREES
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) M (&)
Employees -1
Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group, three (2012: RAEBRAEZEaRTMATES =%
three) were directors, whose emoluments are included in the (ZE—=—F: =) A5 HieD
disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2012: HENENHEE B TREB(ZE—=
two) individuals were as follows: F WA ARSI
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Salaries and other allowances e R HE A ER 2,170 1,922
Share-based payments VARRAD A B 2 103K 971 1,607
Performance bonus (note i) FIRTEAT (BisEi) - 700
Retirement benefit scheme RIRAE RN ET B
contributions 23 21
3,164 4,250
Analysed into the following bands: e SESTNAT
Number of Number of
individual individual
AT AE AT AH
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7= 1,500,0008 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,000 %752 2,000,000 47T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 & JTZE 2,500,000 77T - 1
notes: HeE
(i) The performance bonus was determined as a percentage of the net profit (i) KR EA IR TERBEINEEFIAES L
before inventory allowance. EBE -
(ii) Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema resigned and Mr. Michael Charles Lion was appointed (i) MW=—Z—=—%— 8 +-+H  Ralph Sytze
as non-executive director on 17 January 2012. Ybema 4t 4 B iR E & Michael Charles Lion %%

SERERIFNTES -

(iii) During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the (iif) RREEERN  AEMY EREAESKA
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon ZHRETFATZNME - (EARS| INAARE
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the directors B 7 I A AN 22 [ B 1SS B SR BB A 1 o R
waived any emoluments during both years. MEERER @ MESEREEAHL o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

FE TR KM EE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE
14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FRSBiMxX
2013 2012
—E—= —EF——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current tax: BNEATIE :
PRC Enterprises Income Tax (“EIT") ST 7,354 22,556
(TeZFEHL)
Hong Kong B 6,697 791
Other jurisdictions H iy AlEER (24) 127
14,027 23,474
Under(over)provision in prior years: RBEFEREET R GBE) ¢
PRC EIT AR TSR 2,073 1,050
Hong Kong B (11) (4,745)
2,062 (3,695)
Deferred tax (Note 33) RIERIE (e 33) 9,653 12,904
25,742 32,683
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14.
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

FriSHiBax (%)
FRBIEM XA BEAERR2E RS
RABBLA (58 SR HEMT

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
(Loss) profit before tax BRFEAT (B = A (381,776) 72,034
Tax at applicable tax rates (note iv) RBAMETE 2 FE (MiEiv) (81,219) 11,455
Tax effect of expenses not RO S A 7 s 22
deductible for tax purpose 33,326 12,875
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBI AR B % 52 2
for tax purpose (14,052) (28,723)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RER ARG R EFEH
differences not recognised MG E 537 26
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTIBEENT BT E 86,289 43,557
Tax effect of utilisation of tax loss 2R 2 R AR MR HE 18
previously not recognised Eop g (1,481) (3,823)
Deferred tax provided on dividends HEIR B A RIS
withholding tax on PRC subsidiaries T 2 EEF IR 280 1,011
Under(over)provision in prior years BEFEREETEGBE) 2,062 (3,695)
Tax charge for the year FAMETFRZ 25,742 32,683

notes:

(i) The Group's PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC EIT at the rate of 25%.

(ii) All Hong Kong subsidiaries are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of

16.5%.

(iii) Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the

(i) AN B o BB 2 B ZR R 25 % BB R A

PEREMEH o

(i) FT R & 18 A 811597812 16.5% KT R 84

BEFEH

relevant jurisdiction. (i) POE AL EARE R E A R BIIR DR AR R B AR
EHRITR R -
(iv) As the Group operates in different tax jurisdictions, separate reconciliations
using the domestic tax rate in each individual tax jurisdiction have been (iv) HRAEERTRABBAEEREE RS

BT RIARE R M 77 B R 5t W RO B R E &

BE271 -

aggregated and presented.
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e MBmERM T ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1+—HItFE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. BRE
2013 2012
—2-= —E—CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Dividend recognised as ERREANDIRRS
distribution during the year:
2012 final dividend paid — BIR — T ——F RIS
HK2.12 cents per share — &% 2.12 %4 22,143 -
2011 final dividend paid — BIRN =T ——FREKRE
HK3.7 cents per share — &A% 3.7 81 - 38,612
No dividend was paid or proposed during 2013, nor has any RIZE—=FUWERZEXERTMR
dividend been proposed by the Company since the end of the B BREMARRRAINABERREE
reporting period in respect of the year ended 31 December 2013 —E—=F+ZA=1+—BILEFEERFN
(2012: final dividend of HK2.12 cents per share were proposed). FEARE(ZE—=F: EERHARKRE

FRZ2.127840l) o

172 Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2013



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

16. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 16.

The calculations of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company are based on the following

B (EB1R) B8R
RDF A A SRERRBE (B
18) BRI TYRIA TR AHE -

data:
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to ~ FtEAQEHEAE AFEM
owners of the Company for the BREAR (B518) BFIH
purposes of basic (loss) earnings FR(EE)EA
per share (382,920) 88,591
Effect of diluted potential BT BEREETE
ordinary shares:
— Interest on convertible bonds — AR E S AILE - 65,252
— Gain on change in fair value of — AR RESFITETE
the derivative components HoWATFEEE K
of convertible bonds - (57,481)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to & ARNA RS AEEER
owners of the Company for the purpose %% (&18) BHMER
of diluted (loss) earnings per share (&8 &= F (382,920) 96,362
Number of shares: IR :
Weighted average number of STEEIRER (B1E) &7
ordinary shares for the purpose B @A IO BB
of basic (loss) earnings per share 1,044,166,684 1,043,069,463
Effect of diluted potential ordinary BIELBREETE
shares:
— Convertible bonds (Note 31) — Al AR E S (MIaE31) - 113,615,982
— Share options (Note 37) —RERRRE (Mt 37) - 3,818,367
Weighted average number of STHEREE (B18) 875
ordinary shares for the purpose of HE AR INETHEE

diluted (loss) earnings per share

In current year, the potential ordinary shares attributable to the
Company's outstanding convertible bonds, warrants and certain
share options have anti-dilutive effect as the assumed conversion
and exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share.

In prior year, the computation of diluted earnings per share does
not assume the exercise of the Company’s warrants and certain
share options because the exercise prices of these warrants and
share options were higher than the average market price of the
Company'’s shares.

1,044,166,684 1,160,503,812

RAFEE KRB HRITEARRE
7 RERNETEREREEES
BRAAREEYE  ARIABRT
SRRl S BB IR o

REF  FHESREERN Y TERERT
ERRAREEERETERE  BS
ZERR R RBRENTERESRA
DA FIETHE

BaXtEEERAT —ET-ZFFRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y% BERRE

Office
Plant fumiture Construction
and and Motor Leasehold in
machinery equipment vehicles improvements progress Total
Buildings BER HARER AEnz
BF he Rk s 56 Ik @t
HKS " 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT ThTL ThL ThI TR ThTL ThL
cost A
At 1 January 2012 R=E--%-f-H 139,429 167,732 17,042 11,880 45,714 14,805 396,602
Exchange realignment ~ [EH 1% (22) (29 (1) - ) 2 (61)
Additions HE 263 22,100 2,568 3,666 7,154 56,371 92,122
Transfers g2 413 9,564 - - 3,941 (13,918) -
Transfer to investment ~ EBERENZ (i 19)
properties (Note 19) (37312) - - - - - (37312)
Disposal i (1,681) (7323) (284) (6,520) (556) - (16,364)
At31 December 2012 W=F-=F+=f=1-A 101,090 192,044 19,325 9,026 56,246 57,256 434,987
Exchange realignment ~ EHE 3,164 4,963 541 12 1474 2,560 12,914
Additions AE - 6,642 2,619 187 353 50,068 59,869
Transfers &z - (132) 408 - 219 (495) -
Disposal if3 - (2.809) (62) (303) - - (3.174)
At31 December 2013 RZF-=Ff+ZfA=1-A 104,254 200,708 22,831 9122 58,292 109,389 504,59
DEPRECIATION it
At 1 January 2012 R=Z-—F-f-H 32,805 31,980 6,190 2,984 2,676 - 76,635
Exchange realignment 7R 12 45 i 1 132 - 27
Charge for the year ERTi 5,361 19,281 3,307 1,941 39,364 - 69,254
Transfer to investment ~ BAZRENZ
properties (Note 19) ([ 19) (5,260) - - - - - (5,260)
Disposal e (60) (1,910) (55) (2,004) (283) - (4,312)
At31 December 2012 W=F-—F+-f=1-A 32,858 49,3% 9,453 2928 41,889 - 136,524
Exchange realignment 7R 1,101 151 321 9 1,285 - 4310
Charge for the year ERTi 4,700 21,589 3,140 1,345 3,534 - 34,308
Transfer E - (106) 106 - - - -
Disposal i - (1,908) (54) (114) - - (2,076)
At31 December 2013 W=F-=F+=f=1-A 38,659 70,482 12,966 4,251 46,708 - 173,066
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At31 December 2013 W=F-=F+-fA=1-H 65,595 130,226 9,865 4811 11,584 109,389 331,530
At31December 2012 R=E-—#Ft-A=1-H 68,232 142,648 9,872 6,09 14,357 57,256 298 463
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y%~ BERZME ()
(continued)
notes: Bizr
(i) As at 31 December 2013, certain buildings with carrying amount of (i) R-_ZET—=F+-"A=+—8 FEEEA
HK$43,056,000 (2012: HK$44,825,000) were pledged as security for bank 43,056,000 7T ( = Z — —4F : 44,825,000
borrowings granted to the Group. BT NE TEFERERR TASBERIT

fEERYELR

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2012, certain leasehold buildings of the (ii) BE-_ZT——F+-A=+—HILEE"
Group situated in Hong Kong and held under medium-term leases at the AEBURBEBEUNPHBOREREE
carrying amount of HK$32,052,000 were transferred from the category of 32,052,000 w25 THEEFHREEH
owner-occupied properties to the category of investment properties because ARERERETARYEIFEETREME
of the end of owner-occupation. DR o

(i) As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, all buildings were situated in the PRC @iy MNZBE—=FR-_FT——F+-A=+—
under medium-term leases. B IERFHIRFTE - LFEHBALRF

e

(iv) The property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are (iv) M - BB R B (ERTRRRIN EetEH

depreciated over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account their FIsMEER - RAFTRAIAFEHITENT ©

residual value, as follows:

Buildings 20 years or the relevant lease term, g5 20F A ATHER
whichever is shorter (ARG ERE)

Plant and machinery 9%-20% R Bt Bs 9% Z20%

Office furniture and equipment 9%-30% MAGREREE 9% E30%

Motor vehicles 9%-30% R 9% Z30%

Leasehold improvements 30%-50%, the relevant lease term or the HEMEEE 30% £ 50% A #
estimated useful lives, whichever is shorter Ak G AT A FEH

(B ERAE)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the estimated useful lives of the BE-T——F+-A=+—HItFE ' H

leasehold improvements in a factory facility were shortened in view of the RIBEAZHER IR E - M IR IEHHEY

expected schedule of the relocation of the facility. As a result of such a change ERENGE ] AFHER - ARNHET A%

in estimate, the Group’s leasehold improvements of the aforementioned S¥e HE-_T——-—F+-A=+—HL

facility for the year ended 31 December 2012 were fully depreciated and the FEASEMZENHEEMERIEDEER

depreciation charge was increased by HK$32,156,000 which was included in WERTEERBEIN32,156,000/87T * B

other expenses. HAthF S ABR ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1T—HItFE

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. #EfFHHE
2013 2012
—E—= —EF——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHT
The prepaid lease payments FRfES
comprise leasehold land BERE L
—in Hong Kong held under — (LR A
medium-term leases FHEATRAEE 144,746 149,066
—in the PRC held under — 7 A B A
medium-term leases FHIE AR 298,965 206,168
443,711 355,234
Analysed for reporting purposes as: A2 AE BRI :
Current asset MENEE 10,642 8,687
Non-current asset IERBNEE 433,069 346,547
443,711 355,234
notes: Bi%E
(i) The leasehold land in Hong Kong is under a medium-term lease and for specific (i) MREBNAE L EPBRBEOFEERTE
usage. R -
(ii) As at 31 December 2013, prepaid lease payments with carrying amount of (ii) R-—E—=%F+-A=+—8' KM\

HK$238,967,000 (2012: HK$186,194,000) were pledged as security for bank

borrowings granted to the Group.

(iii) During the year, the Group acquired certain leasehold land in the PRC held
under medium-term lease with carrying amount of HK$89,537,000 (2012:
HK$171,436,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1T—HItFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REVIE
HK$'000
F&T

COST A

At 1 January 2012 RZZE———H—H =

Transferred from property, plant and HEEAWE - WERH&E

equipment 32,052

At 31 December 2012 and 2013 REB—=Fk-F——F+-A=+—H 32,052

DEPRECIATION e

At 1 January 2012 R—ZT——%—H—H =

Provided for the year FANBE 1,244

At 31 December 2012 R—E——F+_A=+—H 1,244

Provided for the year FAEAE 1,866

At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+-A=+—H 3,110

CARRYING VALUE FREE

At 31 December 2013 R—_ZT—=F+-_HA=+—H 28,942

At 31 December 2012 R_E——F+-A=+—H 30,808

notes: B

(i) The above investment properties, which are situated in Hong Kong and held (i) BT E S R AT BT E M IR
under medium-term leases, are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the TMERFHABREERE -
remaining useful life.

(i) As at 31 December 2013, investment properties with carrying amount of (if) R=ZZ—=F+=-A=+—B  REEAR
HK$23,748,000 (2012: HK$30,808,000) were pledged as security for bank 23,748,000 7t (== — = £ : 30,808,000
borrowings granted to the Group. HBIT) MR EMEERESR T AKERIT

EERER

(i) The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December 2013 (i) AEEREMENR T —=F+=-A=+—
was HK$71,600,000 (2012: HK$64,800,000). The fair value has been arrived HEAFEAT1,600,0008 (- F——4F
at based on a valuation carried out by Roma Appraisals Limited, independent 64,800,000/ 7C) - ZAFEIIREES
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group. BREEERAR(EASEEBEZBLA

AR ER AR ) FT{EMbEmMEZS -

As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, the fair value was determined based on RIB——FR-_FT—=F+ZA=+—
direct comparison approach which is by reference to recent market prices for B AFETNESERULE RIGEHFREMN
similar properties in similar locations and conditions. MEEEBATE - RAEELEAEE -

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the EEHEATER - WENZERKIERSE
properties is their current use. REZAAR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 19.

notes: (continued)

(i) (continued)

The key input used in the valuation of the investment properties is transaction
prices for similar properties after accounting for floor areas and floor level.

REME (&)

BaE - ()
@iy (&)

RAYFEMGENEZEABIE S REEE
BREBRBUNENRSE -

Fair value at
31 December 2013 Valuation
Description RZZ—=F+=H techniques Unobservable input
P =t+—HBHATE HETAE AR AR
HK$'000
FHET
Investment properties 71,600 Direct comparison Transaction prices for similar properties after
Commercial — Hong Kong approach adjusting for floor areas and floor level.
MEREME TR BERLEBA MABEEE MR EEARRBUNENZ SE

(iv) Details of the Group's investment properties and information about the fair
value hierarchy as at 31 December 2013 are as follows:

vy ZAEER-Z—=F+-A=+—HHKRE
YMEHBRATFESRERDT

Level 3

E=H

HK$'000

FHET

Commercial property units located in Hong Kong R BB E R F B 71,600

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 20.

It represents an investment of equity securities listed in Hong Kong
and is stated at fair value which is determined based on the bid
price quoted in an active market.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

21. INVENTORIES 21. 78
2013 2012
—E—= —EF——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Raw materials R 1,032,564 1,160,851
Finished goods UK oh 1,537,709 1,821,748
2,570,273 2,982,599
At 31 December 2013, inventories were stated at purchase cost of R-ZE—=F+=-A=+—H ' &&
HK$2,102,719,000 (2012: HK$2,087,057,000) and the remaining LA #% B8 K 28 2,102,719,0008 o ( = =
HK$467,554,000 (2012: HK$895,542,000) inventories were — — £ :2,087,057,0007 7T ) 7l BR &
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value with reference #% 467,554,000 c( =& — — 4 :
to the quoted prices of metal scrap in the relevant markets. 895,542,000 8 7T ) &K 2 Z MR T I5FT
FE© B (B DARK AN B m] B30 R (B 2 BRK &
HIER o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES B 5 R HMERFIE

2013 2012
—E—-= —E—_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHT
Trade receivables: B S EWGRIA
0-30 days 0&30H 129,659 129,614
31-60 days 31£60H 11,486 30,097
61-90 days 61£90H 24,300 685
91-180 days 91180 H 58,580 36,683
Over 180 days % 180 H 57,702 3,015
281,727 200,094
Other receivables: F Ath fE U RIA -
Deposits and prepayments e RIBAHRIEA 37,300 48,343
Deposits paid for purchase BERMZEMNES
of raw materials 178,292 264,432
VAT recoverable AR B E T 206,762 264,473
Others EAth 3,954 8,732
426,308 585,980
708,035 786,074
notes: Bz -
(i) Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential (i) REMFTELA  AEBBIEEERFH

EEERRRAERFPHEERE  YHHET
B P RREE ST ©

customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limit. Credit limits to customers
are reviewed regularly.

AEE-—RETESEFP30E0ANEE
B ERGEEEMER AKEAREER
RERFNESEFREERMERH -

The Group generally allows its trade customers a credit period of 30 to 90 days.
A longer credit period may be granted to trade customers with good credit

quality upon the approval of management.

RIFEIR - AEE R 5 EUGRIER R IR
BRERNRROMIZE R A H (RkasER
REEE) 25 -

(ii) The aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables at the end of the reporting (ii)
period, net of allowance for doubtful debts, was prepared based on the invoice
date which approximate to the date of revenue recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

{=v2) == 1
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B REHMEWRE (E)
(continued)
notes: (continued) MicE - (&)
(i) Included in the trade receivable balance are debtors with an aggregate (iii) ESRURBELABEEERERDAE
carrying amount of HK$116,282,000 (2012: HK$39,698,000) which were past 116,282,000 7T (=T — =4 : 39,698,000
due over 180 days at the end of the reporting period but for which the Group PBTT) B FEMERSR - AR BAR 8 B8 180
has not provided impairment loss. B - MEARER B R UL E R E RS R A o
Aging analysis of trade receivables, based on invoice date, which were ERHAERRENESBERFEERRRER
past due but not impaired H AR ER 2 47
2013 2012
—E-Z=F —B——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
91-180 days 91Z180H 58,580 36,683
Over 180 days #HiB180H 57,702 3,015
116,282 39,698
The Group does not hold any collateral against the above amounts. However, AN EEEE ERIE 2 AR o A
management believes that the carrying amounts are recoverable given that i ERERR  ERTHNREREDE
adequate impairment allowance has been recognised as follow: RAT - WZEFIE AR E
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RRBENRE
2013 2012
—E-Z=F —B——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Balance at beginning of the year FHEER 7,332 -
Recognition of impairment loss B 5 K Bt KGR IEDRL B 18
on trade and other receivables R 2,911 8,014
Recovery of bad debts =058 A (12) =
Amounts written off as uncollectible W3 AT AT E B FRE (2,414) (682)
Balance at end of the year FIREEH 7,817 7,332
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. EFREMEWFIE(E)
(continued)
notes: (continued) Mk : (#8)
(iv) Trade and other receivables that were denominated in currencies other than (iv) AEMEETBNEEB NI EEERN
the functional currency of the relevant group entities are as follows: B 5 REMBKFIENAT
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
usb £5T 1,305 -
HKS BT 12,219 291
EUR BT 17 91
23. BILLS RECEIVABLES 23. EWEE
An analysis of the Group's bills receivables by age at the end of the RBEHAR - AEBMNEREERERR S
reporting period, based on their invoice dates which approximate iR E A (R = ER B RS ) 2
to the date of revenue recognition, is as follows: HwAOT
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
0-30 days 0E30H 6,614 4,834
31-60 days 31260H - 370
61-90 days 61290H - 1,850
6,614 7,054
24. INVESTMENTS AT FVTPL 24, BERAFEFTAEBERZRE
2013 2012
—E—= —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHT
Investments at FVTPL BRAFEFABRZ
include: B BIE
Unlisted investments: ELEMRE :
— Investment fund investing —RERP B ETER
in listed PRC debt securities BENREES - 24,677
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. PTHEEmTIA

2013 2012
—g2—= —EF——F
notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FfaE FExT FHT
Derivative financial assets TESMERE
Aluminium, copper, zinc, steel rebar i5 -8R - & - SE
and nickel future contracts RBHIEER (i) 130,272 50,761
Provisional pricing arrangements e IR TE B 2 HE (ii) 2,149 4,677
Foreign currency forward contracts HNEIRERE A (iii) 267 -
132,688 55,438
Derivative financial liabilities fTEemBes
Aluminium, copper, zinc, steel rebar i5 -8R - & - SE
and nickel future contracts RBHIEER (i) 32,683 20,007
Provisional pricing arrangements e IR TE B 2 HE (ii) 181 1,433
Foreign currency forward contracts HNERERE A (iii) 439 80
33,303 21,520
notes: BeE -
(i) Aluminium, copper, zinc, steel rebar and nickel future contracts (net (i) ia - i 8 WS REHEAHN(FEEE)
settlement)
The Group enters into aluminium, copper, zinc, steel rebar and nickel future AEEERIZEA - 7 & WHRBHES
contracts in order to manage its exposure to the price risk of aluminium, B NEBRFAREMEBFENERE
copper and other metal inventory. These contracts are actively traded in an B o RIREEAR - ZEZEHNNERTIS LK
active market and are measured at fair values based on unadjusted quoted REREERREARBEARTEGTZ -
price at the end of the reporting period, with gain or loss recognised directly EREEEE N B R HER -
in profit or loss.
EeRMEEERAT —T—=FF3R 183




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

notes: (continued)

(i) Aluminium, copper, zinc, steel rebar and nickel future contracts (net

settlement) (continued)

Major terms of the aluminium, copper, zinc, steel rebar and nickel future

contracts outstanding at the end of the reporting period are set out below:

31 December 2013

25. PTEERTI A (4&)

Bt : (88)

(i) 8B 0 F WHREREANFREE)
(&)

RBEHR - REHdE - 0 & - WATRE
HEANMEZGRFNOT

—®-—=fft=A=+—H

Contract price Standard trading unit Total unit Maturity date

BRER BEEFEN HE{Y A

Aluminium future contracts:

TR EH

Buy at prices ranging from 5 tonnes 40 15 May 2014
RMB13,945 per tonne S —E-mFERA+HA

BN FEMWARK13,945T
HEEEE

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 1,242 From 2 January 2014
USD1,762 to USD1,895 per tonne 25048 to 31 March 2014

BN T EGME1,762% T E 1,895% 7T BE-Z-WF—A=ZHE
HEREE —T-mME=A=+—H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 700 From 2 January 2014

USD1,778 to USD 1,895 per tonne 25048 to 31 March 2014

I FGME,778 £TTE1,8955% T B-Z-OmE—A-HF
HERHE —T-mFE=A=+—H

Copper future contracts:

HHEEA

Buy at prices ranging from 5 tonnes 6,589 From 15 January 2014
RMB50,000 to RMB52,600 per tonne SHE to 15 April 2014

AT 5uEAR#50,0007T % A R#52,6007T E-T-WF—A+AAZE
HEREE —E-MFEEA+EA

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 2,142 From 2 January 2014
USD6,921 to USD7,389 per tonne 25048 to 27 March 2014

I FGME6,9215 T 27,3895 T B-Z-OmE—A-HE
HEREE —T—mME=A=++A

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 1,128 From 2 January 2014
USD6,921 to USD7,415 per tonne 250 to 27 March 2014

BN T 86,9216 T2 7,415% T
B HE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. T4 €mT A (&)
(continued)

notes: (continued)

0]

Aluminium, copper, zinc, steel rebar and nickel future contracts (net

settlement) (continued)

31 December 2013 (continued)

Bt : (48)

(i) i 8 i WHREREANFREE)
(&)

—B-=5+ZA=+—-RA(#)

Contract price Standard trading unit Total unit Maturity date

AHER BEEEEN HBE EHAH

Zinc future contracts:

FHHIEAH

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 1,120 From 2 January 2014
USD1,867 to USD2,096 per tonne 250 to 31 March 2014

N FEME1,867% L% 2,0965 T B-Z-OE—A-H=
NERES —T-mF=A=+—H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 1,128 From 2 January 2014
USD1,867 to USD2,105 per tonne 250 to 31 March 2014

BN FEMHE1,867% T 22,1055 T B-Z-OE—A-H=
ERHE —T-mMF=A=+—H

Steel rebar future contracts:

WFHREEA

Buy at prices ranging from 10 tonnes 1,700 15 May 2014
RMB3,570 to RMB3,700 per tonne 10M8 —T-mFERA+ARA

RN FBuEARK3,5707TE AR3,7007T
NERES

Nickel future contracts:

BEREHR -

Buy at prices ranging from 6 tonnes 190 From 2 January 2014
USD 13,425 to USD14,705 per tonne 6IE to 27 March 2014

R FGME13,4255 TTE 14,705% T B-ZF-—OmE—A=HA=
HEREE —T—mE=A=++A

Sell at prices ranging from 6 tonnes 112 From 2 January 2014
USD13,518 to USD 14,850 per tonne 6 to 20 March 2014

BN TEME13,518% 702 14,8500
H{ERHE

BE=F-Hm&—A=A=
—F-ME=A=+A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

notes: (continued)

0]

Aluminium, copper, zinc, steel rebar and nickel future contracts (net

settlement) (continued)

31 December 2012

25. PTEERTI A (4&)

Bt : (48)

(i) i 8 i WHREREANFREE)

(&)

—E-—f+-A=t—-H

Contract price Standard trading unit Total unit Maturity date

AHER BEEEEN HBE EHAH

Aluminium future contracts:

EHIREAH

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 252 From 10 January 2013
USD1,898 to USD2,071 per tonne 250 to 28 March 2013

N FEME1,898% T 22,0715 T B-Z—=5—A+H%
HEEEE —T—=F=A=+N\H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 144 From 2 January 2013
USD2,080 to USD2,135 per tonne 250 to 28 March 2013

ZNFEME2,080% T E2,1355% T B-Z—=f—A-H=
HIEAE SHE —T-=F=A=1TNH

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 244 From 2 January 2013
USD2,074 to USD2,124 per tonne 250 to 27 March 2013

BN FEUE2,074% T %2, 1245 T B-T—=F—A-H%
MEREE —T-=F=A=++H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 224 From 24 January 2013
USD1,944 to USD2,050 per tonne 25048 to 28 February 2013

B FGME1,944K T E2,0505 7T B-T—=5—-A-t+tHmAZE
HIERIHE —T-—=%-RA=+/\B

Copper future contracts:

HHEEHR

Buy at prices ranging from 5 tonnes 2,684 From 15 January 2013
RMB55,400 to RMB58,810 per tonne SHE to 15 April 2013

BN T GHE A R¥55,4007T = AR %58,8107T B-Z—=%—A+AHAZE
MEREE —T-=FWA+EA

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 508 From 16 January 2013
USD7,510 to USD7,923 per tonne 250 to 28 March 2013

BN FEME7,510% T E7,923% T EZT—=F—A+X HZE
HEREE —T-=F=A=tNH

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 204 From 3 January 2013
USD7,920 to USD8,269 per tonne 25048 to 20 March 2013

BT EHE7, 9205 T E8,269% T
HERHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

notes: (continued)

0]

Aluminium, copper, zinc, steel rebar and nickel future contracts (net

settlement) (continued)

31 December 2012 (continued)

25. PTEERTI A (E)

Bt : (48)

(i) i 8 i WHREREANFREE)
(&)

—B-—£+ZA=+—-R (&)

Contract price Standard trading unit Total unit Maturity date

AHER BEEEEN HBE EHAH

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 300 From 3 January 2013
USD7,926 to USD8,305 per tonne 250 to 28 March 2013

BN FEME7,926% T £ 8,3055% T B-T—=F—A=H%
MEREE —T—=%=RA=+/\H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 96 From 15 January 2013
USD7,633 to USD7,929 per tonne 25048 to 21 February 2013

BN FGMET,633KTLET7, 9295 T B-ZT—=5—A+HRAZE
HIERIHE —T—=%-RA=+—8

Zinc future contracts:

FHEEA

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 429 From 9 January 2013
USD1,852 to USD2,080 per tonne 250 to 28 March 2013

RN FEME1,852% T %2,080% T BE-Z—=5—AhHZE
MEREE —T-=F=A=+NH

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 288 From 3 January 2013
USD2,057 to USD2,107 per tonne 250 to 28 March 2013

ENFEME2,057X T E2,1075% T B-T—=f—A=H%
HIERIHE —T-—=%=A=F/\B

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 208 From 2 January 2013
USD2,054 to USD2,105 per tonne 25048 to 27 March 2013

BN T GME2,054% T E2,105% T BE-Z—=f—AZHZ
HEREE —T-=F=A=++H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 296 From 3 January 2013
USD1,890 to USD2,075 per tonne 25048 to 28 March 2013

I FGME1,890% L% 2,0755% T B-Z—=5—A=H%
HE&HE —T—=F=A=+N\H

Steel rebar future contracts:

HFHEEA

Sell at prices ranging from 10 tonnes 900 15 May 2013
RMB3,942 to RMB3,990 per tonne 10ME —ZT—=FAA+HA

BN T EMEARKE3 042TTEARKES,9907T
HERHE

BaXtEEERAT —ET-ZFFRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

notes: (continued)

(ii)

Provisional pricing arrangements (net settlement)

During the year, the Group entered into copper scrap sales contracts that
contain provisional pricing arrangements with certain customers. The Group
recognises sales revenue, upon delivery of goods once the significant risks and
rewards of ownership has been transferred to the customers, based on the
quoted copper prices on the Shanghai Futures Exchange or the London Metal
Exchange as at date of delivery with a fixed discount on the purity of copper
scrap (“Provisional Selling Price”). The Group will receive the payments from
the customers ranging from 70% to 90% of the Provisional Selling Price in
accordance with its normal trade terms (“Provisional Payments”).

In general, the provisional pricing arrangements allow the Group to choose
a date (“Price-fixing Date”) within a period of two to twelve months (2012:
six to twelve months) after delivery to, or upon receipt of sales invoice by the
customers, whichever is applicable, (“Pricing-fixing Period”) to fix the final
selling price of the copper scrap sold with reference to the copper future prices
as quoted on the London Metal Exchange and the Shanghai Futures Exchange
with similar terms as the provisional pricing arrangement on the Pricing-fixing
Date, as adjusted for the agreed purity of the copper scrap sold (“Final Selling
Price”). If the Group does not choose the Price-fixing Date within the Price-
fixing Period, then the last date in the Pricing-fixing Period is deemed to be
the Price-fixing Date for the purpose of determining the Final Selling Price. The
difference between the Final Selling Price and the Provisional Payments, once
determined, will be settled within a specified period.

For accounting purposes, the provisional price arrangements are separated
from the host contract for sales of copper scrap and are accounted for as
derivative instruments, the fair value change of which is recognised in profit or
loss.

Major terms of the provisional pricing arrangements contracts outstanding at

31 December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

31 December 2013

Notional amount

EREH

Provisional Selling Prices

REEE

25.

PTEERMIA (&)

Bt : (48)

(i)

FREEEZ I OFEEHE)

FA - ARBEETEFP L BERETE
ZHMEREERYN  ARERERENE
AER;ERBZERFIRINEDE - I
ZEE DERERF ML BASBER S MR
REBFBRaIE (R EE]) REBERL
BT AR R EEREREE KA - RIE
ERES KK ARE B REP KA HIE
DB & EHI70% Z90% ([EREFFR])

—RiMfE - BEEEREEASEAERR
AEFPRNEMIMIIHERREMET=
BA(ZE—=F: AEZE+=@A) (REAH
BEnimE) (EEHHED A —ERH(E
ERYDESENERERBRERNEELR
PRELMERZ RBEBR SRk DEHER
5 P T $R 6 ER B (B 1% 7 e P R S0 i AR
B ((&EEE]D - WIRAMEERORENE
HEITHE © HAKREWERRINEEHEA
MEERY - AEERRZ&ERRRES
EESKEENEERY SR EEREER
RN EZE—LEE - BREEFEBEAN

+
4 °

B ANOTE - BT ER AR BER
HEMTANLIHABTELE - HATE
RS

R-ZE—=FR-_FT——F+-A=+—H
HARAITH IR E B R HEA A8 F E i3 m
I &

—2-=%+=-A=t+-H

Last date in the Price-fixing Periods

EEMERE—AR

2 contracts to sell 1,144 tonnes Sell at prices ranging from
of copper scrap in total
BRHE B, 144 EEIRE 21 & 4
ERHE
1 contract to sell 766 tonnes Sell at prices ranging from
of copper scrap in total
BRIHE 25 766MEE RN 117 & 4 BRI F-EE6,3673 T 26,7525 7T

MBEIRHE
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RMB49,882 to RMB50,885 per tonne
BN TEWEARK49,88270E ARHES0,8857T0

USD6,367 to USD6,752 per tonne

30 September 2014

—E-mEAASTA

From 2 February 2014
to 22 February 2014
E-Z-WmFE-_A-HZE
—E-mE-_A=-+=H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. fTHEE/T A (58)
(continued)

notes: (continued)

MiaE : (&)
(ii) Provisional pricing arrangements (net settlement) (continued) (i) FRRFE B CFBEE) (8)
31 December 2012 —B——%+=-H=+—H

Notional amount
EZHLH

Provisional Selling Prices

iR EE

Last date in the Price-fixing Periods

EEMM&KE—AR

6 contracts to sell 1,773 tonnes Sell at prices ranging from From 26 March 2013

of copper scrap in total
BRAHEEE, 773 ERN6M AL

2 contracts to sell 1,744 tonnes
of copper scrap in total
BRAHEBE, 744 EE R A Y

RMB45,882 to RMB52,608 per tonne
BN TG ARYE45,8827E AR52,6087C
HIERIHE

Sell at prices ranging from
USD7,327 to USD7,699 per tonne
BN FEMET7,327XTTE7,699% THBIXHE

to 12 July 2013
A-T—=5=A=+XHZE
—T—=F+tA+=H

31 October 2013

—E-=£tA=1-8

(iii) Foreign currency forward contracts (gross settlement) (i  EEINESK (RELEE)

AR BT SR EIIMNE & K DAUR R SNE LR ©
ZEANRBREPREHREERRATE
T8 MRBEREENMESRPER

The Group entered into foreign currency forward contracts in order to
minimise its exposure to the foreign currency risk. These contracts were
measured at fair value using quoted forward exchange rates at the end of the

reporting period, with gain or loss recognised directly in profit or loss.

RIREBRAR TR B BAINES N E EERW
of the reporting period are as follows: i

Major terms of the foreign currency forward contracts outstanding at the end

31 December 2013 —E-=%+=-A=+-H

Notional amount

EREH

Forward contract rates

BHAMMRE

Maturity date
A

2 contracts to buy
USD2,091,848 in total
219 #£2,091,848 % LB AA X

3 contracts to sell
USD6,207,000 in total
317 $£6,207,000E TTHISHE A XY

31 December 2012

Notional amount
EZHLH

USD1:RMB6.3064
to RMB6.3194
1ETLHARY6.3064TE ARK6.31947T

USD1:RMB6.2376
to RMB6.2549
1ETTHARY6.2376 TE
AR#6.25497T

Forward contract rates
BHEHERE

From 29 May 2015
to 3 September 2015
B-ZT-AFAA-t+NBZE
—ZT—hRFHhA=AR

From 30 July 2014
to 13 August 2014
B-Z—WELtA=1+HZE
—T-mENAT=H

—B-——f+=-A=+—-H

Maturity date
ZHA

4 contracts to buy
UsSD9,501,123 in total
413 #£9,501,123E TR AE 4

USD1:EUR0.7606
to EUR0.7685
12671 5,0.7606 BT £ 0.768580 T,

From 14 March 2013
to 18 March 2013
BE-E—=F=A1+mBZE
—T-=F=A+NH

EaRERBRAR —T-=FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/MARGIN
DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits

These represent deposits pledged to banks to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group. Bank deposits of HK$141,841,000
(2012: HK$105,765,000) were pledged to secure short-term bank
borrowings, of which HK$102,170,000 (2012: HK$2,152,000)
were used as collaterals for foreign currency forward contracts

and are therefore classified as current assets.

At the end of the reporting period, the pledged bank deposits

carried fixed interest rates as follows:

26.

CHEMBTER RES R
THREBEREE

2EFRITER
ZEFHIEMRITIRF L AR A EE R
RERITIEEVE EIRATFHN © 141,841,000
BT (=Z— =4 : 105,765,000, 75 ) A9
BT FARERFERBBRITEENE
1% H 102,170,000/ T( —F— =
F 12,152,000/ 7T) B AEINEIRERG
HRIEE - Ao BAERBEE -

RIBEER - BERRTEREATE
RIS

2013 2012
—E-=F

Interest rate per annum FF|%E

Margin deposits

The balance represents deposits placed with financial institutions
to secure the Group’s margin accounts with these financial
institutions for trading aluminium, copper, zinc, steel rebar and

nickel futures. The margin deposits are non-interest bearing.
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2.17% t0 3.75%  0.45% t0 6.00%

RES

BHEFRNEREENETR - RER
AEEER W 8 WA NRHNEE
ENZEERBBRIZRISRS
ZERESTFE °



26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/MARGIN

DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH
(continued)

Bank balances and cash

These represent cash and short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less. At the end of the
reporting period, the bank balances carried interest rates as
follows:

26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

CHEMBITER RES R
THERRkEE (F)

RITERRBRE
ZEFREERAEMRIPALS=[EA
HATHEIRITER - RI|EHR
RITAEBRA RN

2013
—E-=F —E—CF

Sk

Interest rate per annum

Pledged bank deposits, margin deposits and bank balances
and cash held in the PRC with an aggregate amount of
HK$425,132,000 (2012: HK$238,646,000) were denominated in
RMB and were subject to foreign exchange control.

0.01% to 1.15%
0.01% £1.15%

0.01% to 1.15%
0.01% £ 1.15%

ERBBEHEEIRRITER - RES
EBRERIT A #A R IR 4858 5 425,132,000
B (= & — = 4F : 238,646,000/5
7)) EMAARETEILZINEE H

Pledged bank deposits, margin deposits and bank balances and ERSEERI G EBUIINEBE
cash that are denominated in currencies other than the functional BB EFRITIER - RESERITLERR
currency of the relevant group entities are as follows: NIRRT
2013 2012
=== —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
RMB AR 300 3,770
HK$ BIT 1,276 5,644
usD I 124,810 16,030
EUR BRT 7,558 221,623
EeRMEEERAT —T—=FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. ESREMEBIRIE
2013 2012
—E—-= —E—_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAR FibR
Trade payables: B HRENFIA
0-30 days 0%30H 112,193 72,718
31-60 days 31260H 13,302 17,836
61-90 days 61£90H - —
91-180 days 91 £ 180 H 4,391 1,061
Over 180 days % 180 H 934 16,355
130,820 107,970
Other payables: H b R FRIE ¢
Other payables and accruals (note iii) E b 50E IR & A (B ki) 112,068 121,615
Provision for pending legal R AEF AR
litigation (Note 40) (PfF5E40) 51,638 20,448
Interest payable FERTFE 5,409 6,877
Receipts in advance from customers TEW R = 5RIE 28,349 8,529
197,464 157,469
328,284 265,439
notes: B e -
(i) The aged analysis of the Group's trade payables was prepared based on the (i) AEBE SEMNFIRRRE DT HERNER
invoice date. AmAmed o
(ii) Trade and other payables that are denominated in currencies other than the (i) NEEEEERYEER NG ENE
functional currency of the relevant group entities are as follows: 5 REAERFRIBLT ¢
2013 2012
—E-=F —T—-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
HK$ BT - 3,590
EUR BT 28,705 14,950
usbD E 209 29,860
(iii) Included in other payables and accruals are import declaration, freight charges, (iii) Hib T8 R e & A e iEE O wReE - &
accrued salaries and audit fee. & B HESREER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

28. BANK BORROWINGS AND OVERDRAFTS

28. IBITEREREX

2013 2012
—E—-= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Fixed-rate borrowings: ELEE !
Secured bank loans BHEBRITER 706,562 771,369
Unsecured bank loans FEHERRITER 164,889 931,743
Unsecured bank overdrafts FERRRITES 316 1,401
Variable-rate borrowings: FEMEE
Secured bank loans BEBRITER 234,703 179,256
Unsecured bank loans IR TE 852,210 65,904
1,958,680 1,949,673
Carrying amount repayable FERTRREE (FIEE ()
(note (i)):
Within one year —FR 1,943,089 1,755,875
More than two years, but not HBEME - BETZRAE
more than five years 15,591 193,798
1,958,680 1,949,673
Less: e
Amounts due within one year RREBETE5M
shown under current liabilities TERERBIRER
without repayment on demand BRIGR—FR
clause el bt =t (683,522) (1,320,421)
Amounts due within one year RRBEET2INFEE
shown under current liabilities IRARIR Z KB TG
with repayment on demand —FRE|ER S5
clause (1,259,567) (435,454)
Amounts due over one year RRBBETZ2INEE
shown under current liabilities IRYR IR Z KR 5K A
with repayment on demand —FL RS
clause (15,591) (193,798)
Amounts shown under FRBBET2INEHE
non-current liabilities - -
EAXMEEERAT —ET—=F£F§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

28. BANK BORROWINGS AND OVERDRAFTS 28. SRITEERZEX (&)

(continued)

notes:

(i) The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

agreements.

(ii) At the end of the reporting period, the effective interest rates of the
borrowings are as follows:

Wi

(i)

HEES s B eV R
ER

RIBEHR - BEENERFEMNT
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F

(iii)

Effective interest rate per annum: BRREFE
Fixed-rate borrowings ELEE
Variable-rate borrowings BEEE

1.50% t0 6.16%
1.50% £6.16%
3.14% to 5.20%
3.14%£5.20%

1.50% to 6.20%
1.50%%6.20%
3.31% t0 3.91%
3.31%%3.91%

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than the (iif) REMEEERIEEBUINEETENK
functional currency of the relevant group entities are as follows: SEEEWT :

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
HK$ BT 830 830
usbD E 1,813,979 1,640,031

(iv) During the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, a subsidiary exceeded the
loan-to-equity ratio specified in a bank loan agreement in relation to certain
bank loans with a repayable on a demand clause. The relevant subsidiary has
obtained a waiver from the relevant bank that it would not demand immediate

repayment of the bank loan as a result of the breach of the financial covenant.
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(iv)

BE-_T—=FRk-_FT——F+-A=1+—
HIEFE - —FHEFTEA A E S AR A L R
BIRITE R RE A EERERIETNE T
IRITERATATAMLE - ZBEBKBARIE
RIS HRRITHREETE A BIRITEN
i KA ERRITER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE TR KM EE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. IR
Number
notes of shares Amount
BT R & B %]
HK$
BT
Authorised: SEE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 RZZ——%f—H—B"
at 1 January 2012, “EFR-TZ=F
31 December 2012 and 2013 +=A=+—H
BREE0.01 AT EER 5,000,000,000 50,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETIHR :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each R-_E——F—H—H
at 1 January 2012 SARFE(E0.01 B Th) S B 1,041,854,706 10,418,547
Exercise of share options 1B RE AR (i) 3,621,500 36,215
Shares repurchased and cancelled B {n BB Bl K 5t 8 (ii) (1,970,000) (19,700)
At 31 December 2012 RZT——F+=-A=+—H 1,043,506,206 10,435,062
Exercise of share options T ERRE (i) 1,512,500 15,125
Shares repurchased and cancelled BRDEE R I ot 88 (ii) (406,000) (4,060)
At 31 December 2013 R=F—=%+=-A=1+—H 1,044,612,706 10,446,127
notes: Bt e -

(i) During the year, 1,448,000 and 64,500 (2012: 2,637,000 and 984,500)
share options under the Pre-IPO Scheme and the Scheme (as defined in
Note 37) were exercised at a subscription price of HK$2.43 and HK$3.38
(2012: HK$2.43 and HK$3.38) per share respectively, resulting in the issue
of 1,448,000 and 64,500 (2012: 2,637,000 and 984,500) ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the Company.

FA - BRAREEERAGE(EER
P35 37) BT #J 1,448,000 A% & 64,500 % (=
T — — 4F : 2,637,000 % % 984,500 % ) B8
BAED PR EA 2.43 8T K338 BT (=T
— 4 243 k3.388 ) NARBEEE
111 - EHRAARETERMEE.01HETT
1,448,000 0% % 64,500 % (=& — — 4 :
2,637,000 fi% 52 984,500 fi%) & i@ o

BaXtEEERAT —T-ZFFK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

notes: (continued)

(ii) During the year, the Company repurchased 406,000 (2012: 1,970,000)
of its own shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of
HK$1,324,000 (2012: HK$7,865,000) pursuant to the general mandate
granted to the directors at its annual general meeting. The highest and lowest
prices paid for the repurchased shares were HK$3.28 and HK$3.20 (2012:
HK$4.09 and HK$3.84), respectively.

29. R4S (F&)
st ()

(iv)

FR-ARAARBERERRAFAE FMA
EEREMN - RRERNBZAMERERS
B 1 406,000 8% ( = & — = 4 : 1,970,000
B%) - A$R(E1,324,00087T(ZF——4F :
7,865,000 % 7T ) © BRI KB = R (KB
BH R A3.288 T K3.208 (=T ——4F :
4.097% 0% 3.84%7T) °

Details of the repurchases are as follows: BERIFENT
Total number Highest Lowest
of the ordinary price paid price paid Aggregate
Month of the repurchases share repurchased per share per share consideration
BEEER [ERbE=T 28R
BEAH 2y BEE RIEE BRE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT FHT
Year ended 31 December 2013: BE-_ZT—=%
TZA=+—HIEFE :
June 2013 —T—=%XA 406,000 3.28 3.20 1,324
Year ended 31 December 2012: BE-_ZT——F
+=ZRA=+—HILFE:
September 2012 —T——%hA 1,802,000 4.09 3.87 7,215
October 2012 —F—=%+A 168,000 3.90 3.84 650
1,970,000 7,865

All of the above shares were cancelled upon repurchase. The nominal value of

the cancelled shares was credited to the capital redemption reserve and the

aggregate consideration was paid out of the reserves of the Company.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold and redeemed any of the

Company’s listed securities during both years.

(iii) All the above-mentioned new shares issued ranked pari passu in all respects

with other shares in issue.
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(iii)

LA RGN EEREH - RO
AESEHABLAEOREE  RAREER
REEER R -

RREFERN  BEARXRNMHERRE
B HERER AR R ER L TES o

FiA Lt B BATH D R HITRE AR
EMBETEHZER SR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

30. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 30. FFERER

Share of net assets
(liabilities) of subsidiaries

M A Al
FEE(AE)
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At 1 January n—HA—H (41,463) 17,398
Share of loss for the year F NPT EE (24,598) (49,240)
Share of foreign currency PTG SNES T 3 (8
translation reserve (1,610) (207)
Deregistration of a non-wholly AR ENB AR
owned subsidiary - (9,414)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H (67,671) (41,463)
31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 31. AIERES
Debt Derivative
component component
EHEE D PTEE D
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FAT
At 1 January 2012 R-ZT——%—H—H = =
Fair value at initial recognition VR AN TE 659,611 142,771
Interest charge MeER 65,252 -
Interest paid ERFE (16,316) -
Changes in fair value N ES = (57,481)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2012 RZ=T——F+=-A=+—H
ZARHEE 708,547 85,290
Interest charge MNEER 83,491 -
Interest paid EASALE (32,632) =
Changes in fair value NEEEE) = (71,937)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2013 RZ=T—=F+=-A=+—H
ZERAE 759,406 13,353

EeREBBRARE —T-=FFH 197
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

notes:

0}

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

On 1 March 2012 (“Issue Date”), the Company issued convertible bonds
to HWH Holding Limited (“HWH"), Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”) and
Sims Metal Management Dragon Holdings Limited (“Sims”) (collectively the
“Subscribers”) with an aggregate principal sum of HK$815,800,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds”) with detachable three-year warrants (the “Warrants”)
at total consideration of HK$815,800,000 (the “Subscription”). Details of the
Warrants are set out in Note 32.

The major terms of the Convertible Bonds are as below:

(@) The Convertible Bonds carry 4% coupon interest per annum payable
in arrears semi-annually. Unless previously converted, the Convertible
Bonds will be fully redeemed by the Company at its principal
amount upon maturity on 1 March 2015 (“Maturity Date”). No early
redemption of the Convertible Bonds is allowed unless the Company
commits an event of default under the terms and conditions of the

Convertible Bonds.

(b) The Maturity Date shall be extended to the fifth anniversary of
the Issue Date, if any of the Subscribers is not able to exercise any
conversion rights on or before the Maturity Date solely because of the

minimum public float restriction under the Listing Rules.

(c) The holders of the Convertible Bonds have the right to convert the
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds into shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$6 per share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustments) at any time during the period
from the second anniversary of Issue Date up to 10 business days prior

to Maturity Date, subject to the minimum public float requirement.

The Convertible Bonds comprise debt component and derivative component
(including conversion, extension and early redemption options), which are
measured at fair value of HK$659,611,000 and HK$142,771,000, respectively,
on initial recognition. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company will be able to maintain the minimum public float of Company’s
shares required under the Listing Rules and will not trigger the condition of
the extension of the Convertible Bonds. Also, the event of default is unlikely to
occur and will not trigger the early redemption of Convertible Bonds, therefore
the fair values of the extension and early redemption options were considered
insignificant on initial recognition and as at 31 December 2013.

The fair value of the debt component on initial recognition was calculated
using the present value of contractually determined stream of future cash

flows discounted at the effective interest rate of 11.756%.

In subsequent periods, the debt component of the Convertible Bonds is carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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31. ARRES ()

BRE -

@)

(ii)

(iv)

R=ZZ—=—F=A—B(#ITEH &
AFEHWH Holdings Limtied ((HWH ) +
Delco Participation B.V.([Delco]) & Sims
Metal Management Dragon Holdings Limited
([Sims]) (B[ RBA D BEIT=F A
FoRREE((RREZ]) EXASRER
815,800,000 % 7T 2 A] # % & % ([ A # % (&
# 1) - #8148 5815,800,000 7T ([ R =
) - REEF N BHRIMFES2

AR ER ) EZEARBINNT

(a) AHRREFKE 4% HFERE - B+
FX =R BRIFFR LI - FA
ARRABR-_T—AF=A—AH3
B ([BI8 R ) AR S FfE @ 2 58
FHRRE S © BRIEA R AR R TR
BEFH R RGN - BRI AR
TR P B E AT ES o

(b) & EREAMER LR AR &
B2 R R BB R i N B2 R B H H
k2 BIAT (R ] 3L R4 - BUEIHI A
REZHITAMNFELIAF -

(o) AREEFSEABENETE Y
FRFEIHAAELEXRZ
HREEAERAT S LIRESRe
BT (A T REERHE) AR E
FHOASEHEBRKARF G REE
0.01 BT RD - HEAETRER
PR REBHHE

AR ES BIEEF D RETEBD
FERHB - THRIERERE) HRAF
511 45659,611,000/ 7T & 142,771,000/ 7T 5
NEEREE - ARAIERERAE - AR
HEREAER: E AR AR E A D ARG & EA
BRHBEUARTSEE AT RREHFTHNOE
oo BAN  BREHTRAIBESREURT
SRR EE AR ES - Bt THE
REBELEOAFEENLIERRRBE =
T—=F+-A=t—HBHERAE/ -

S m o~

IR R D 0 AT PR
FI% 11.756% R A KBE A TR S k)
A -

MERBRE - TRRES 2RGS0 RS
SHACAER B IR A ZORTER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HIE=F—=

31.

32.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

notes: (continued)

(v) The fair value of the derivative component was determined using the Binomial

Option Pricing Model and the major inputs into the model are as follows:

FH—RA=+—HIFE

. ARRES ()

FEE < (#8)

(v) MTETARBDN R FETIR_IAREEEE
REERZEAMBAZ EREIBENT

At At

At 31 December 31 December

Issue Date 2012 2013

R-ZE—=F R-B—=%

RETEHH +=—A=+—H +=HA=+—-8

Stock price &= HK$4.33 HK$3.91 HK$2.87
4.33%7T 3.91% 7T 2.87% T

Exercise price 1IEME HK$6.00 HK$6.00 HK$6.00
6.00% 7T 6.00% 7T 6.0078 7T

Expected volatility (note a) fastEtE (Kiaa) 53.189% 53.189% 53.189%
Dividend yield & B ek R 0.855% 0.946% 0.739%
Option life Ll s 35.5 months 25.5 months 13.5 months
35.518 A 25.518 A 13.518 A

Risk free rate (note b) EEBRAE (KfEb) 0.277% 0.119% 0.201%

notes:

(a) The expected volatility was determined with reference to the implied
volatility of the Company’s shares as at the date of valuation.

(b) The risk free rate was determined with reference to the Hong Kong

Government Bond’s and treasury bill’s yield.

(<) In subsequent periods, the derivative component is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

(vi) No conversion of the Convertible Bonds took place since the Issue Date.

WARRANTS

The Warrants are exercisable to subscribe for an aggregate
amount of HK$75,830,646 for fully paid shares of HK$0.01 each
in the Company at an initial subscription price of HK$6 per share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustments) on and after the first business
day immediately following the second anniversary of the Issue
Date up to Maturity Date. HWH and Delco also agreed to assign
the Warrants to Sims that they were entitled as a result of the
Subscription.

The Maturity Date shall be extended to the fifth anniversary of the
Issue Date of the Warrants if any of the Warrant holders is not able
to exercise any subscription rights on or before the Maturity Date
solely because of the minimum public float restriction under the
Listing Rules (the “Extension”).

32.

f i :

(@) BEFHRE T &2 RA R R R ME
BEEBPZSIRREMEE

(b) ERRMNEDH2EEZBRAESF R
BEFZESRMERE

©  REESA -
st 2 - 4

o

TETARDIRAF
AFEZ BHR R A

(vi) B 31T B B L IR AR AR A 5 o

R REE
RIRFEF A T8 - REFEEITHESE
—RFME—EEERARZEBEREH

AL YEREESR6 BT (Al T RES
) REE A% 75,830,646 8 T AR A
HRREEO0.01 B TTHEE D © HWH X
Delco Rl & [ Sims#2 % K 32 88 518 T A 7
ZENRBAEE -

fied 25 (AT 3R A he %EAEIJ: AR Al
MR A RFFARE R FIMARBENBIHI A
L BIATIE AT RIEE - E‘Jé‘l,ﬁﬂ B ST
REABAEZETEHRNERBF (I
1)

EERMEERRAE —T-=FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HIE=F—=

32. WARRANTS (continued) 32.

FH—RA=+—HIFE

IR

(&)

The Warrants are classified as a derivative and recognised at fair
value on initial recognition and subsequent measurement dates.
Changes in the fair value of the Warrants are recognised in profit
and loss. The fair value of Warrants as at 31 December 2012 and
2013 were HK$8,046,000 and HK$1,331,000, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the gain from change in
fair value of HK$6,715,000 (2012: HK$5,372,000) was recognised
in profit or loss. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Company will be able to maintain the minimum public float of
the Company’s shares under the Listing Rules and will not trigger
the condition of the extension of the Warrants, therefore, the fair
value of the Warrants did not take into account the Extension.

The fair value of the Warrants was determined using the Binomial
Option Pricing Model and the major inputs into the model are as

RIREEFEW DB A —IBITETE AR
WHHERREETEBEATERER - R
fRiEEATFEZZEHNIBEANER ° R
BEFR-_ZE——FR_T—=F+=
A=+—HHRFES 48,046,000
Bt X% 1,331,000 7T ©

HE-_T—=F+-A=+—HBL1LHF
g A EEE)INEE6,715,0008 7T (=
—— 4 : 5,372,000/ 70) A 1Bz N EE
R ARAIEBRE  ARAIEEEHMME
#F TR RIFTARE AR R R G HRIEA
FHEHRE YT % RREE T

B Bt RBEER QAL ARG
K FEH o
Rk R 2 N FETER B HEE

ERAEERZEAFBAZ T EEE

follows: W
At At
At 31 December 31 December
Issue Date 2012 2013
RZT—Z4F R-E—=%
n&TeE +=-—A=+—H8 +=—HB=+—H
Stock price i (& HK$4.33 HK$3.91 HK$2.87
4.33%7T 3.91 87T 2.87# T
Exercise price 1TE(E HK$6.00 HK$6.00 HK$6.00
6.0087T 6.008 7T 6.003& T
Expected volatility (note a) TEEDRE (MiEta) 53.189% 53.189% 53.189%
Dividend yield &% B i e & 0.855% 0.946% 0.739%
Warrant life RN HA 36.0 months 26.0 months 14.0 months
36.018AH 26.018 A 14.08A
Risk free rate (note b) R R F = (MiFED) 0.281% 0.119% 0.208%
notes: B e -
(a) The expected volatility was determined with reference to the implied volatility (a) TEHRIBIE2BARARRONREITARZ
of the Company’s shares as at the date of valuation. S| IE M E
(b) The risk free rate was determined with reference to the Hong Kong (b) ERBRFRE2BERBRITES & EE
Government Bond'’s and treasury bill's yield. FELKRMEE °
No exercise of the Warrants took place since the Issue Date. B 217 B i1 T R R AE RS o

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2013



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

33. DEFERRED TAX 33. EIEMIE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement BRMEEMEIRRRANEY] & TIEE
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities MEBEENAGBDIRIEHE - U TAFE
have been offset. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax B2 E NHRERIBAAR DT

balances for financial reporting purposes:

2013 2012
—E-=F —ET—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIBEE 35,257 32,365
Deferred tax assets BIETIEE E (5,997) (12,621)
29,260 19,744
The deferred tax (assets) liabilities recognised by the Group and NEBREZANEEHRBE(EE)BELE
movements thereon during the current and prior years are as RAEERUFEEENESESHIOT ¢
follows:
Changein
fair value of
Accelerated Alowance  Unrealised dervative  Distributable
taK Tak Inventories for doubtful profit on financil profits of
depreciation losses provision debts inventories  instruments  subsidiaries Total
il FER  MESRIE  RELA
HalE HERR FERR AEER FERN  ATERE  AOEEd &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000
Thn Thn Tin ThL Thn S Thn Thn
At 1 January 2012 RZ5-—£-f-H 1993 (1,695) (19,488) - (4od) (2,007) 28,39 6,794
(Credit) charge to proftor ERGAARER
loss for the year 1,041 (628) 9,263 (1,05) (998) 440 1,01 12904
Bichange realignment EfE - - 3 (] - 15 - 4
At 31 December 2012 WF-—F+-f=1-A 3034 233 (10,190) (1,09 (1.402) 2248 29,406 19,744
(Credt) charge to proftor En())kER
loss for the year 6,985 (7.576) 1221 (339) 965 2107 20 9,653
Bxchange realignment ERHE 4 - (207 (37 - 103 - (137)
At 31 December 2013 NF-=E12f=1-H 10023 (9,899) (3,170) (1.401) (837) 4458 29,686 29260
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

33.

34.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$507,959,000 (2012:
HK$491,304,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had unrecognised deferred tax
asset on inventories provision of HK$5,690,000 (2012: nil) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. All the unrecognised
deferred tax assets may be carried forward indefinitely.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$659,638,000 (2012: HK$248,347,000) available to offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such losses to the extent of HK$59,992,000 (2012:
HK$14,077,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining unused tax losses of HK$599,646,000
(2012: HK$234,270,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. All the tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely except for those amounting to HK$490,986,000
(2012: HK$202,501,000) arising from the PRC which may be
carried forward for five years.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had pledged the
following assets to banks to secure the general banking facilities
granted to the Group:

33.

34.

IEFEBIIE (48)
REPFRPEMSHE  BZETN\F
— A — BB Bk B 2 B 5k AT Eos A
k2R BBHMTEIN - SREPEHRE
R R kA B KB A R 2FEEFEE 2
A% = %8 507,959,000 T ( —FE——
F 1 491,304,000 7T ) M 1E H EERIE
Bl AANEERAZ TR EEA
Oz - MEREERAETSRA
FASRAEE o

R-ZZE—=%F+=-A=+—8  &ank%k
om A e N e BRI - AREE I E
7 & #55,690,0008 T (ZE——4 :
D)RRABEHRIBEE - TEHEEIS
15 4 R B A R 45 82 o

R-—B—=F+=-A=+—H &
E A REAIEEE 659,638,000 %
TL(ZZF——4 : 248,347,000/87C) A
HEH R A T o B AR RE B 18 T R MU IR AT
FRIE & EE#E 59,992,000 (=T ——
£ 114,077,000 75 ) ° B & K& F
TRE AT TERIE - BRI T ARE AR
JAE18599,646,000/8 0 (—T——4 :
234,270,000/ 70 ) WA MER A ELET
HEE - A BI85 18 18 8 R 2 Al 45
o BRTE R B E A A AT R LA A A 45
SR TAE 18 490,986,000 /8 T (- B ——
£ : 202,501,000/ 7T) b o

BEERH

RBEEAR - AEBEE MRITEIFLAT
BE  UERERTAEE 2 —MKIRITE
B

2013 2012

—E—= —F——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Buildings (Note 17) EF (fEE17) 43,056 44,825
Prepaid lease payments (Note 18) TEfEE (FiEE18) 238,967 186,194
Investment properties (Note 19) HEWE (HIEE19) 23,748 30,808
Bank deposits (Note 26) R1777 3% (MI=E26) 141,841 105,765
447,612 367,592
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EAENE

36.

2013 2012

—g2—= —E—_4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH&ET
Capital expenditure contracted BB - BB L& E
for but not provided in the BEEIAVERRERE B T1E
consolidated financial statements HERFEENERFRL

in respect of acquisition of property,
plant and equipment 82,211 11,971

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all its qualifying employees
in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group
with respect of MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their basic payroll to the retirement benefit
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
required contributions under the schemes.

36.

RKAEF TS
AEERERGIEARSFTEEIAE
BIIARERREERIBESE - B8
BEFEZEEEE  RBUZTAE
Bl BeEARBABEEDRARH
REBBBESFENRE  BEREER
2 BIZEIR B ERT PRI L KT B K o
AEBEYBRBESTE 2 BE/RIE
ZETEWEH PR R - WA IRURHR
A] RN B 1R PSR

RBEREZEER2EDBERFE
E 2 BIRERRKNBHETE - hEIKHE
REAREBEEEAHHOETED LR
ZRREFET B - RRFEAEH
Bd - AEEHRAEANFE cHE—F
ERRIEFT BIEL PR -

BaXtEEERAT —T-ZFFK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EZ ==

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(i)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a written resolution of all shareholders of the
Company on 23 June 2010, a pre-IPO share option scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Scheme”) was adopted by the Company.
Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Scheme, the Company could
grant options to directors (including executive directors,
non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors) and employees of the Group and any advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters or service providers of any member
of the Group (“Participants”) to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The purpose of the Pre-IPO Scheme was to
recognise the contribution that Participants made or might
have made to the growth of the Group. It aimed to give
Participants an opportunity to acquire a personal stake in
the Company and helped motivate Participants to optimise
their performance and efficiency, and also to help attract or
retain Participants whose contributions are important to the
long-term growth and profitability of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE—T—=F+ A =1+—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i)
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
could be granted is 12,140,000 shares, representing
1.214% of shares of the issued share capital of the
Company immediately upon the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”), but excluding
any shares which could fall to be issued upon the exercise
of the options granted or to be granted under the Pre-IPO
Scheme, the other schemes and shares that could fall to
be issued upon the exercise of the over-allotment option in
connection with the Listing.

Share options granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme are
exercisable at the initial offer price to the public (i.e.
HK$2.43 per share). Each of the holders of the share options
under the Pre-IPO Scheme shall be entitled to exercise his/
her options in the following manner:

Service period that

share options can be vested

after the date of Listing

£ B H % 7 55 5 s AR RE Y BR A% HA R

37. URGBERNR RS (&)

BRABMBEAERESS (E)
AR HNBREMS & RO
B 4&12,140,0008% % 13+ #H &
REBEAR R R R BE R AT B
([EW D) BARREEITRAF
& E1.214% - ETBIEREITE
BEE X AFABEERTE R EAM
FHEIE H i TR B ARER
AR T ETHE MRG0 AR
[ 47 {55 £ | 71 75 2 A9 6B BB i AR
i 7] BE S F B TEIARD o

BREEXAFRABEATERED
BRERGE T RARALTHI L
EEB(SREH2438 L) 17
e ERARBERTETZE
BRI A A BRI TS A R1T
L AR A

Maximum percentage of
share options exercisable
A{TREERENE 2L LR

Attaining 1 year
B —F
Attaining 2 years
B M
Attaining 3 years
BE=F

EaREEERAT

30% of the total number of options granted

B AR RN 30%

30% of the total number of options granted

BRI BREARH30%

40% of the total number of options granted

BB LR 40%

—E-=FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

37. URGBERNR RS (&)

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BEXRDEABEABRETSE (8
The following table discloses details of the Company’s TEREZEFNAARESRIEER
options granted in 2010 under the Pre-IPO Share Option BEIREE R AFEEATIERERT
Scheme held by the directors of the Company and R -TFERENARARER
employees and the movements during the year: HEREBFE -
Number Number Number of
of options Lapsed/ ~ of options Lapsed/ ~ options
Category of Exercise outstanding ~ Exercised  forfeited outstanding  Exercsed forfeited  outstanding
Elgible price  Exercsable asat  during during asat  during during asat
Participants Date of grant pershare  period Vesting date 14200 theyear  theyear 3112202 theyear  theyear 31122083
H-g-% imk St HoE-2%
-f-F ERtzA=1-A i 12A=1-8
HATEN 5/ HAGRN 5/ HAGEN
RERSERE RiAR SRORE  fikH FRRE ERRER  EAGR R EREHER  EAGR R RBREE
(notea) (noteb) (noteb)
(Hita) (st (i)
Directors 1212010 HKS243 127.2011-127.2012 1272011 1477500 (1.477,500) -
£ i 1B EELATCEE BF
tht=H 2 ) gl tht2R
137.2012-12.7.2083 137.2012 1477500 1477500 (127,500)  (1,350,000) -
i ) R
Z5-ZEATIR A=A
137.2013-12.7.2014 137.03 1,970,000 1,970,000 - - 1970000
2 N
“R-MEEATIR A=A
4925000 (1,477,500) 34750 (1275000 (1,350,000 1,970,000
Emplojees andother 127,200 HKS243 1270111272012 12701 579500 (579,500) -
pertdpants 3 138 3-EtATRE Bf
EaREnpaE tAt=A Z5-ZELATIR th+28
137.2012-12.7.0013 137.2012 2040500 (580,000) 1560500 (1,1385000  (422,000) -
i R
ZB-SEEATR tAt=R
137.2013-127.2014 1372013 2,854,000 (64000 279,000 (182,000) - 2608000
I-EtAERE 3F
Z5-TELATIR A=A
SST4000 (11595000 (640000 4350500 (13205000 (422,000 2608000
10499000 (6370000 (4000) 7798000 (14480000 (17220000 4578000
Number of options exercisabl at the end ofthe year
iR 2,001,000 3,038,000 4,578,000
Weighted average rerise price 243 HKR243 KK HKRLB HKRB HKRB HKRA
METARE 1BET BET 8ET T T 8T 88
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(@

notes:

(a)

(b)

()

37. MR BERNR RS (&)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) () BROBMBEABRRETE(E)
Bt & -
The date of grant was the date when Participants accepted the offer (a) REBHALEEEMBRIEEAA
of options under the Pre-IPO Scheme. FRE SR BRI 2 B B -
In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the share (b) FARBITEBRETNS - RITE
prices at the dates of exercise ranged from HK$2.86 to HK$3.68 BHEIZREN T 2.86 5T E 3.68/8
(2012: HK$3.75 to HK$4.16). T(ZF—=F : 3758 0E 41675
JT) °
1,350,000 and 422,000 share options granted to directors and (0) AR AR EE A R AT ) B AR A
employees, respectively, lapsed due to maturity of unexercised options I DRARTFEEREEN
in the current year. 1,350,000 % 422,000 17 i f% # B &
e
The fair value of the options was calculated using the Binomial model. (d) EREATEDR ZEARA T
The inputs into the model were as follows: H o ZEXFEABRINT
Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3
F—it Eit =4t
Grant date share price i B AR HK$2.39 HK$2.39 HK$2.39
2.39%7T 2.39%7T 2.39%7T
Exercise price TTEE HK$2.43 HK$2.43 HK$2.43
2.43% 7T 243737 2.43%7T
Expected volatility TEEHRIE 49.798% 54.803% 51.954%
Expected option period TEHARE AR 1 HAR. 1.492 years 2.495 years 3.495 years
1.492%F 2.495%F 3.495%F
Risk-free rate R R = 0.514% 0.776% 1.109%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR Sz & 3.557% 3.557% 3.557%

Expected volatility was determined with reference to the historical
volatility of certain comparable listed companies.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective

assumptions.

The Group recognised share-based payment expense of HK$646,000
for the year (2012: HK$2,005,000) in relation to share options granted
by the Company under the Pre-IPO Scheme.

BRIREDESEETALRET
REIHBERIRETE °

STEBREATERAEE RRR
TRERN R EMGF T - BRE
BERETEIBRROTRAZEMm

BEIRRE °

(e) FRAEERAARAFRES
WA ERET IR H ERERER
LAR& 5 A5 2 3B 2 646,000 7
JL(=Z—=14F : 2,005,000787T) °

EaREBERAT

—E-=FFR
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

In addition, pursuant to a written resolution of all
shareholders of the Company on 23 June 2010, a post-IPO
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company may grant options
to directors (including executive directors, non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors) and
employees of the Group and any advisors, consultants,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners,
promoters or service providers of any member of the
Group who the board considers, in its sole discretion,
have contributed or will contribute to the Group (“Eligible
Scheme Participants”). The Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to reward Eligible Scheme
Participants who have contributed to the Group and to
encourage Eligible Scheme Participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and the shares for the
benefit of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.
The Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten years
from 23 June 2010.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of shares of the Company
as of the date of the approval by the shareholders in
general meeting, without approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number of
shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to each Eligible Scheme
Participant in any twelve-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as of the
date of grant.
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e MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZT—=F+ZA=+—HILFE

37. URGBERNR RS (&)

(i)

BRRRARERBERETS

BEAN - RIBARB 2 EBRRN =
T-TFEXNAZ+=HBBHNE
ERZEZR W ARAEMERAFH
BERBRIESE ([ZFTE]) -

RIEZETE ARRAMESS
EENERA/E /AR LSEAEE
EHEBNAEBEES (BHEHT
B FATEFERELEHT
Ex)RER AKEIMKE
REWNEMAEAA - BRE - DH
meREn fHER KB F
F-REBRBHE a2EBBHE.
BRARRGHER (T4 AR
B2EE ) RHBEE - %58
E-EBNDERE - SEBS
Bt 8|2 EMEHARNEE(FH A
BRAREBABERE2EE
BARRRBERO BB SR
HARB R OEEMRL °
ZAtE B E-EFRAZT=
B TFABY -

RHITERBEZTEN TR LA
EREREMAERTNES KRG
HEAXTFEBREREKXR
SHEH BN AR FRMDE10%
(EARNRMRELME) - BfTE
B ZT 8 AR AT E b BE
REHEST E Pz H B i R AT E A FT
B REARHE T 0] g B 1T M AR 10 AT
A] B R 13 BB B B BT AR D
#930% o IREM+ =18 A M E
EEHBHE BT EREZTE
K 75X R A {A] E At 8 AR A A 21l )
BREARE2HER T NE
B (BREETERSARITENE
&) a1 R FEITHES R
HEE TR BBREL B HE %
1T HI 1% °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FREMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZT—=F+ZA=+—HILFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37. URMDAEBRNRZRS (&)
(continued)

(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BXA HBERBRETEGE)

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company or any of their respective associates is required
to be approved by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is
the grantee of the options). Where granting of options to a
substantial shareholder or any independent non-executive
director or their respective associates which will result in
the number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in
the twelve-month period up to and including the date of
such grant exceed of 0.1% of the total number of shares
in issue and have an aggregate value in excess of HK$5
million, based on the official closing price of the shares at
the date of each grant, such proposed grant of options will
be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the
approval of the shareholders in general meeting.

Options granted have to be taken up within a period of 28
days from the date of offer upon payment of HK$1.

The exercise price is determined by the board of directors
and but in any event shall not be less than the highest of:

(@)  the official closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the daily quotation sheets of
the Stock Exchange on the offer date, which must be
a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities;

(b)  the average of the official closing price of the shares
on the Stock Exchange as stated in the daily quotation
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date; and

(c)  the nominal value of the shares.

Options granted are exercisable for a period to be notified
by the board of directors to each grantee and such period
shall expire not later than 4 years from the date of grant of
options.

EaREBERAT

MAQRESE ETBTHABR
FERF(EER EMMRA) SHE
EXENEABHEARLEME
BRHE - BB IENITES (TR
EEA & AEREARANEL
EHITES ) - EMEZRE
FEMBULIERATESTHHES
ERERER BN PNl I
BYR+—EAABHEEERLH
H(BiEZA) BfTERZEAL
B R FIREAERE(BED
1116 - B aEsH R M AR T R BB A%
#E) BT R TR TRIRR D 2L B
BB BTG BEMN0.1% - B
BESFEEBHBROHNE KT
E5F & # {88 15,000,000
JC 0 BIZERE AR B3 H B R I K
BERRBRAS L AR FA
EHRR L L REREE -

PR BB AN IR 2 B B 51 28
HRER - EARAS T BT ©

TEEHEFSET  EERD
AAEERTISEBZRD

(@) MREZAH(ZAARBR
FIMERESXHEBFHA
TR B RKRMAS
B fn B X PR BN B 77 1T

&

(b) EERZBHAAEEEA
Bk 22 BT RO H SRR PSR £
FEBE R P H) S5 B 77 W
B &

(0 MEhmmEE -
FIRBRETNESS MG SR
BRANMETE MBS

REFHERE B R mFERE
i o

—E-=FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37. URBDAERNR2RS (&)

(continued)

(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BRARBERBRES(H)
Details of the share options granted under the Scheme and RIEZTERE O ERERE%
their subsequent movements are as follows: BEEEIBAT

Number Number Number of
of options Lapsed/ ~ of options Lapsed/ options
Exercise outstanding  Reclassified Granted ~ Erercsed  forfeited  outstanding Granted ~ Exerdsed  forfeited  outstanding
Category of Eligble price  Exercsable asat during during during during asat during during during asat
Scheme Participants  Dateof grant pershare period Vesting date 142012 theyear  theyear the year theyear 31122012 theyear  theyear  theyear  31.12.201
#-§-zf #-§-zf R-§-zf
-A-8 t2A=1-A t2Azt-8
HATRN En ARG ER o HATRY
AEETESRARN  BHER SRIRE  fiRB 5808 EREZE  EREFMR ERRH ERR  RN/RM BRENE ERZH EmfR  KM/RM BRESA
(note ) (note) (note )
(Hiza) (Hitb) (itd)
Direcors 35201 HKS6.388 352012352013 352012 442500 (45,000) - - = 397,500 = = (397,500) o
£ it S 638ET ET-CERAZRE ECE
1A=R S 1AzA
452013352014 452083 442500 (45,000) o ° = 397500 = = = 397,500

“I-cERAmRE CE-E

“I-MERASR RARR
45.2014-35.2015 452014 590,000 (60,000) - - - 530,000 - - - 530,000
SEEIRRRE CEmE

5 O 1

Directors 262011 HKS6388 35201235013 350012 5,250,000 - - - (5250000 - - - - -
£ 5f 638Er  “E-CERARE CEIE
#A-1BA “E-SERASR RACR

note ) 45.2013-35.2014 4503 5,250,000 - - - (5250000 - - - - -
(Fike) “I-cERAmRE SRR
“E-RERAZR TARA

45.2014-35.2015 452014 7,000,000 - - - (7000000) - - - - -

“E-MERARRE  CERE
“3-I%RR=R EARA

Directors 83201 HKS4186  2832013-2732016 1832013 - - 262,500 - - 262,500 - - (195,000) 67,500
£ o St 3 deoEn  ZF-ZESACT\RE ZE-ZE
ZA=t/A “5-nER-ttR ZRSTAR
8320142732016 2832014 - - 262,500 - - 262,500 - - (195,000) 67,500

ZI-MEZA-f/\BE CE-TE

i v I
BING3016 B35 - - 350,000 - - 350,000 - - 260,000) 90,000
B oy it

i v I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &=

—=

—=

=FtT-A=+—HIFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

37. URGBERNR RS (&)

(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BRARBERBRES(H)
Number Number Number of
of options Lapsed/ ~ of options Lapsed/ options

Evercise outstanding Granted forfeited ~ outstanding Granted forfeited ~ outstanding

Category of Eigible price  Exercisable asat during during sat during during asat

Scheme Participants ~ Dateof grant ~ pershare ~ period 14202 the year theyear  31.12.2012 the year theyear 3112083

#-§-2f #-g-zf HoE-z%

-B-A t2Rz1-R tZR=t-A

HATRN Bho BROEN ER BEGRE

RERTESEEEN  RME3 SBRE  fiRH EhERe EREH fr K/%k BRREA ERgH RU/RN BRERE

(note) (noted)
(Hitb) (Kikd)

Diectors 520 HKSA.186  2832013-2732016 5,550,000 - 5550000 (5,550,000) -
] i 3 LI%RT  ZR-ZESACT/RE
TA-1ER Z5-EzAzHA

(10tee) 1832014-2732016 5,550,000 - 5550000 (5,550,000) -
(Fite) ZE-ME=A-tER
R-EEACA

1832015732016 7400000 - 7400000 (7:400,000) -
“2-RESACT/AE
REEACA

Diectors 2832013 B35 2320142132017 - - 195,000 195,000
] ot S ISET ZB-MESAITCAR
ZR=t\R Z5-tE=Azt-A

N315-132017 - - 195,000 195,000
i S i
b

03016132017 - - 260,000 260,000
i S
b

Diectors 35013 HKS375 2232000132017 - - 5550000 5,550,000
] ot 3 ISET ZB-MESAITCAR
il Z5-tE=Azt-A

(note) 2232015-1132017 - - 5550000 5,550,000
(Rrstf) “R-RESACoAR
b

232062132017 - - 7400000 7400000
i S
b

18,975,000 19,375,000 (17500000 20700000 19,150,000 (195475000 20302500

BEAEEERAT —ZB—=FFIK




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37. URBDAERNR2RS (&)

(continued)
(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BRARBERBRES(H)
Number Number Number of
of options Lapsed/ ~ of options Lapsed/ options
Evercise outstanding  Reclasified Granted ~ Ererdsed  forfeited  outstanding Granted ~ Exerdsed  forfeited  outstanding
Category of Eigible price  Exercisable asat during during during during sat during during during asat
Scheme Participants ~ Dateof grant ~ pershare ~ period Vesting date 14202 the year the year the year theyear  31.12.2012 the year the year theyear 3112083
#-§-2f #-g-zf Hog-zf
-B-A t2Rz1-R tZR=t-A
HATRN Bho BROEN ER BEGRE
RERTESEEEN  RME3 SBRE  fiRH ] i BRERR  ERENAE EREH ERfR  RA/Rh BEREE ERgH EnfE  XN/Rh BEERE
(notea) (noteb) (note )
(Kka) (Hitb) (Kitd)
Employees and other ~ 22.9.2010 HKS338 2292011229201 2292011 1,055,500 - - (945000 (71,000 - - - - -
partcipants 4 IBEL  REAACTIEE %
EaREbAEE hA=t2R o St Il O B |
BIN1-292013 1392012 1,116,000 - - - (0000 1,086,000 - (645000 (1,001,500) -

3 I 3
B=EAACTCR MACHER
920132292014 239203 1,488,000 - - - (40000) 1448000 - - (20000 1428000
Z3-EARCTERE 25-7F
SEREAACTCR O MAZTER

Employees and other 352011 HK96388 352012352013 352012 35000 45000 - - (11000 3477000 - - B4 -
partcipants 5k 63Er R-TFEAcEE %of
ERRafAEE A=A T3-CERACR EACH
452013352014 45208 353000 45000 - - (11000 3477000 - - (%0000 3381000
R-CERARRE BE
“R-MERA=A itilL3
452014352015 452014 4764000 60,000 - - (188000) 4636000 - - (128000) 4508000

“5-BERAMAE  3-ME
Z5-RERAZR TARR

Emplojeesandother 2832012 HK§4186  2832013-2732016 2832013 - - 345750 - (14000 338500 - - (1800000 3163500
partcipants R LIBRT  Z3-ESACtBE Z3-=%
EERERAEE ZR=f/\A e Y

2832014232016 2832014 - - 34750 - (14000 338500 - - (1800000 3163500

“I-MESROTNBE CERE
BEActtA ZACHAA
2832015232016 2832015 - - 4610000 - (1520000 4458000 - - (400000 4218000
ZR-RESACTRE 3-RE
BEActtA ZACHAA

19569500 150000 11525000 (9845000  (991,000) 25,269,000 - (64,500) (5,342,500 19,862,000
34,544,500 - 30900000 (984500) (18491,000) 45.963,000 19,150,000 (64,500) (24,890,000) 40,164,500
Number of ptions evercisabl at the end ofthe year 1,020,500 4960500 8437500
REBARARRERR
Weighted average exercie price HK§6.07 - HGA19 HKSR RKES HKSATE KBTS HK33 HKSST HKEAA
METHARR bUTET SR A9ET 3BEm SuEm AeEn 3BET 3MET B AsER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (ii)
notes:
(a) In 2012, a director resigned from the Company but was retained as

a consultant to the Group to provide consultancy services similar to
those rendered by employees.

(b) 17,500,000 share options granted to directors lapsed in 2012 as the
performance condition was not met.

(c) This represents the date when the grant of share options under
the Scheme to the relevant directors of the Company (namely Mr.
Fang and Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen) was approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company. Under the Scheme,
however, the date of grant is taken to be the date when the board of
directors resolved to make the offer of grant of share options to the
relevant directors of the Company, which was 3 May 2011.

(d) 19,150,000 share options granted to directors were cancelled by
forfeiture in the current year as the Profit Target 2012 (explained and
defined below) was not met. In addition, 397,500 and 5,342,500
share options granted to directors and employees, respectively, were
forfeited due to resignation of certain employees and maturity of
unexercised options in the current year.

(e) This represents the date when the grant of share options under the
Scheme to the relevant directors of the Company (namely Mr. Fang and
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen) was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company. Under the Scheme, however, the date of
grant is taken to be the date when the board of directors of the Company
resolved to make the offer of grant of share options to the relevant
directors of the Company, which was 28 March 2012.

(f) This represents the date when the grant of share options under the
Scheme to the relevant directors of the Company (namely Mr. Fang and
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen) was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company. Under the Scheme, however, the date of
grant is taken to be the date when the board of directors of the Company
resolved to make the offer of grant of share options to the relevant
directors of the Company, which was 22 March 2013.

Service period that share options
can be vested after date of grant

REHABRRTEBBRENREHH

]

L6

(a)

(b)

(c)

(e)

®

B

[

37. URGBERNR RS (&)

X AR ERBRESE (&)

N-F——F  —ZEENAQF
BHEERBERANEEER @ fRfE
H {7 B AT 460 AR 5 AR SR Ay &
AR

HR-ZZE-——_FUWREZHMNA
2 . T EE /17,500,000 15 i
RABIRRK

IR BIEZTEIMEEES (AN
%24 I Stephanus Maria van Ooijen
FoAE) R BB R AN 1 R B S R
HAEZ B - AW REZTE - &K
HEBHRARNESTGREMELE
HARRAERESEHBEEED
HEf-BI—Z——FHA=R -

& ¥ & £ #919,150,00017 B8 A% 4
RAFEFHEELK  RAR=F
——FRMAB(TITX@EERAE)
RERK WA DAIRTESR RE
8 #397,50017 K& 5,342,500 17 & i%
TR F E 5 B 5 B R E R
1T B AR 2 B TR UK ©

IERFBEZTEIMEBES (A
44 % Stephanus Maria van Ooijen
i) B BRI E AR D R B ARER
BEZH o A - RIFEZETE K
HABKRARNESTSREMELE
FEAARBABAEEREERED
BE - BI=ZF——F=RA—+/\R-

WRFRBEZAE M EREES (15
%t 4 K Stephanus Maria van Ooijen
S i) RN AR D RIB SR
HEZ B o A REBEZAE X
HEBERRNESSREMEHE
HARDAERESRHBEERED
BEi - I—T—=f=A-+=-H-

Maximum percentage

of share options exercisable

ATEBRENE D LR

Attaining 1 year
FE—F
Attaining 2 years
FAMF
Attaining 3 years
FE=F

EaREEERAT

30% of the total number of options granted

R BRELRH30%

30% of the total number of options granted

R BRELRH30%

40% of the total number of options granted

BB AR 40%

—E-=FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37. URMDAEBRNRZRS (&)
(continued)

(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BRARBERBRES(FE)

In addition to satisfying the above service period
requirement, 650,000 and 18,500,000 share options
granted to the executive directors on 22 March 2013 and
23 May 2013 respectively will only be vested if the Group’s
profit for the year ending 31 December 2013 is equal to
or exceeds 130% of the Group’s profit for the financial
year ended 31 December 2010 (“Profit Target 2013").
650,000 and 18,500,000 share options granted to executive
directors on 28 March 2012 and 24 May 2012, respectively,
would only be vested if the Group’s profit for the year
ended 31 December 2012 was equal to or exceed 130% of
the Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2010
(“Profit Target 2012").

Brim e Ll RS EAR 2k 2 5h
WAEEHE-_E—=F1+=#
=+ —HIEFEZHMNEFRHE
BASEHEE—T-—TF+ A
=+ —HIBMBFEE RN 130%
([Z2—=F%MEZ]) - AR
—E—=F=ZA=-+=-HE=ZFE
—=FERA-+=BRTFES=Z
650,000 17 & 18,500,000 17 B A%
BAEHEE WASKEBZE_F
——F+-_A=+—HLEFEZ
ENERIBBAEEEE_Z
—ZTE+_A=+—HIEFER

FHE130% ([ == —=F &= H B
Z) AR FE——F=ZA=1+N
AR=—ZE——FAA-_+WMH»
AT A T#HITESH9650,00017
5.18,500,00010 BRI S & 558 -

The fair value of the options was calculated using the B E A FER B ARG
Binomial model. The inputs into the model were as follows: B ZEXRASBRAT

Share options granted on 22.9.2010
REZB-ZFHAA-T-HARUNEBERE

Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3

Fit FEa4t F34t

Grant date share price R HERRE HK$3.38 HK$3.38 HK$3.38
3.3887T 3.38%87T 3.3887T

Exercise price 1TEE HK$3.38 HK$3.38 HK$3.38
3.38 T 3.38 7T 3.38/ 87T

Expected volatility TREtR IR 47.816% 55.886% 53.523%
Expected option period TE HA R AR BR R 1.503 years 2.503 years 3.503 years
1.503 F 2.503F 3.503F

Risk-free rate 12 a1 B ) = 0.430% 0.625% 0.847%
Expected dividend yield T8 HARR B M am 3 2.515% 2.515% 2.515%
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAEE ()

E-F-=H+-A=+-BLEE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

37. MR BERNR RS (&)

(ii)

BALRBERBRETE(E)

Share options granted on 3.5.2011
R-B——SRA=ARHNERE

Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3
FE1it E24t £33t
Grant date share price X B AR (E HK$6.20 HK$6.20 HK$6.20
6.2087T 6.2087T 6.20787T
Exercise price 1I{8(8 HK$6.388 HK$6.388 HK$6.388
6.3888 7T 6.38887C 6.38887C
Expected volatility TaRIE 42.747% 53.510% 51.323%
Expected option period TR HR B A% e A 1.503 years 2.503 years 3.503 years
1.503 2.503 4 3.503F
Risk-free rate fE [ p i 0.406% 0.778% 1.195%
Expected dividend yield TEAARR B e 1.448% 1.448% 1.448%
Share options granted on 28.3.2012

REB-ZF=ZA=-+/\HEHNBRE
Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3
£ 14t Ea4t £33t
Grant date share price R HERRE HK$4.10 HK$4.10 HK$4.10
4108 7T 41087 4108 7T
Exercise price 1TEE HK$4.186 HK$4.186 HK$4.186
4.186 7T 4186 7T 4.186 7T
Expected volatility TEEDRIE 44.334% 46.651% 51.539%
Expected option period TE BRRE AR i AR 2.500 years 3.000 years 3.500 years
2.500 F 3.000 F 3.500 F
Risk-free rate 12 a1 B ) = 0.276% 0.338% 0.373%
Expected dividend yield T8 HARR Bl am 3 0.902% 0.902% 0.902%

EaREBERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAEE ()

E-F-=H+-A=+-BLEE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

37. URGBERNR RS (&)

(ii)

BALRBERBRETE(E)

Share options granted on 24.5.2012
R-EB-——SRA-+HERHNBRE

Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3
FE1it E24t E3t
Grant date share price X B AR (E HK$4.06 HK$4.06 HK$4.06
4.067%7C 4.067%7T 4.06 87T
Exercise price 1I{8(8 HK$4.186 HK$4.186 HK$4.186
4.18687C 4.18687C 4.1868 7T
Expected volatility TaRIE 40.696% 44.958% 47.450%
Expected option period TR HR B A% e A 2.344 years 2.844 years 3.344 years
2.344%F 2.844 %5 3.344%F
Risk-free rate 42 [ Py 1) 2= 0.263% 0.279% 0.307%
Expected dividend yield TEAARR B e 0.911% 0.911% 0.911%
Share options granted on 22.3.2013

REB-—Z=ZF=ZA-+-HEHNBRE
Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3
F1#t FEa4t E3Ht
Grant date share price R HERRE HK$3.728 HK$3.728 HK$3.728
3.728 7T 3.728 87T 3.728 7T
Exercise price 1TEE HK$3.75 HK$3.75 HK$3.75
3.7587T 3.7587T 3.7587T
Expected volatility TEEDRIE 38.439% 43.385% 45.104%
Expected option period TE BRRE AR i AR 2.500 years 3.000 years 3.501 years
2.500 F 3.000 F 3.501F
Risk-free rate 12 a1 B ) = 0.194% 0.213% 0.300%
Expected dividend yield T8 HARR Bl am 3 0.569% 0.569% 0.569%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

37. MR BERNR RS (&)

(ii)

BALRBERBRETE(E)

Share options granted on 23.5.2013
R-B-—=5RA=-+=HRHNBRE

Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3

R F24t E3

Grant date share price i B AR E HK$3.529 HK$3.529 HK$3.529
3.529% 7T 3.5297% 7T 3.52978 7T

Exercise price 1I{8(8 HK$3.75 HK$3.75 HK$3.75
3.75%87T 3.75%87T 3.75%87T

Expected volatility TaRIE 38.370% 38.431% 43.517%
Expected option period TR HR B A% e A 2.330 years 2.830 years 3.332 years
23304 2.8304 33324

Risk-free rate fE [ p i 0.212% 0.250% 0.300%
Expected dividend yield TE HARR B i s 3 0.601% 0.601% 0.601%

Expected volatility was determined with reference to the

historical volatility of certain comparable listed companies.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the directors’
best estimate. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.

The aggregate fair value of the share options granted on
22 March 2013 and 23 May 2013 is HK$16,293,000 which
is related to the share options granted to directors with a
performance condition in terms of Profit Target 2013. The
Group has not recognised share-based payment expenses as
none of the options are expected to ultimately vest.

In respect of the share options granted without a
performance condition, taking into account of (i) the
applicable vesting period and (ii) the number of options
expected to ultimately vest, the Group recognised share-
based payment expense of HK$10,116,000 for the year

(2012: HK$15,698,000).

EaREBERAT

BEIRIE2RE TR EL®R LW
AR E SR IEEEE

AREBREATEMREERR
RIZEFHNREMFTME ° B
BEERSE T TERRN AR
BmA AR -

R-ZE—=F=A-_+-BRK
R—_ZETE—=%RHA=-+=H
REMNBERENRAFTERLRER
16,293,000 T - B TFESH
=T —=F%7 B 2=k m
RERGNERESR - N5 E
I EFER AR 0 BERER T K FH
Y EAMEEREERE &K
5 o

B AT 5% 2 B A% A I R IR R
- EERN (i) B A B B HA X (i) TR HA
BRREBENBREHE  FAXN
& B FE R AR AD B BB 0 155 5K FE
% 10,116,000 8 L (=T — =4 :
15,698,000 7T ) ©

—E-=FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

38. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED 38. BEX S NEERIKE
PARTY DISCLOSURES
(i) Transactions i) X%
During the year, the Group had the following transactions RERN - NEBEBES BT

R HEETHESRELD
HAEVUAET AR REEALT .

with related parties, certain of which are also deemed to be
connected persons pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2013

Rules:

Name of party Nature of transaction 2013 2012

HELER RAME —E-Z=F —TF

notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(s TR TEL

Connected transactions

and related party transactions

BERGREETKS

Sims (a) & (b) Purchase of scrap metals 853,148 828,579
BEESE
Sales of scrap metals - 69,326
HEESE
Subscription of convertible bonds - 315,600
REATARES
Interest expense on convertible bonds 32,300 25,244
AARESF SR
Compensation received 474 2,486
BHEE
Compensation paid 315 187
B IEE

Delco (b) Subscription of convertible bonds - 312,600
R AR ES
Interest expense on convertible bonds 31,992 25,003
ABRESF SRR

HWH (b) Subscription of convertible bonds - 187,600
REAHRRES
Interest expense on convertible bonds 7,423 15,005
ARRESF SRR

Connected transactions

De Leeuw Metalen B.V. (©) Purchase of scrap metals 8,950 8,813

REECE




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

38. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED 38. BAEXRZREEL K E (&)

PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(i) Transactions (continued) i) xR (&E)

notes: FtsE -

(a) These represent transactions between the Group and Sims after Sims (a) EE-T—=—F—A#Sims KAX
became a substantial shareholder with significant influence over the AR ARARBEEAREZFER
Company since January 2012 (details are set out in the Company’s REAREEESIms ZHENR S (B
announcement on 18 January 2012). HEHRARARBPA-_T——F

—ATNBHAE) -

(b) As set out in Notes 31 and 32, in March 2012, the Company issued the (b) WMTEE31 R 32FT8E c R=F—=4F
Convertible Bonds and the Warrants to Sims, Delco and HWH, all of =R AR —HHAARAFE
which are shareholders with significant influences over the Company. B Z AR Sims ~ Delco &

HWH 817 AT #2 % 5 25 K R AR 75 o

(c) De Leeuw Metalen B.V. is controlled by a close family member of Mr. (o) De Leeuw Metalen B.V. B ¥ A2
Herman Maurits de Leeuw, a shareholder with significant influence RIAEAEAXE N ZKEHerman
over the Company. Maurits de Leeuw 5t 2 — R FR

PRRK B2 o
(i) Connected and related balances (i) BAEARR

The Group had the following balances with connected REENRERREBREALTR

persons and related parties at the end of the reporting FAE T B A NSRS

period:

At At
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
R=Z-—= R-Z——4F
t=ZA=+—-B +ZA=+—H
Name of parties Nature of balance HK$'000 HK$'000
BES BB EERMEE FERT FHET
Sims Deposit paid for purchase of raw materials 36,442 23,636
BERMBNE ke
Trade payables 78,721 42,917
B S EMNFIA
Warrants 75,831 75,831
RIAERE
Convertible Bonds 315,600 315,600
AR &5
Delco Convertible Bonds 312,600 312,600
AR ES
HWH Convertible Bonds 67,600 187,600
AR &S

All the above amounts are unsecured and interest-free. The
average credit period for the trade purchases is 60 days and
the amounts were aged less than 60 days.

LA KRB R EKAR R
g\

B BSRBNHTIHEEHNRE0
B - MZRENRER DR 60 H °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & Z=F —

38. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED  38.

=FtT-A=+—HIFE

PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
(iii) Compensation of key management personnel

The directors of the Company and
employees are identified as key man
the Group, details of their compensati
set out in Note 13.

the five highest paid
agement members of
on during the year are

BEXSZNKBELHRE (&)

(iii) EEEEASEHMH
KRAREBEERERR=SHMNEES
BARNTEEFEEEAS - &
ERFARNFINFIERNMEI3 -

39. OPERATING LEASES 39. K=EHE
The Group as lessee AEBEEREBEA
2013 2012
=== —E-_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Minimum lease payments paid FABBEEHER
under operating leases HEESE
during the year:
Plant and machinery R K B 12,883 12,515
Premises b/ 3,223 2,298
16,106 14,813

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments

for future minimum lease payments un
operating leases which fall due as follows:

der non-cancellable

R¥EHIAR - AERERE A LR
MERR THEEEHORREEES
AR

2013 2012

—E-=F —ET——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FH&T

Within one year F—FR 12,201 12,390
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EFHE(BREEEME) 3,068 14,671
15,269 27,061

Operating lease payments represent rentals

payable by the Group

for certain of its property, plant and equipment. Leases are

negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years with fixed

rentals.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

39.

40.

OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessor

Rental income of leasing investment properties during the
year ended 31 December 2013 was HK$2,115,000 (2012:
HK$1,329,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

39.

KEHE (&)

TEBERHEA
HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—HILtFE
HEMEMRERNHES WA AK2,115,000
HBIE(ZZ— 4 :1,329,000/7T) °

RI|BEHR - AEBEBPHOEAT AR
RREHESWAT :

2013 2012

—E—=F —T—=F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHERT FHET

Within one year —F A 725 1,370
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FEERF (AEEREWE) - 323
725 1,693

PENDING LEGAL LITIGATION

The Group is a defendant in legal claims filed by the lessor
of certain properties in Shanghai, the PRC for unpaid rent,
management fees, early termination fee and reinstatement
costs totalling approximately RMB40.6 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$51.6 million). The Group filed a counter-
claim against the lessor of overall expected direct economic loss
of approximately RMB108 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$137.4 million) as a result of alleged misrepresention by the
lessor.

On 25 December 2013, the People’s Court in Baoshan District,
Shanghai, the PRC delivered the judgment in relation to these
legal claims. In summary, the judgement is in favour to the Group,
details of which are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated on 15 January 2014. Both the Group and the lessor have
applied for an appeal against the judgment given on 25 December
2013.

40.

FREFR

AEBREFTE EFETYWENLEAR
KIS BHE RFERLERSES
B #2549 AR #540,600,0007T (49 E 1
51,600,000/ 7T ) $& AR R FA AKX A1
& o REBBEAHMAAZIEREAERI
MENNBEEHERCEELAOAR
#5108,000,000 7T ( #7 % 4 137,400,000
BT HEAAREREBER -

R=_FE—=F+—_A=-+5HB HEHLE
BEILEARERMZEEEFAE
HHER - RIEM T - ZAREAEEE
o FEHNALRRBHA-—ZT—NF
—A+THEAMNRE - AEBREHEAY
HRZE—=FF+-A=F+HAELHN
FIRVEH R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

40. PENDING LEGAL LITIGATION (continued)

41.

Due to the uncertainty on the outcome of the appeal made by the
lessor, the Group did not reverse the provision made. The directors
of the Company, after obtaining legal advice and considering
the provision already made by the Group, are of the opinion that
the eventual resolution of the above litigations will not have any
material adverse impact to the Group’s future results and financial
position.

DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
As at 31 December 2013, the balance mainly represents the
deposits paid by the Group in connection with the acquisition of
plant and machinery for new production site in Taizhou, the PRC.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2013

40.

41.

frReRan ()

MR AR L& REAETRE
B % - ARSI I B A R O B
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COMPANY

The summarised financial position of the Company at the end of

the reporting period is as follows:

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE = 42.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

ZANNCTI B S W

N

RERERARER R BAORGRLAT -

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
note HK$000 HK$'000
B 5E FHET FH&T
Investment in a subsidiary, B AR ZKE

unlisted kL™ - -
Available-for-sale investment AEHERE 14,053 15,470
Amounts due from subsidiaries A D NGIE ] 2,012,782 2,008,539
Other receivables Ho A e Y5k IE 563 470
Bank balance RITHERR 450 1,369
Total assets BEBE 2,027,848 2,025,848
Other current liabilities HEtmeaE 11,131 15,135
Convertible bonds AR &S 759,406 708,547

Embedded derivative components AR EFIRARLITE
of convertible bonds TAIS 13,353 85,290
Warrants R E T 1,331 8,046
Total liabilities BfEB%E 785,221 817,018
Net assets BEFE 1,242,627 1,208,830
Share capital (Note 29) BEZR (3£ 29) 10,446 10,435
Reserves (Fes] (i) 1,232,181 1,198,395
Total equity e EER 1,242,627 1,208,830

BEARMEEGRAT —T-—=F£F#H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  42. XA R#BHAMRAEK (&)

COMPANY (continued)
(i) Movement in reserves (i) REEE
Capital Share Investment
Share redemption option Captal revaluation Accumulated
premium fesere Tesene Teserve Teserve orafits Tota
RipiE Pt kG ErGR RAEREE 2t o)
HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TR ThRL TR T T T ThL
(note )
(Hira)
At 1 January 2012 W-5-"F--A 884,911 200 08 216,08 (6,653) 892 1,118,336
Profit fo the year Eigi| - - - - - 92,461 9461
Redassiied toprofitorloss on~ EWEHERE

disposal of avalable-forsale ~ BEFHERER

nvestment = = = = 49 = 49
Fairvalueloss on avalable- ~ WEHERE

for-sale investment NYEER - - - - (805) - (805)
Cumulative impaimentloss T HERERE

reclassfed to profitor Exipp Y

Joss on impairment of LEiTHERR

avallable- for-sae

nvestment - - - - 7009 - 7009
Total comprehensive EREEYA

income for the year b - - - - 6,653 92,461 99,114
Cash dividend paid (Note 15) ~ ERB&RE (15) - - - - - (38612) (38612)
Share options exercised iG]

(Note 29 {note i) (HisE29 (&) 11,920 = 21 - - - 9,699
Lapse of share options EREXH - - (8273) - - 8273 -
Recogniton of equity- EAREEER

setfled share-based R f13

payments (Note 37) (Hii37) - - 17,703 - - - 17,703
Shares repurchased and RAERR:ES

cancelled (Note 29 (Bisk 20 (Brsti))

(noteii) (7.845) 20 - - - (20) (7.845)
At31 December 2012 RIB-Z%

tZR=1-H 888,986 20 29,987 216,08 - 62,99% 1,198,395
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  42. XA R HAMRTEK (&)

COMPANY (continued)
(i) Movement in reserves (continued) (i) REEEE
Capital Share Investment
Share redemption option Capital revaluation ~ Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve feserve profits Total
RiteE HARERE BRiEGR EafiR REERRE EitiH it
HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
THn Tn Thn TEn Tén ThL Tn
(note a)
(Kia)
Profit fo the year EREH - - - - - 44,182 14,182
Fairvalue loss on avallable- I ERE
for-sale investment ATEER - - - - (1.417) - (1.417)
Total comprehensive EMREHA
income for the year 28 - - - - (1.417) 4,18 4,165
Cash dividend paid (Note 15) ~ BIEEARE (i 15) - - - - - @18 (2.18)
Share options exercsed EfiERE
(Note 29 (note i) (Biak 20 (Risti)) 4801 - (1,105) - - 3m
Lapse of share options ERERN - - (7,809) - - 7809 -
Recognition of eqity- BNRESER
setfled share-based RiBER 31
payments (Note 37) (Hk37) - - 10,762 - - - 10,762
Shares repurchased and ke
cancelled (Note 29 (ko9 (W)
(note i) (1320 4 - - - 0] (1,320)

At 31 December 2013 No5-zF

t-A=t-8 892,493 il 31,835 216,208 (1417) 92,838 1,232,181
note: MIEE -

(a) Capital reserve of the Company represents the net effect of (i) the (a) AAREANFERER = —ZF () EAXMR
capitalisation of shareholders’ loans of HK$223,708,000 and (i) the HE 223,708,000 77T & (i) A GUAE AR
Company issued and allotted an aggregate of 749,999,900 shares f& f 1R EL AR PR 35 17 R BE 3% 48 51 749,999,900
of HK$0.01 each in the Company out of the capital reserve to its RABRS| BER M FAREE0.01 B T H ARG
shareholders, credited as fully paid at par, in 2010. ZEE

EaREBBRAR —T-=FFH 225




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 43. XARMBARFE

COMPANY
43a. General information of subsidiaries 43a. B QRN —RER
Issued and
Place of fully paid
Place/ incorporation/ share capital/
country of establishment registered capital Attributable equity interest and
Name of subsidiary notes  operation AL/ ERTRMR voting power held by the Group  Principal activities
KEARER M EEwd/E%  HINY B /EmRA AEEfRRERARERRTE  IEXE
2013 2012
“E-cE “EF
Chiho-Tiande International () HongKong British Virgin Islands Us§2 100% 100% Investrent holding
Limited (*CT International”) &k ZERTES VES RESR
EARHERERAT
(TE=ER])
Chiho-Tiande Investments Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
EARHREBRAT (i Bk 10,000/570 REMR
Delco Europe B.V. The Netherlands ~ The Netherlands EUR18,151 100% 100% Purchasing agent of
i) i} 18151817 the Group
KEAnRERE
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% Purchasing agent of
BEaXi(BE)ERAR &k Bk 100,000 470 the Group and
wholesales of metal
scrap without processing
FEEHRRRER
ANIEEEHNS
Hefast Holding Corporation Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited Bk ik 10000087 RERR

226 Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2013



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 43. RARMBERARFE (&)

COMPANY (continued)
43a. General information of subsidiaries 43a. B QRN —RER (&)
(continued)
Issued and
Place of fully paid
Place/ incorporation/ share capital/
country of establishment registered capital Attributable equity interest and
Name of subsidiary notes  operation HhEL/ ERTRAR voting power held by the Group  Principal activities
WRAAEH i EEHE/EZ  AUnY & /ERRA AREfRRERARERRTRE  TERR
2013 2012
ZE-ZE 3

Chiho-Tiande (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Copper Industry Company B & 10,0057 RERR
Limited

EaR(ER) BEARAA

Chiho-Tiande (HK) Metals Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$35,000,000 10% 10% Trading of metal scrap
Recycling Co,, Limited &k & 35,000,005 70 EEE4E
("CTHK Metals")

EaXb(54)BECR
ERAA(ERERCE)

Chiho-Tiande (HK) i)~ HongKong Hong Kong HK$10,000 36.4% 36.4% Provide logistics services
Logistics Co. Limited &k & 10,0007 R
("CTHK Logistics")

EaX (B8) MivaRAA
(E=E#mR])

Chiho-Tiande Investments Hong Kong British Virgin Islands U1 100% 100% Investment holding
(BVI) Limited &k ABRAHES 147 REmR

Chiho-Tiande Metals Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Inactive
Investment Limited ) Bk 10,0047 2R

BoRHSBREBRAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 43. RARMBERARFE (&)

COMPANY (continued)
43a. General information of subsidiaries 43a. B QRN —RER (&)
(continued)
Issued and
Place of fully paid
Place/ incorporation/ share capital/
country of establishment registered capital Attributable equity interest and
Name of subsidiary notes  operation HhEL/ ERTRAR voting power held by the Group  Principal activities
WRAAEH i EEHE/EZ  AUnY B /ERRA AREfRRERARERRTRE  TERR
2013 2012
-§-ck 3
Chiho-Tiande Resources Hong Kong British Virgin Islands U1 100% 100% Inactive
Limited ) ARRAHS 127 E2K
Chiho-Tiande (Ningho) i) ThePRC The PRC 15§12,000,000 100% 100% Processing and sales
Metals Recycling Co., Limited il hEl 12,000,000£7 of metal scrap
BERB(ER)BE NIREERSE
SBERAT
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande (ii) ~ ThePRC The PRC US$7,500,000 100% 100% Processing and sales
Foundry Company Limited hE hE 7500,000%70 of metal scrap,
ANESREEERAR production and sales
of metal products
MIREERER:
EERSECRER
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande i) ThePRC The PRC 15§52,682,000 100% 100% Processing and sales
Metals Company Limited il hEl (2012: US$42,682,000) of metal scrap,
AN RS BERAR 52,682,007 production and sales
(Z3-2F : 42,682,000%TT) of metal products
NIREHERSR
EERSELRER
Shanghai Chino-Tiande The PRC The PRC RMB52,000,000 51% 51% Processing and sales
Resource Recycling Co,, Limited L E ARE52,000,0007 of metal scrap
(“CT Shanghai”) NIRHERSE
LREARHBEERERAR
((BARHLA)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 43. RARMBERARFE (&)

COMPANY (continued)
43a. General information of subsidiaries 43a. MIB AR —RER (&)
(continued)
Issued and
Place of fully paid
Place/ incorporation/ share capital/
country of establishment registered capital Attributable equity interest and
Name of subsidiary notes  operation HhEL/ ERTRAR voting power held by the Group  Principal activities
HEARER i SEwY/ER  ALNE Bk /2 RRA AEEMEEERIRERREE  TEER
2013 2012
ZE-ZE 3
Chiho-Tiande (YanTai) (i) ThePRC The PRC US$40,000,000 100% 100% Processing and sales
Resources Recycling Co. Limited HE E 40,000 00070 of metal scrap
EARH(ER)BEER NIRHERSE
BRAA
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at RIE—=F Rk T — —FFRMPEN
the end of the years of 2013 and 2012. BREETEMERES -
notes: B & -
(i) The Company holds CT International directly and all other subsidiaries (i) ARREERAEEGBRBRREEREMEH
indirectly. B RE] ©
(ii) Although the Group has 36.4% attributable interest in CTHK Logistics, (ii) BEARNEENEESBBYRES 36.4% FEL
the Group held 52% equity interest in CTHK Logistics through a 70% i  AREBEBER 70% RIERHTE AR
owned subsidiary, CTHK Metals. The directors concluded that the BEBBBMBAEEEEBMINK52% K
Group has the power to direct the relevant activities of CTHK Logistics. HoBREHER  AEBEENEELRS
BB ETS
(iii) These entities are wholly-foreign owned enterprises established in the (iii) ZEERATERBKIMIINEGEERE -
PRC.
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)
43b. Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that

have material non-controlling interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

43. R TEEQRFHE (&)

43b ERERFEREZNFERE

AR

TRIIREBER IR
AEEF2EHBRARFS

interests:
Proportion
of ownership
Place of interests and Profit
incorporation voting right held allocated to Accumulated
Name of and principal by non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
subsidiary place of business interests interests interests
AL FERERMEE AREFER
WEAR MR FTEEEHY WEREERRRELS R R Aot FERER
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
~B-Z§ T CZE-Zf -3 -f <IZB-Zf CF-C-F
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEr TBT Fhr THL
CTHK Metals Hong Kong 30% 30% 560 17 10,386 9,825
EREEEE BE
Individually immaterial subsidiaries (78,057) (51,288)
with non-controlling interests (note)
HEFERERNERIFFEAMEAR ()
(67,671) (41,463)
note:  Since these subsidiaries did not have significant assets and liabilities, Wi : ARZENBRARTEEAEERAGE 2

the major balance of accumulated non-controlling interests arose from

the share of losses in CT Shanghai.

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests as set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE =T —=F+ A =1—HItFE

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)
43b. Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

43. R AEEQRFHE (FE)

43b ERERFEREZNFERE

that have material non-controlling interests M 8 A R RS ()
(continued)
CTHK Metals EEEESR
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT
Current assets mEBEE 278,285 119,230
Non-current assets FnBEE 6,029 5,105
Current liabilities RBAE (249,695) (91,584)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A2 RI# A AR 24,233 22,926
Non-controlling interests EEe e 5 10,386 9,825
Revenue Wz 981,799 838,893
Expenses X (979,932) (838,837)
Profit for the year F R 1,867 56
Profit attributable to owners of the Company ~ KRR ARG EF 1,307 39
Profit attributable to non-controlling IR R IR R
interests 560 17
Total comprehensive income attributable AARERAEGEERALE
to owners of the Company 1,307 39
Total comprehensive income attributable IR B e (L 2 EIA B
to non-controlling interests 560 17
Total comprehensive income for the year FNEERANEE 1,867 56
Net cash outflow from operating activities REEHREMFE (134,312) (72,046)
Net cash outflow from investing activities REGHRETLFE (2,249) (5,163)
Net cash inflow from financing activities RERHRERNFE 145,454 72,982
Net cash inflow (outflow) BeERACRH) 8 8,893 (4,227)
BeRitEEBERAT —T—=FFH 231
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5-Year Financial Summary

TFEHBERE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLEE

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—TTHhFE ZZE-TF ZT——F <ZT-—F CZE-=%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAL THEL FAT FAL FET
RESULTS e
Revenue W 2,339,243 5,931,589 9,815,522 8,202,702 7,222,003
Profit (loss) before tax BRELATEFI (E518) 587,194 482,034 204,459 72,034 (381,776)
Income tax expense PSR (167,540) (129,478) (88,208) (32,683) (25,742)
Profit (loss) for the year FE At 5 795
attributable to: (E18) :
Owners of the Company ARAEE A 419,654 352,798 152,087 88,591 (382,920)
Non-controlling interest IR R - (242) (35,836) (49,240) (24,598)
419,654 352,556 116,251 39,351 (407,518)
At 31 December
W+=A=t+—-H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—TEhFE —ZE-TF —T—% —T—=-F CZE-=F
HK$ " 000 HK$" 000 HK$ " 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT FHIT FAL FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BERE 1,851,728 3,581,367 5,314,522 5,201,979 4,917,292
Total liabilities BEEE (1,433,630) (1,934,686) (3,250,502) (3,128,437) (3,210,603)
Net assets FAE 418,098 1,646,681 2,064,020 2,073,542 1,706,689

In this report, amounts denominated in US$ have been converted into

HK$ at the rate of US$1 = HK$7.8 for illustration purpose only.

RARERN » FoeBEKRI1ETLA7.8

BLCEXRBER/BIT  EIEHBZ

J==003

This report is published in both English and Chinese languages. Should RMENPEMEZS N - £/

there be any inconsistency between the Chinese and English versions,

the English version shall prevail.
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